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Change of financial year end date ENMBEESEHEA
The financial year end date of the Company has been changed from 30 June to 31 December commencing from the financial period 2020/21 (for details, please H-Z-2 /i BRERG A AN BEEEEEERAAB=1+AEXA+_B=1+—8
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 February 2021). This set of results covered the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022. The comparative (BB A2EAABRMA S~ A+ HANAMH) AEEREE T _—F—HF—

figures, however, are for the eighteen-month period from 1 July 2020 to 31 December 2021, and hence are not directly comparable. HREZZ_ _F+_A=+—HLHHE -2AM LBRHEFRE_ S _SFLA—HEE_ZE_—F
+ZA=+—H1E+/ES B AR BB
. . . . . Sz N ?Ej o6
Financial and operational highlights Bt 7 k= & i &
Financial performance Bf #5 %18 Global distribution network 2 ¥k 73 #8548 4%
HK$mn HK$mn 31 December 31 December
BWEERT EREET 2022 2021
Year ended Period ended k- St 3 B Change
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 +-H=+—H +—B=+—H [2T]
BHE_T__& BRE_Z_—F Change
+ZA=+—HLEE +=-BA=+—HLHH [}
Hong Kong and Macau & # & #F9
£ 0y
Revenue ”5,“‘“ 585 1164 ¥50% Directly managed stores 26 26 0
Gross profit EF 273 596 $54% N N
) - o HiZEIEEH
Loss from operating activities & & ¥ 754518 (122) (322) 162%
Loss for the year/period attributable to owners & AFE{LE R, HA A5 1E (132) (340)* 161%
Basic loss per share (HK cents) %5 i 57518 (L) (5.36) (16.52) 168% Mainland China REIA
Gross margin (%) EF% (%) 47% 51% V4% pts B E Dk Directly managed stores 7 119 52
Operating margin (%) & & m % (%) -21% -28% 7% pts [BE D4 BEREEEH

Net margin (%) ;=] (%) -23% -29%* 16% pts B E D

Singapore N

EBITDA AR stF] B MRIB T EE R SH A R A (27) (141) 181% ;
EBITDA margin (%) 5kEHHI 8 IRIE T EE R 8K AT AR (%) -5% 2% A7% pts BEH Directly managed stores 15 14 M
BEEE
Capital expenditure BBz 49 444 1% BEEEH
Other countries Eft1E xR
Key financial indicators == E B4 7#5354Z Export franchised stores 347 539 192
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 H AR SHCE SR
B HF T Change
+=A=+—A8 +=ZB=+—8 (=1 -] Total &t
Inventory turnover* (days) 7 & B &£+ (X) 201 180* 121 days X Directly managed stores 212 159 53
Inventory level (HK$mn) F &K F BB &) 172 187 V8% EREEEH
Return on equity (%) BB T [EIRZE (%) -70% -126%*  56% pts B E D8 Export franchised stores 347 539 $192
Current ratio (times) 7 & L= (£3) 1.44 1.74 V17% O A S A
Net cash’ (HK$mn) IR &/F58 (B HET) 93 269 ¥65%
Total liabilities to equity ratio (%) 42 & AR R EE (%) 327% 187%  M40% pts B E D25 559 698 4139

#* Including continuing and discontinued operations EJ1E AL & K AR IE 27
Inventory held at year/period end divided by annualised cost of sales times 365 days &45 B,/ #45 B > 7 S PR U E B AL & M A TR365K
T Time deposits, cash and bank balances less bank borrowings & #87F A IR & R IRITAE ERAIRITE R

Revenue by geographical market 2 & 13 73 48 > I =
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE — 2 __F+_A=+—HILLFE

N . Mainland Chi i
Hong Kong and Macau & # K ® P9 zg%new)\na R

60% (59%)

Singapore #7103
12% (10%)

() Figures for the period ended 31 December 2021 are shown in brackets #Z —Z - —F+ A =+—H LB HFIERERT



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEMBRE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the years ended 30 June 2018, 30 June 2019, 30 June 2020, period ended 31 December 2021 and year ended 31 December
2022, as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below.

UTFRArEBBE_S— \GFRA=Z+B - 22— hhEARA=+H T2 4 A=+THLFE - BE B —F+_A=+—HULBEERBE_SE__F+_A=+—HLEFEZ
(B BEMBERE LHRBETELEZGEMBRRNBEEMET] -

Results %45
Period ended

Year ended 31 December 31 December Year ended 30 June
BzE+_A=+—08
BE+-HA=+—HIEE L-HARY BEANB=1+HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
- T —F TECEE —E—h"E —E—N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T T T ST T T T T T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS @& & 75
REVENUE Y& % 585,155 1,164,075 1,091,631 1,488,072 1,782,531
LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & iE #5518 (122,051) (322,399) (319,131) (103,351) (9,504)
Finance costs B4 & A 2% (9,832) (14,768) (16,182) (212) (40)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BB EEE R MRAIESE (131,883) (337,167) (335,313) (103,563) (9,544)
Income tax expense FT{3#i 5% (371) (2,892) (12,183) (4,371) (7,752)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
EEKESERIERN AR (132,254) (340,059) (347,496) (107,934) (17,296)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD FROM A DISCONTINUED OPERATION
BRIEERZER HAEE - (378) (20,239) (31,171) (11,676)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY
ERATEEANEEER HIREE (132,254) (340,437) (367,735) (139,105) (28,972)
Assets and Liabilities EE R &&
At 31 December At 30 June
®+-—BA=+—H BAB=+A
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—ECCHE B —F CECEE —E-hE —E—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T T T T T T T T
TOTAL ASSETS B E4EE 513,791 743,863 774,077 938,139 1,129,175
TOTAL LIABILITIES &&4{E (393,488) (484,843) (492,617) (238,164) (253,350)
120,303 259,020 281,460 699,975 875,825

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEBER AR



Global distribution network
Ikt AEE

Hong Kong and Macau

B BB 26 (26)
Mainland China /1 B Ak f 171 (119)
Singapore #7013 15 (14)
Bangladesh & il 1(1)
Brunei ;X3 1(1)
Czech Republic 32 52 HH1E] 1)
India ENE 249 (227)
Laos E B 1(1)
Middle East* HPER* 7 (189)

Myanmar 4 0(15)
Nepal fEAF

Reunion Island & EE &
Romania % & E
Rwanda [ BEE

Taiwan & &

Thailand 2= 79 (80)
Venezuela ZAIHHL 0(8)
Vietnam 7 Eg 0(9)

* The Middle East includes Armenia, Bahrain, Jordan, Kuwait, Lebanon, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia and UAE

FREFERXED BB BERS - BER- WS FEE DR RERA Ak T RE
2 1 2 (1 59) 347 (539) 5 5 9 (698) () Figures at 31 December 2021 are shown in brackets

directly managed stores in Hong Kong and export franchised stores stores in about 16 countries and regions RIZZ—F+ZB=+—HBZEFUERRT
Macau, mainland China and Singapore WO S ESER EEARA16EER KithE

REBRIRPT ~ HR B A RE KT INE

NEZEEESR

Regional retail performance indicators (& Z & $4 & RIFIE1T

Same-store sales growth (%)* Sales per sq. ft. (HK$) Net retail floor area (sq. ft.)
R G E R R(%) * STHRBEREL) BFEEEEERARCERR)
Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2022 31 December 2022

BE_Z__F BE_T__F k- et - 3

+A=+—HILEE +-A=+—HILLEE +=A=+—A8
Hong Kong and Macau & 7 K B Fq -2% -17% 4,700 4,800 $2% 65,400 69,800 6%
Mainland China FRE A PE -29% -19% 600 1,400 157% 233,000 162,200 144%
Singapore /03 2% -9% 3,500 3,900 $10% 19,500 17,800 110%
Total & -7% -17% 1,800 2,900 138% 317,900 249,800 1127%

* Same-store sales growth is the comparison of sales of the same stores having full month operations in comparable periods

[E/ESH S R A ARSI EBRARNTE AR ZHERLER



Our vision is to be the most

preferred

DIVERSIFIED FASHION

CLOTHING BRAND
KR —

Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; stock
code on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("stock
code”): 592) and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Bossini”)
is a renowned apparel brand owner, retailer and franchiser in
the region.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Bossini launched its first
retail store in 1987. Over the past three decades, it rapidly
established an extensive international operating platform and
distribution network that extended to a total of 559 stores
worldwide. Among these, the Group operated 212 directly
managed stores in Hong Kong and Macau, mainland China
and Singapore. As for other overseas markets, the Group
cooperated with its business partners to establish a total of
347 export franchised stores in 13 countries, spanning from
Southeast Asia, South Asia, the Middle East, Europe to East
Africa.

Internationally renowned for its strong ability to mix-and-
match and to satisfy the pursuit of individuality and comfort,
Bossini offers trendy apparel products including men’s, ladies’
and kids" wear, which are designed to fit a wide range of
customer needs and create a unique and innovative cultural
content.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
FREBRERA

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present the results of Bossini International Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2022.

In 2022, as the COVID-19 continued to wreak havoc and weigh down tourism and trade in mainland China
and Hong Kong, where Bossini has significant presence, the retail sector was faced with mounting challenges.
In Hong Kong, the fifth wave of COVID-19 broke out in the beginning of the year and the social distancing
measures had essentially dampened consumption sentiment and curbed foot traffic at retail stores, while the
ongoing quarantine restrictions limited international travel, thereby having undermined the Company’s business
performance during the year under review. In mainland China, the country experienced a broad slowdown across
sectors. Towards the end of the year 2022, there was a widened pandemic outbreak across the country which
disrupted businesses.

Despite the challenges, we have upheld our unwavering commitment to reinventing the brand image in order
to focus on the development of the “bossini.X” brand which integrates lifestyle and trendy culture with sports
element in the design to attract younger new customers. We continued to develop strategies to improve
efficiency, while having adopted a more conservative approach to new store openings, with a view to controlling
costs stringently and minimising the impact of the pandemic to our operations and business performance.

After both mainland China and Hong Kong reconnect themselves with the international world upon having
removed most, if not all, of the social distancing and quarantine restrictions, we believe the worst of COVID-19
is already behind us. Looking ahead, we will continue to grasp opportunities arising from the potential rebound
in consumption and retail sector in a prudent and pragmatic manner, through a series of initiatives centred
around the "bossini.X" brand, such as expanding its store network both domestically and internationally,
exploring collaboration with other brands on wider product offerings, as well as harnessing the growing power
of e-commerce. Nevertheless, with a global recession on the horizon, there are still uncertainties surrounding the
near to mid-term trajectory of economic recovery. As we remain cautiously optimistic towards the overall business
environment and the Group’s operation, we will continue to focus on operational efficiency improvement, brand
repositioning and product optimisation to strengthen Bossini's competitiveness and drive sustainable long-term
value creation.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
FREHRERA

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, business partners
and customers for their support, trust and encouragement. My appreciation also goes to all our staff for their
continued dedication and contribution to Bossini, especially during the challenging time we experienced over the
past financial year.

Victor HERRERO
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 March 2023

AAZERREFTRARR EFBHREPHAERBIZF 8K
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Victor HERRERO
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

OVERVIEW

The financial year end date of the Company has been changed from 30 June to 31 December since the financial
period 2020/21 (for details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 February 2021). This set of
results covered the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (“year ended 31 December 2022"). It
should be noted that the financial data presented herein are being compared with that for the eighteen-month
period from 1 July 2020 to 31 December 2021. The difference in duration of the two financial periods should be
considered when making year-on-year comparisons.

Group revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 was HK$585 million (for the eighteen months ended 31
December 2021: HK$1,164 million) at a gross margin of 47% (for the eighteen months ended 31 December
2021: 51%). Table 1 provides an overview of the Group’s results of continuing operations in core markets. During
the year under review, loss attributable to owners of the Company was HK$132 million (for the eighteen months
ended 31 December 2021: HK$340 million). The Group’s same-store sales and same-store gross profit were down
by 7% (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: 17% decline) and 10% (for the eighteen months
ended 31 December 2021: 16% decline) respectively. Net cash balance was HK$93 million (2021: HK$269
million) as of 31 December 2022.

4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F 3R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

= = zA
=) IEEHHFFH&%*FF
RESULTS OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS B EER =S
Table 1: Group’s results of continuing operations R— RERZRHERESERER @
e S
For the year/eighteen months ended 31 December e g
B#E+-RA=t+—HLFE +/\fEA | 5
B <
2022 2021 g
HK$mn % to sales HK$mn % to sales
HBEEETT LI EEE AL BEEETT LIHEBRB 2L
Hong Kong and Macau & 7 Kz 8 P9 350 60% 681 59%
Mainland China FA[E A Ba 166 28% 363 31%
Singapore ¥ /103 69 12% 120 10%
Group revenue E£E U@ 585 100% 1,164 100%
Gross profit EF 273 47% 596 51%
Total operating expenses 42 B[ (608) (104%) (975) (84%)
Loss from operating activities =48 2 #E518 (122) (21%) (322) (28%)
Finance costs ff 2 A% 2 (10) (2%) (15) (1%)
EBITDA SR &5HHI S ~ 1R 78 ~ #7E5 R 85 A & 7 (27) (5%) (141) (12%)
Loss attributable to owners & A FE(LET1E (132) (23%) (340)* (29%)
Group same-store sales growth 5@ [EE N E5EIE & (7%) (17%)*
Group same-store gross profit growth £ EEEEFIZE (10%) (16%)*
Net cash at 31 December R+ B =+—HZIR&F%E 93 269
Inventory level at 31 December ¥+ B =+—HZF&KF 172 187
Inventory turnover (days) at 31 December R+ _B =+—RHBZ2HFEF&EH (X) 201 180*
* Including continuing and discontinued operations * BRI ERERILER

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

Revenue and gross profit

In the face of the ongoing outbreak of COVID-19, the retail markets in mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau
region were severely affected. As a result, the recovery of the industry was slower than expected and the overall
economic performance of the two regions was inevitably affected to varying degrees.

During the year under review, the Group recorded revenue of HK$585 million (for the eighteen months ended
31 December 2021: HK$1,164 million). Gross profit was HK$273 million (for the eighteen months ended 31
December 2021: HK$596 million), with gross margin decreased by 4% points to 47% (for the eighteen months
ended 31 December 2021: 51%).

Total operating expenses and loss from operating activities

The total operating expenses to sales ratio increased to 104% (for the eighteen months ended 31 December
2021: 84%). The pandemic had a negative impact on the assessment of the Group’s assets and impact on the
results for the year under review. Consequently, the Group recognised non-cash impairment on assets of HK$78
million (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: HK$119 million) during the year under review.

Finance costs

Finance costs were HK$10 million (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: HK$15 million), mainly
comprised of interest on lease liabilities of HK$10 million (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021:
HK$13 million) which was due to the imputed interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liabilities.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

As shown in Table 1, loss attributable to owners of the Company was HK$132 million (for the eighteen months
ended 31 December 2021: HK$340 million), including gain on disposal of assets held for sale of HK$174 million
(for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: Nil). Net margin was negative 23% (for the eighteen
months ended 31 December 2021: negative 29%). The preceding commentaries cite the reasons.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

fare = zA
=) IEEHHFFH&%*FF
DISTRIBUTION NETWORK NEEHIEE
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a presence in 16 countries and regions around the world, and had 559 NZEZZF+ZA=1+—HB A~EEEXHKEM K 6ERIXMME & @
(2021: 698) stores comprised of 212 (2021: 159) directly managed stores and 347 (2021: 539) franchised stores. B AS59B (T E - —4:698M)  B#E212B (ZZ - —F:159[) e S
B EEEHR347H (5 = —515390) HrHSEEHe = 2
m 2
Table 2: Store composition by type and geographical location R RIESHBARRMIHEN D ZESHD 2
At 31 December 2022 At 31 December 2021
WZEZZH+=-“HB=+—H N_E2-_—F+"A=+—H
Directly Franchised Directly Franchised
managed stores stores Total managed stores stores Total
HIZEHEEH S REER “act BiEEEES RS S5 “REt
Hong Kong and Macau & 7 & /8 P9 26 - 26 26 - 26
Mainland China A1 B A E 171 - 171 119 - 119
Singapore F N3 15 - 15 14 - 14
Other countries HAthEI 5 - 347 347 - 539 539
Total 425t 212 347 559 159 539 698

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 7
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

ANALYSIS BY MARKET
Hong Kong and Macau

In early 2022, the fifth wave of COVID-19 broke out on a large scale in Hong Kong, which adversely affected the
local economy. In order to control the pandemic, the government has adopted a series of strict social distancing
measures, including banning dine-in restaurants and requiring the citizens to undergo mandatory nucleic acid
testing, which led to a reduction in the number of people going out. The overall consumer sentiment was weak,
and the local retail industry has entered a cold winter. In order to enhance operational efficiency and control
costs, the Group actively rationalised and integrated its retail network to reduce competition in the same area and
focused its resources on stores with better performance. In addition, the Group took the initiative to negotiate
rent reductions or other concessions with landlords, with some stores receiving rent reductions.

The pandemic has eased since the middle of the year. Coupled with a new round of consumption vouchers issued
by the government and the relaxation of travel quarantine and social distancing measures in Hong Kong, its retail
market has gradually improved since the second quarter. According to the statistics from the Census and Statistics
Department, the value of total retail sales of wearing apparel for 2022 was approximately HK$30 billion, with a
decline of 9.0% as compared to 2021, representing an improved performance as compared to a 22.3% drop in
the first quarter.

The operating hours of the Group’s stores gradually returned to normal as the pandemic subsided. The Group
seized the opportunities brought by the consumption voucher scheme and launched a number of promotions to
stimulate store traffic and sales, resulting in a gradual recovery in store sales from the second quarter onwards.

In Macau, the pandemic began to break out in mid-June, and the government immediately and comprehensively
tightened the entry restrictions and conducted multiple regionwide tests, resulting in a drop in sales from local
consumers and tourists. Although the market situation in Macau improved by the end of September, the Group’s
business suffered another setback due to the relaxation of pandemic control in mainland China, which led to
another major outbreak in both mainland China and Macau.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

During the year under review, revenue in Hong Kong and Macau including the retail and export franchising
business was HK$350 million (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: HK$681 million). Same-store
sales for directly managed stores fell 2% (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: 17% decline) while
same-store gross profit declined 2% (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: 17% decline). Total net
retail floor area decreased to 65,400 sq. ft. (2021: 69,800 sq. ft.), and sales per sq. ft. was HK$4,700 (for the
eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: HK$4,800). The number of directly managed stores was 26 (2021:
26). Segment result was HK$141 million profit (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: HK$169
million loss).

The export franchising business operated a total number of stores to 347 (2021: 539) with a footprint across
13 countries in the year under review. The Group maintained its cautious yet strategic international expansion
programme to tap opportunities in the emerging markets.

Mainland China

In 2022, the economy of mainland China slowed sharply, with an annual GDP growth rate of 3%, which was
lower than the original target of 5.5%. During the year under review, many provinces and cities in mainland
China implemented stringent control measures intermittently, resulting in the closure of a number of stores in
a timely manner. The Group has responded quickly by setting up micro-business sales during the period when
the stores were forced to close. Nevertheless, the online express delivery service was severely disrupted by the
pandemic, which affected the overall sales of the Group.

Towards the end of the year, there was a large outbreak of the disease across the country. The Group's
employees, store sales staff and consumers in mainland China were also infected to a certain extent, resulting in
a significant decrease in the flow of people to the shopping malls and unstable operating hours of the stores. As
"bossini.X"” brand is in the stage of rebranding, the Group has become more conservative in channel expansion
while reducing all non-essential expenses, and has taken the initiative to request rent reductions from landlords to
reduce the Group’s losses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

Revenue in mainland China was HK$166 million (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: HK$363
million). Same-store sales dropped 29% (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: 19% decline) and
same-store gross profit registered a 45% decline (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: 17%
decline). Sales per sq. ft. was HK$600 (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: HK$1,400) while
total net retail floor area increased by 44% to 233,000 sq. ft. (2021: 162,200 sq. ft.). There was a total of 171
(2021: 119) directly managed stores in mainland China. Segment result was HK$267 million loss (for the eighteen
months ended 31 December 2021: HK$180 million loss).

Singapore

Unlike mainland China and Hong Kong, Singapore was one of the first countries and regions in Asia to choose
to “living with the virus”. The local economy and retail market improved immediately. However, the local
economy was gradually slowing down as the Monetary Authority of Singapore continued to tighten monetary
policy to curb the highest inflation in nearly fourteen years. In addition, the local tourism industry is still far from
recovering to the pre-pandemic level, with 6.3 million inbound international tourists in 2022, only 33% of the

number in 2019, the retail sector was inevitably affected.

The revenue of Singapore operation was HK$69 million (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021:
HK$120 million) during the year under review. Same-store sales registered a 2% decline (for the eighteen months
ended 31 December 2021: 9% decline). Same-store gross profit recorded a 2% growth (for the eighteen months
ended 31 December 2021: 4% decline). Total net retail floor area increased by 10% to 19,500 sq. ft. (2021:
17,800 sq. ft.). Sales per sq. ft. was HK$3,500 (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: HK$3,900).
The number of directly managed stores was 15 (2021: 14). The segment result was HK$8 million loss (for the
eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: HK$11 million profit).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

The financial year end date of the Company has been changed from 30 June to 31 December commencing from
the financial period 2020/21 (for details, please refer to the Company's announcement dated 25 February 2021).
This set of results covered the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022. The comparative figures,
however, are for the eighteen-month period from 1 July 2020 to 31 December 2021, and hence are not directly
comparable. The annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022 will be distributed on or before 30 April
2023.

FINANCIAL POSITION
Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net cash balance of HK$93 million (2021: HK$269 million). The current
ratio was at 1.44 times (2021: 1.74 times) with a total liabilities to equity ratio at 327% (2021: 187%). As at 31
December 2022, the Group did not have any bank borrowings (2021: Nil) and the gearing ratio determined by
bank borrowings divided by total equity was 0% (2021: 0%). As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total loan
facility of HK$200 million granted by an intermediate holding company (2021: Nil). No facility was utilised as at
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

The Group had certain investments and operations in countries that use currencies other than United States dollar
and Hong Kong dollar. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure to currency
risk. The Group will continue to monitor foreign currency risk exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency risk should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's inventory turnover days* was 201 days, compared to 180 days in 2021.
The return on equity ratio for the year under review was negative 70% (for the eighteen months ended 31

December 2021: negative 126%).

#Inventory held at year/period end divided by annualised cost of sales times 365 days
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Human Capital

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 1,000 (2021: 1,000) full-time equivalent employees in Hong
Kong and Macau, mainland China and Singapore. The total staff cost recorded during the year under review was
HK$221 million (for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021: HK$344 million).

The Group adhere to a policy of acquiring, nurturing and retaining talented employees. We treasure and
promote the team spirit, and strive to cultivate a proactive and ever-improving culture. Workshops in effective
management and certified programmes were offered for office and shop staff at all levels.

We believe a vibrant and competent workforce is indispensable in driving business growth. We treasure
knowledge sharing and life-long learning. We encourage employees to progress and excel every day through
different types of training. We provide an e-platform to our employees which is devised to offer practical and
experience-based knowledge and skills in customer service, retailing, products, and other latest marketing
information to our employees.

We also continued to remunerate employees based on performance, including share options and wide-ranging
employee benefits such as insurance and retirement schemes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE HAGFTSRIB AR
2021 Rights Issue 2T MK

On 12 April 2021, the Company issued 821,916,697 rights shares, on the basis of one (1) rights share for every RIZE_—FNA+H AREREMQREFRERHEZE —(1)EK

two (2) then existing shares, at a price of HK$0.360 per rights share (the “2021 Rights Issue”). Upon completion RN 2 B EMUES R M KRH ATE0.360c 2 EH8#17821,916,697

of the 2021 Rights Issue, the Company received net cash proceeds of approximately HK$294 million (the “Net FeERER G (T2 —F @) ol — S - —FHKE% AT B U

Proceeds”). The Company intended to apply the Net Proceeds as to: (i) approximately HK$100 million for the IREFTSRIEFERA B2 94 T (TFTSFRIEFEE ) o R A B FITE

repayment of shareholder’s loan; and (i) approximately HK$194 million for general working capital. MILFRERR U T AR ()BT 00RITANEEREER &(1INAE
1. 94BITRE—REEES-
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The following table sets forth the information in relation to the use of the Net Proceeds raised from the 2021 TREHBREAER S - —FHRMEMIEZRENE R
Rights Issue:

Actual use of Net Proceeds

Intended use of Net Proceeds as disclosed up to 31 December 2022 Unutilised Net Proceeds Intended use and
in the prospectus dated 17 March 2021 as originally intended as at 31 December 2022 expected timeline
IRIEEREREER HE—ZT-—

BBA S _—F=A+tHZEREMKE —E__F+-HA=+—H +=-A=+—H
ZFISRIEFERERR RIFMSMIEZEZERBR HRENAZ FR1GRIRF R RERRRFERERR
HK$100 million for repayment of shareholder’s loan HK$100 million - -
HBIE1.00ETTANEERREER 11,0008 7T
HK$60 million for the Group’s capital expenditure for From May 2021 to April 2022 according

its expansion in the mainland China HK$60 million - to the Group's network expansion timeline
Hige 0T BITANAERT B AERKRNE AR g6 0T8T RIEAEENALEREER

HIE T —FRAEZZ-_FMA

HK$10 million to upgrade the Group's information HK$10 million - During the second half of 2021 and

technology systems BE1.0FET throughout 2022
HE1OTETARRAAERENSARRR e e S —— S
HK$124 million for the Group’s additional expenses in light of the HK$124 million - From May 2021 to April 2022

Group’s branding and network expansion in the mainland China  &#§1.24(8 7T H-IE T FARE-ZFT-"FUA

A1 24T AN AEBAERBERET SRR KR
FESRABAS T EERIERIN 2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

2023 Rights Issue

On 24 February 2023, the Company proposed to raise gross proceeds of up to approximately HK$465 million
before expenses by way of a rights issue of up to 1,257,784,545 ordinary shares (assuming no change in the
number of shares of the Company in issue on or before the record date) at a price of HK$0.370 per rights
share on the basis of one (1) rights share for every two (2) existing shares held by the qualifying shareholders.
The market price on the date which the terms of the subscription were fixed was HK$0.470. Details of the
above were set out in Company’s announcement dated 24 February 2023, circular dated 3 March 2023 and the
prospectus (date 3 April 2023).

The Company currently intend to use:
(i)  10% of the net proceeds for its capital expenditure for its expansion in the mainland China;

(i) 20% of the net proceeds for marketing activities to reinvent and promote the “bossini.X" brand; and

(iii) 70% of the net proceeds for other expenses for supporting the Group's expansion plan and the rebranding.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

OUTLOOK

In 2022, mainland China and Hong Kong and Macau experienced the most stringent control measures since the
emergence of COVID-19, and the economy hit rock bottom. Consumer confidence has been severely hit. The
operations of all industries, especially the retail industry, were in dismal business, and there was even a wave of
store closures, among which, many large chain stores closed down, which had a profound impact on the overall
economy.

Towards the end of 2022, mainland China and Hong Kong have opened up to their border and fully deploy
for the resumption of normality in order to reconnect with the international community, welcome the return of
international visitors. The market generally expects that the economies of the two places will recover in 2023.
As overall economic sentiment improves, consumption is also expected to rebound. We expect that after the
resumption of normal travel in mainland China, domestic exports will grow favorably and the economy will
gradually improve.

Nevertheless, the Group expects to encounter many uncertainties in its operations this year. In the short term,
the economy of mainland China will still be affected by sluggish exports and reduced investment. At the same
time, excluding the low base effect, the speed of long-term economic growth recovery largely depends on
the effectiveness of the series of measures to stimulate economic growth introduced by the government in
stimulating domestic demand. Therefore, the Group will continue to take a prudent but a proactive approach. On
one hand, the Group will reduce or suspend unnecessary back-office expenses, strictly control the site selection
and rental costs of sales points. On the other hand, aiming at the potential of the huge consumer market in
mainland China, we will focus on investing resources in enhancing product strength to meet the needs of
consumers. At the same time, we will strategically carry out marketing activities and continue to identify suitable
locations and implement the store opening plan pragmatically to increase brand exposure and increase sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

In Hong Kong and Macau, the Hong Kong government has launched the “Hello, Hong Kong!"” campaign, which
aims to attract international tourists to Hong Kong, so as to stimulate the local tourism, retail and catering
industries. Coupled with the resumption of normal travel between Hong Kong and mainland China since the
beginning of the year 2023, the number of tourists from mainland China is also expected to increase gradually
and positively contribute to the Group'’s business in Hong Kong. In order to seize the opportunity of recovery, the
Group will select stores in suitable tourist areas to provide special offers for visitors so as to increase each single
spending amount. We have also reinforced our social media to disseminate product promotions and information
on social media platforms to connect with existing and potential customers. At the same time, as global
inflation leads to rising costs, in order to maintain business stability, the Group will reduce the discount rate of
promotional offers to enhance business performance and operating margins and continue to launch exclusive
member offers through social media to enhance the loyalty of existing members, which will be beneficial to the
Group’s long-term development and enhance brand value. As the Group controlled costs and expenses during
the epidemic by streamlining its structure and reducing stores with excessive losses, it is hoped that the Hong
Kong and Macau businesses will achieve break even in the short term given rental costs remain at a reasonable
level.

To enhance the competitiveness of the Group in the long run, we are committed to reinventing our brand image,
focusing on the development of the “bossini.X” brand, integrating lifestyle and trendy culture and adding sports
elements to the design due to our sponsorship to the Chinese Cycling Team to attract the new generation of
consumers. In addition to optimising our existing sales network, we will continue to identify suitable locations to
increase the number of points of sales of the “bossini.X" brand, as well as seek for joint venture partners through
investment fairs and negotiate for partners suitable for the “bossini.X” brand in overseas markets to expand
overseas business. In addition, we are also aware of the trend of e-commerce and therefore will develop online
sales, with the goal of increasing the proportion of e-commerce in overall sales from the current approximately
7% to approximately 30%. In addition to rebranding, the Group will also explore the possibility of collaborating
with other brands, including the launch of co-branded products such as footwear, apparel, handbag and
accessories. In the coming years, the “bossini.X” brand will be in an investment period of product adjustment
and channel expansion. The Group will continue to focus its resources on rebranding and stimulate sales through
product and channel optimisation. We will grasp the opportunities brought to the retail industry in the process of
economic recovery in the post-epidemic era.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
BERELARS

The Board is committed to maintain a solid and transparent framework of corporate governance for the
Company and its subsidiaries and will continue to review its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted the Code Provisions (“Code Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) as the corporate governance code (“Code”) of the Company. The Board is
committed to complying with the Code Provisions as stated in the CG Code to the extent that the directors of the
Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and practical to the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions in the CG Code.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for
the leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business of the Group
by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. All the Directors should make decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the Board committees. To ensure the Board is
in a position to exercise its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly management accounts
and updates to the Directors who also have full and timely access to all relevant information and may take
independent professional advice if necessary.

The authorities reserved to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are more
particularly discussed below.
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Board composition EETHEMN
The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience desirable for effective EEENENBRARBANEEREIAKIIEEE 2RI R &

leadership of the Company and independence in decision making.

The Board during the year under review and up to the date of this report comprised 7 Directors in total, with 2 REBEERITHEAREARIL EEgaERtUERAEAR B1F
Executive Directors, 2 Non-executive Directors (“NED(s)”) and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)") M AITES MAUIERNITES (ERTES ) A=ZBIUIEHITES

whose biographical details are set out in “Biographical details of directors, senior management and chief (MBI IERITEER)) SEF2HECHINFEICELI0EZES 5
executive officer” section on pages 36 to 40 and are posted on the Company’s website at www.bossini.com. The REIRE R ATEAR R 2 B FEsH 15 ) K A Bl ihwww.bossini.come LA T 2
Directors were as follows: EE-N
'§ k ﬁ Executive Directors WITES
%% iﬂ_“; Mr. CHEUNG Chi (Co-Chief Executive Officer) RE A (BEITEBUAEE)
¥ Vi ZHAO Jianguo HEESLE
5 S« Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul (resigned with effect from 1 May 2022) BREFAE (B2 _FHA—BEHMT)
Non-executive Directors EMITES
Mr. Victor HERRERO (Chairman) Victor HERREROZE4E (F )
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco BIEANESE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIJERITES
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming FEIARLE
Prof. SIN Yat Ming AR BEEE
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong E e
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During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report, the Company has the following 3
Board committees:

Audit Committee

RBE_Z - "F+-_B=+—HLFERNIBEARSHBL AR
BB TN =—AEEEEE!

Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

Name of Directors EE % BEREEE FNEET RBEEE
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 3R%&8 £ 4 = M M
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo R4 - - -
Mr. Victor HERRERO & - - C
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco ZZBIEAN 4 = = -
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming Z B B84 4 « M M
Prof. SIN Yat Ming &t B BBHU% M C M
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong BB £ 3854 M M M

Notes:
C  Chairman of the relevant Board committees
M Member of the relevant Board committees

The Directors had no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship with each other as at 31
December 2022.

All NEDs and INEDs of the Company are appointed for specific terms, their length of service with the Company
is either (i) 1 year from the dates of their appointments which will be automatically renewed or (i) for a period
of 3 years from the dates of their appointments, unless early termination by either party serving not less than 3
months prior written notice or upon mutual consent on short notice. They are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company (“AGM") in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least 1 INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

sk -
C EHEEZESNEFR
M BEEEZEZHIRE

NI THF+ A=+ EEBELEMBCES RBHEME
SRR Z B e

ARBMAFATEERBUIFNTESHRIEEREFH MFIBR
BEHBROMFAEZERES SR —FRBSEN)MFIEREH
HESAR=F BRIFEA—SHATA LR =ZEANFLEmEM L
LHRERFERIL-REARBDNERMA) AR TRABRRRESE
RE ((RRBEARG ) tHERERGEESE

BIFTES

REREER BHEERO S MBIENTES MERRD— 08T
FRTEEERBLENBEER NG H AR BRSNS
2 EHRA EF RN AR A LR Z B Re
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All INEDs are also members of the Company's Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. These INEDs are high calibre executives who bring a diversified range
of expertise and serve the crucial function of providing checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and the Group as a whole.

Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is essential for a good corporate governance and has in place
effective mechanisms as below that underpin a strong independent Board and that independent views and input
from Directors are conveyed to the Board:

1) The Board must have at least 3 Independent Non-executive Directors and the majority of the members
of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

2) All Independent Non-executive Directors are required to provide annual confirmations of independence and
the Nomination Committee assess their independence annually.

3) the Directors can have full and timely access to any related information so as to ensure the Directors are in
the position to exercise their powers in an informed manner.

4) the Directors may take independent professional advice if necessary.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong and the Nomination Committee reviewed
and considered them to be independent. All Independent Non-executive Directors are members of the Company'’s
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee with at least majority of the members
of each committees are Independent Non-executive Directors. The functions of the Board are carried out either
directly or through the Board committees. The monthly management accounts and updates have been regularly
provided to the Directors in a timely manner. The Board considered that the mechanism was effective for the year
under review.

The governance framework and mechanisms are kept under regular review to align with international best
practice and to ensure their effectiveness.

2 O ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F 3R
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated. During the year ended 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this report, Mr. Victor HERRERO was the Chairman and Mr. CHEUNG Chi and Mr. CHANG Min
Huei are the Co-Chief Executive Officers. The positions of Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are held by
separate individuals in order to preserve independence and a balance of views and judgement.

The responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly defined and set out in writing. The
Chairman is responsible for the overall direction of the Group. Supported by the other Executive Directors and
senior management, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall management and strategic planning
of the Group.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There
are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company'’s expense whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes and developments relating to the Group's
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors at regular Board meetings.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. All
Directors have participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31 December 2022 to the Company.

H\EJ_‘%_& ﬁl\‘”—:\ j&

FRERTBESABI BB - REE_ S F+/A=+—HI%F
ERTEERRE QEIA L Victor HERREROSE A A E FE MR o K
IRIBIBILE BB EITHAER  EFERITBERE T AR B A T MRS
WAL O ER B B 1R A T Ao

ARFERBAETFETHESSANERLCERHRI-ETFEE
KAEBZERSR THRASTEMATESReREERNRF T &
BEAEE EEEERRERE T1Fe

EEE
SHECEEEZCRYEES—HE2E ERARISEARENHAR
53D URARHFAEEEBREFERENT B L2EAE LIRS E
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development EEZRBEXEE

The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional development programme to ensure that they are RAPIEEEE2HEMREEZESED URFRRENEBEAREARE
aware of their responsibilities under the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the Company. During ZHERRBEERE F2EE - REN AR RESREFMESHE

the year, the Company has provided the materials on directors’ duties, corporate governance and updates on PEEBRRINERERZMED ETRERZBITHAE 2 R ki s
regulatory development for continuous professional development of their knowledge and skills in performance of B E-

their functions.

The Company has maintained records of training received by the Directors. To summarise, the Directors received RABIEREERZEI R BiEmes  EENFREETUTAA

trainings on the following areas to update and develop their skills and knowledge during the year: BB ANAE # At R E R SE R A -
© D
ég @ Training on corporate governance,
g2 a regulatory development and
S5 - other relevant topics
S CRER ERBEER
. Name of Directors EE{t % E{th 48 B S & 35 3
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 588 54 v
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo 32 B /it & v
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul B8 58554
(resigned with effect from 1 May 2022) (HE-Z&__FH H—HIEFHT) N/A A
Mr. Victor HERRERO% 4= v
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco % IE 7k %4 v
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming ZEEIBR 4 4 v
Prof. SIN Yat Ming % H BA%#% v
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong %234 % 4 v

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitments BE T HEXRRFT R

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board met 5 times including for considering and approving the BE_Z___HF+_RA=1+—HLEFE - EFG9E8R/1TARGH TEE
financial results for the 18-month period ended 31 December 2021, financial results for the 6 months ended BERMEBRE_E_—F+"_A=+—HI+/\[EABENMHEEE
30 June 2022, and continuing connected transactions. At these board meetings, the Board also reviewed and BEZZHARAA=THIEANEENMBEERFERERZ INZ
discussed the Group's business updates and strategies. FEFTHER D ESNE REImAEENERER KK
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration EEENRBEE 2+ A=t+—HIFENEETE BEREEY
Committee, Nomination Committee and general meetings for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below: HFINEEE REEEG TR EREARAGZHEREIWT:
Number of meetings attended/held
HEE BERHY
2021 Adjourned
Annual General
Remuneration Nomination Meeting 2022 Annual
Audit Committee Committee Committee “T=—% General Meeting
Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting RREFRE S - 3
Name of Directors EE % EEXggE BREEGEE FNZEEgE 2 RLEZEECEER &g RRBEXE
>389
Executive Directors HI{TEE %'8'_8‘
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 5R %8 7o & 5/5 N/A 58 B8 11 1/1 11 11 EI)T %%
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo HEE2 Bl St 4 5/5 N/A 3B N/A 3B N/A 3B 11 11 oSS
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul [ 5 5k 5t 4 meg
(resigned with effect from 1 May 2022) -
(BZZZ_FHB—HEHD 212 N/A 38 A N/A T8 N/A T3 F3 N/A 38 N/A &
Non-executive Directors JEHITESE
Mr. Victor HERRERO Victor HERRERO T 4= 5/5 N/A 58 B N/A 3 1/1 11 11
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco ZZIE R4 4/5 N/A & N/A RE N/A EH 11 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BILIFHITEE
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming Z BB/t 4 5/5 4/4 11 1/1 11 11
Prof. SIN Yat Ming % B BB %4 4/5 3/4 1/1 11 1/1 1/1
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong #8344t 4 5/5 4/4 1/1 11 1/1 1/1
Note: The attendance figure represents actual attendance/the number of meetings a Director is entitled to attend. Misk: HERBISESEEREEZ R BRUHEZ R RE-
The Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, EFTTR BREETTE - FHEESTE BREEZESTFERER
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and the Company’s external auditor attended the annual general BSMNEZHETEREENR S _FRTHNREBAFAGLEREM-

meetings held in 2022 and were available to answer questions.

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 ifEERERBIRAR 2 3
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Practices and conduct of meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are generally sent to all Directors
at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.

The Board meets regularly at least 4 times every year. The Directors participated in person or through electronic
means of communication. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide sufficient notice
to the Directors and facilitate the maximum attendance of the Directors. The Board members are given an
opportunity to include additional matters for discussion and are supplied with relevant information by the senior
management and reports relating to the Group’s operational and financial performance before the scheduled
Board meetings in a timely manner.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board and Committee meetings will be sent to all Directors or Committee
members for their comments and records respectively. The Board members can seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Group's expense, if necessary.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a transaction to be considered by the Board and the Board has
determined this interest to be material, the individual is required to declare his interest and to abstain from
voting. At least 1 INED who has no material interest in the transaction shall be present at the full Board meeting
approving such transaction.

Board Committees

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company had 3 committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are available
on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’'s website at www.bossini.com. The Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expense. The attendance of
individual committee members is set out hereinabove.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee plays a vital role in corporate governance of the Group. For the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report, it comprised 3 INEDs, namely Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong. Mr. Lee, who has professional qualifications in accounting and financial management
expertise, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the Company’s existing external auditors. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
the advice of external auditors and internal audit advisor to discharge its duties. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the consolidated financial results for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference which are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s website.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group with
an Executive Director, the Company’s external auditors and risk management and internal control review advisor.
It also discuss matters related to financial reporting, internal controls, risk management, appointment of external
auditors and corporate governance. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the interim and annual
results of the Group. The attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

The major works of the Audit Committee during the year were as follows:

(@) reviewed the financial results for the 18-month period ended 31 December 2021 and the interim financial
results for the 6 months ended 30 June 2022;

(b) approved and confirmed the annual audit plan of risk management and internal control review advisor; and

(c) reviewed the report on internal audit results and internal controls prepared by risk management and internal
control review advisor.

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from the external auditor on its independence and
objectivity.

BZEEY
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of reference. For the
year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
1 Executive Director and 3 INEDs, namely Mr. CHEUNG Chi, Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr.
CHEONG Shin Keong. Prof. Sin is the Chairman for the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference which included the duties specified in the CG Code and
are available on the Company’s website. The attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

No Director is involved in any decisions as to his own remuneration. The Group’s remuneration policy seeks
to provide a fair market remuneration so as to attract, retain and motivate high quality staff. The Company
adopted Code Provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code with the model of the Remuneration Committee to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors
and senior management.

Details of remuneration payable to the Directors and senior management and the five highest paid employees

as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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Nomination Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
currently comprises 5 members, the majority of which were INEDs, namely Mr. Victor HERRERO (Chairman of
the committee), Mr. CHEUNG Chi, Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong. The
attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(a)

(0)

(e)

review the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
background or professional experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships. In identifying suitable candidates, the
Committee shall consider candidates on merit and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board;

review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and review the objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report annually;

assess the independence of INEDs; and

make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, taking into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the
future, together with the Board, as appropriate.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors and reviewed the re-appointment

of Directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. Its measurable objectives on selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

To comply with the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Board targeted to appoint a female director in 2023
for achieving gender diversity with skill and expertise and a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the
Company and will review the composition and diversity of the Board on a regular basis to ensure its continued
effectiveness. The Company has also taken and will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all
levels of the Company, including but not limited to the Board and senior management levels and improve the
composition of the Board in order to develop a pipeline of potential successors. As at 31 December 2022,
approximately 80% of our total workforce were female. We will continue with our endeavor to maintain
reasonable female representation in our workforce.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been
arranged by the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties including:
(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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() to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the corporate governance code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices and the
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Company Secretary

During the year, Ms. WONG Suk May had been the Company Secretary of the Company for the period from 1
January 2022 to 30 April 2022. Ms. CHEUNG Wai Ling was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company
with effect from 1 May 2022. During the year, Ms. Cheung has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems, and the Board has the responsibility to review and monitor the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems at least annually covering financial, operational and compliance
controls, to ensure that the systems in place are adequate and effective.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are, however, designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year, the Group has engaged RSM Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited (“RSM"), as its risk management
and internal control review advisor for the year ended 31 December 2022, to review the Group’s risk
management system.
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The procedures used to identify, evaluate and manage major risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

e |dentifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment

e Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria developed by the management; and
e Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response

e Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk assessment; and
e Determines the risk management strategies and internal control procedures to prevent, avoid or mitigate the
risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

e Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risks and ensures that appropriate internal control
procedures are in place;

e Revises the risk management strategies and internal control procedures in case of any significant change of
situation; and

e Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and the Board regularly.

The Board considered that major risks of the Group were managed within the acceptable level and the
management will continue to monitor the residual risks and report to the Board on an ongoing basis.

The management and various departments conduct periodic self-assessment of the effectiveness of the

internal control policies and procedures. RSM was engaged and assisted the Group to perform a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems that covers financial, operational and compliance controls.
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The Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Based on the reviews performed by the management,
comments from the Audit Committee and recommendations for areas of improvement from external auditor and
risk management and internal control review advisor, the Board is of the view that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company maintains a framework for the handling and dissemination of inside information and the disclosure
policy of the framework sets out the procedures and internal controls to ensure inside information remains
confidential until such information is appropriately disclosed and the announcement of such information is made
in a timely manner in compliance with the SFO and the Listing Rules.

Whistle-blowing Policy and Anti-corruption Policy

Whistle-blowing and anti-corruption policies are established. More details and the mechanism of the policies
could be found in the 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a policy with regard to the declaration of dividends. Such policy aims to allow
shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.

The dividend policy also allows the Company to declare and pay special dividends and/or other distribution in
addition to the interim and final dividends. The declaration and payment of dividends are determined at the sole
discretion of the Board, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company, where appropriate. The
payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the Bermuda law and Bye-Laws. The Board shall
review from time to time the dividend policy and shall amend as necessary.

Dividends paid to shareholders may be in cash, or scrip dividend, or distribution in specie, or a combination of the
aforesaid. In proposing any dividend payout and/or determining the form, frequency and/or the amount of such
dividend payout, the Board shall take into account, inter alia: the operating fund required to provide sufficient
cash to meet the Group’s day-to-day financial obligations in a timely manner; the expected capital expenditure,
future expansion, other investment plan and other funding requirements; actual and expected financial
performance, financial conditions and cash flow; retained profits and distributable reserves, and other factors that
the Directors deem appropriate etc.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Bossini Group Policy laid down a code of conduct regarding the director’s securities transactions in terms
as stringent as those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on the specific enquiry made, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Bossini Group Policy throughout the year. Employees are not
encouraged to deal in the securities of the Company within 30 days and 60 days before the interim and the
annual results announcements respectively and prohibited to make use of inside information to deal in the
securities of the Company.

Directors’ interest as at 31 December 2022 in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") are set
out on pages 48 to 52.

Financial Reporting and External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Directors acknowledge the responsibility for preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the financial position and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Group on a going concern
basis with the support from the Finance Department. The responsibilities of the Group’s external auditor with
respect to the financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 68 to 76.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the
Group amounted to HK$2.09 million, of which a sum of HK$1.65 million was paid to the Group’s principal
external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"). The remuneration for PwC in respect of audit services and
non-audit services amounted to approximately HK$1.65 million and HK$0.58 million respectively. The sum for
non-audit services included HK$0.26 million for the review performed on the Group's interim results, HK$0.10
million for other assurance service and HK$0.22 million for tax services.
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Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in annual and interim
reports and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022. The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this
annual report.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the dividend
declared. The rights of the Shareholders are set out in, among other things, the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (“Company Act”).

Convening special general meeting on requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company or at the registered office of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to the Bye-Law 62 and Section 74 of the Companies Act. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the
provision of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called can be sent to the principal place of
business of the Company as set out in the “Company Information” section of this annual report for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

Proposing resolution at general meeting

Shareholders may by written requisition request for including a resolution relating to matters in a general meeting
by following the requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.
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Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections of the Companies Act, on the written requisition of
members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights or 100 members, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves, the Company shall give Shareholders notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting and a relevant statement.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

Under Bye-Law 102(A) of the Bye-Laws, Shareholders are entitled to elect any person to be a Director at the
annual general meeting or at any special general meeting by following the requirement set out in Bye-Law 103 of
the Bye-Laws. Details of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are available on the Company’s
website at www.bossini.com.

Voting by poll

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions at general meetings are
contained in the Bye-Laws. In accordance with Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all resolutions put to vote at
general meetings of the Company are taken by way of poll except where the chairman of the meeting, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by
a show of hands. Details of the poll voting procedures will be set out in the circular sent to Shareholders prior to
each meeting. The chairman of a meeting shall ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll and answer any questions from Shareholders on voting by poll. After each general meeting,
the poll results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in the manner
prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders” Communication Policy

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information on the Group to Shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover, additional information
is also available to Shareholders through the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board
also welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
Shareholder’s meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.
Shareholders could also send email directly at IR@bossini.com for any enquiries.

There are various channels of communication available for the Shareholders. The Company has reviewed the

implementation and effectiveness of the shareholder communication policy during the year and considered that
the shareholders communication policy was effective.
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Corporate Transparency and Investor Relations

The Group disseminates information on business development on a timely basis through various channels to
maintain transparency of its operation. The Company meets individually with analysts and institutional investors
from time to time to facilitate their analysis on the Group. The Company also holds group meetings with them in
which the Company’s management directly distributes relevant information and addresses to their queries.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents for the year ended 31 December
2022. At the special general meeting of the Company held on 21 March 2023, special resolution has been
passed by Shareholders for approving the amendments to the Bye-laws so as to reflect the latest changes to
Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules. Details of the amendments are set out in the circular of the Company dated 3
March 2023.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Victor HERRERO
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 March 2023

Note:
Subsequent Board changes:

(i)  with effect from 4 April 2023, Mr. Victor Herrero has resigned as the Chairman and a non-executive Director of the
Board and the chairman and a member of the nomination committee of the Company;

(i) with effect from 4 April 2023, Mr. Zhao Jianguo an executive Director, has been appointed as the Chairman of the
Board and the chairman and a member of the nomination committee of the Company; and

(iii) Ms. Yu Xin has been appointed as an executive Director with effect from 4 April 2023.

In accordance with Bye-Law 102(B), Ms. Xu Xin will retire and being eligible, offer herself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee considered that following the appointment of Ms. Yu as an executive Director, the Board
had achieved gender diversity and possessed skill and expertise and a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHEUNG Chi, aged 56, was appointed as the Co-Chief Executive Officer in July 2020 and is also a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. He is currently the chief financial
officer of Viva China Holdings Limited (“Viva China") (stock code: 8032). He is a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Cheung is also a director of Viva China Consumables Holdings Limited and Dragon Leap
Consumables Limited (“Dragon Leap”), being the substantial shareholders of the Company (within the meaning
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance). He has over 27 years' experience in financial management, corporate
finance and administrative management. Mr. Cheung also possesses extensive experience in apparel business. He
was an executive director and the chief financial officer of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (stock code: 3322),
an integrated sportswear manufacturer, distributor and retailer for international sports and fashion brands,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He was the executive vice president and chief financial officer of Aspire Holdings Limited, which is
a member of China Mobile Limited. Mr. Cheung was also the chief financial officer of eBIS Company Ltd. and
NIT Education Group, the financial controller of Liuzhou ZF Machinery Co. Ltd. and a senior consultant of Arthur
Andersen (Shanghai) Business Consulting Co. Ltd.

Mr. Cheung holds a Degree of Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong
and a Degree of Master of Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

Mr. ZHAO Jianguo, aged 58, was appointed in July 2020. He has extensive experience in business operation
and marketing and distribution of consumer products in mainland China and is the head of the consumables
business of Viva China (stock code: 8032). He is the founder and a director of It RIEEHEESIEERA
5] (Beijing Henggu Investment Management Co., Ltd.) which is principally engaged in investment and asset
management since May 2008. Mr. Zhao was also a director of It REEXREESEEHFR/AT (Beijing Eagles
Fund Management Co., Ltd) from November 2015 to January 2019. This fund management company focuses
on diversified technology investment, including mobile internet and technology, media, and telecom sectors. Mr.
Zhao is the brother-in-law of Mr. LI Chun and Mr. LI Ning, both being substantial shareholders of the Company
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance).

Mr. Zhao graduated from Tianjin University of Sport in 1987 with professional physical qualification. In 1985, he
won the National Gymnastics Championship in mainland China.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Victor HERRERO (resigned with effect from 4 April 2023), aged 54, was appointed in July 2020 and is also
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee. He has extensive experience in corporate management and business
operations in the consumables industry. From 2015 to 2019, Mr. Herrero served as the chief executive officer
and director of Guess Inc. (listed on the New York Stock Exchange), which is principally engaged in designing,
marketing, distributing and licensing a lifestyle collection of contemporary apparel, denim, handbags, watches,
footwear and other related consumer products around the world. Prior to joining Guess Inc., Mr. Herrero served
as the head of Asia Pacific and managing director of Greater China of Industria de Disefio Textil, S.A. (Inditex
Group), an international fashion retailer with brands including Zara, Massimo Dutti, Pull & Bear, Bershka and
Stradivarius.

Mr. Herrero is a board member of Global Fashion Group S.A., (e-commerce fashion site operator and owner
of Zalora and The Iconic, the shares of which are listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange), G-Ill Apparel Group,
Ltd (US manufacturer and distributor operating through a portfolio of brands, the shares of which are listed on
NASDAQ), Gruppo Coppel (Mexican consumer finance and retail conglomerate). Mr. Herrero is a non-executive
director of Viva China (stock code: 8032). Prior to this appointment, Mr. Herrero was a senior advisor of Viva
China.

Mr. Herrero graduated with a Master's Degree in Business Administration from the J.L. Kellogg School of
Management at Northwestern University and the School of Business and Management at the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 2003. He obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration from
ESCP Europe in Paris, France in 1992 and a Bachelor's Degree in Law from the University of Zaragoza in Spain
in 1993. He was also awarded “Best CEO in the Sustainable Apparel Industry” in 2018 by the European CEO
Magazine.
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Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco, age 44, was appointed in July 2020. He is currently the deputy chairman and
chief executive officer of Laws Fashion Group Limited (the “LAWSGROUP"”), one of the global industry leader
in garment manufacturing and fashion retailers. LAWSGROUP is also engaged in property development and
investment in Hong Kong. Mr. Law is responsible for overseeing the LAWSGROUP's manufacturing operations,
fashion retailing, property development and series of industrial building revitalization projects.

Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto, Canada with major in Architecture and minor in Fine Art History
and obtained Honours Bachelor of Arts in 2002. He is also the member of University of Toronto (Hong Kong)
Foundation Board, member of The Advisory Committee of School of Fashion and Textiles, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (2022 to 2024) and the Council member, Hong Kong Metropolitan University (2022-2025).

Mr. Law is @ member of Textiles and Garment Subsector of the Election Committee of The Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (2021 to 2026). He was appointed the Honorary Chairman of Hong
Kong Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association Limited effective from 1 January 2023 and has
been the vice chairman of Textile Council of Hong Kong Limited since 2020.

Mr. Law is a director and sole shareholder of Keystar Limited, being the substantial shareholder of the Company
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance).
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, aged 65, was appointed in July 2020 and is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a
Higher Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and a Master of Science degree in Business
Administration from the University of Bath, United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive
director of Want Want China Holdings Limited (stock code: 151), Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 980) and Tam Jai International Co. Limited (stock code: 2217), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From June 2007 to March 2020, he was the chief financial officer of
Stella International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1836), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee has more than 30 years' financial management experience and extensive experience
in corporate finance such as mergers and acquisitions. He assumed the position of chief financial officer in a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants.

Prof. SIN Yat Ming, aged 67, was appointed in October 2005 and is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Prof.
Sin holds a Doctor of Philosophy in Business Administration from the University of British Columbia, Canada,
a Master of Business Administration from the University of Texas at Arlington and a Bachelor of Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong (“CUHK"). Prof. Sin had been a member of the Faculty
of Business Administration of CUHK for over 35 years. He had also been a professor of Department of Marketing
of CUHK and an associate director of CUHK's Center for Hospitality and Real Estate Research until July 2016
on his retirement. He is now the Honorary Institute Fellow of the Asia-Pacific Institute of Business and Adjunct
Professor, CUHK Business School. He is serving as the advisor for the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. He is an
independent non-executive director of Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1446) listed on the
Stock Exchange.
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Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, aged 66, was appointed in September 2017 and is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheong is
currently the vice chairman of HK Television Entertainment Company Limited (ViuTV). He joined Purapharm
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1498) as a non-executive director from
March 2020 to September 2020, was appointed as an executive director from September 2020 to June 2021
and re-designated as a non-executive director from June 2021 to March 2022. He was the general manager and
an executive director of Television Broadcasts Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 511)
from January 2015 to December 2019. Mr. Cheong has extensive experience in the advertising and marketing
industry and contributes actively to the professional development of marketing in Hong Kong through leading
marketing industry bodies. He is a Fellow and a deputy chairman of the Hong Kong Management Association as
well as the former chairman of the Hong Kong Regional Board of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.

Senior Management

Mr. Cheung Chi and Mr. Zhao Jianguo, being the executive Directors, are also senior management of the Group.

New Director

Ms. YU Xin (appointed with effect from 4 April 2023), aged 33, has been appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 4 April 2023. Prior to the appointment, Ms. Yu was a project manager of the Group, responsible
for brand and product planning. She has extensive experience in the fashion design and the research and
analysis on the PRC investment market. Ms. Yu was an investment manager of Beijing Eagles Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd JEREZEEREEEEEERAT) from November 2015 to June 2018. From March
2015 to November 2015, she worked as an assistant to the manager of sports marketing department of Li-
Ning (China) Sports Goods Co., Ltd. (Z=2 (FRE) BBEHAMABEPRAE]) . From July 2011 to July 2014, she was an
assistant to the president of Beijing Yixin Yi Yi Culture Communication Co., Ltd Gt RIGHFEXLEEAR S
fE/28]). Ms. Yu is a niece of Mr. Li Ning, being substantial shareholder of the Company (within the meaning of
the SFO).

Ms. Yu graduated from the Art and Design School in fashion design of Beijing University of Technology and was
awarded a Degree of Bachelor of Arts in July 2011.
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Chief Executive Officer

Mr. CHANG Min Huei, aged 56, was appointed as the co-chief executive officer of the Company in May 2021.
Mr. Chang has over 30 years of experience in the apparel industry, in particular, extensive experience in brand
management, rebranding, channel expansion and integration, and administrative management.

He was appointed as the General Manager of “Broadcast” brand, by Ribo Fashion Group Co. Ltd., a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock code: 603196), to manage the online and offline channel
integration, and the brand positioning of the main brand “Broadcast”, as well as to manage the high-end
designer brand, PPT “Personal Point”, and to create a Nordic style brand, “Muchell”. He was appointed as the
General Manager of Hazzys China from, the main brand of LF Group in Korea, by Baoxiniao Holding Co. Ltd.,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 002154). Mr. Chang also served as a senior
business consultant who successfully led the rebranding and repositioning of “LAMPO" Menswear. Mr. Chang
graduated from Taipei Municipal Nangang Vocational College specialized in Mechanical Modeling.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Business review

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022, including the discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, material events that have occurred and an indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business is provided in the Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders, the
Management Discussion and Analysis and the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report respectively. An
analysis of the Group's performance for the year ended 31 December 2022 by key financial indicators is set out
under the section headed “Financial and operational highlights” on the inside front cover. These discussions form
part of this Report of the Directors.

In addition, the financial risk management of the Group are shown in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Group’s environmental protection, compliance with laws and regulations and relationships with key
stakeholders are discussed below:
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Environmental protection IRIG(RE
The Group is committed to long term environmental sustainability. We strive to encourage higher environmental AEETRERFAREL AN EN - SEEH LR BEBEBEHN A

protection awareness at our headquarters, retail stores and warehouses by saving electricity and encouraging
recycling of materials. Energy saving lighting systems have been installed in our stores and headquarters to
conserve energy. We shall review our environmental practices from time to time and consider implementing
further eco-friendly measures, sustainability targets and practices in the business operation of the Group to
embrace the principle of reduce, recycle and reuse. Relevant details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance has been reported in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company published
at the same time as the publication of this annual report on the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Relationships with key stakeholders
(a) Employees

The Group believes that employees are essential to the success of its business. The Group is passionately
committed to developing and training the staff and provides the employees with rewarding career paths and
people-friendly working environments. The Group has continued to offer regular and substantial training
programmes which exemplify the Group’s investment in the talent and also motivate the Group’s employees
as well.

(b) Customers

We strive to achieve corporate sustainability in providing quality products and services to our customers.
To ensure continuous improvement of the quality of products and services, the Group regularly conducts
internal and external market surveys to gain market insights and feedback.
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(c) Suppliers

We understand the importance to work closely with our suppliers to ensure the sustainability of our business.
The Group has established long standing relationships with a number of suppliers and to ensure they share
our commitment to quality and ethics. The Group has established an internal anti-bribery policy of which our
suppliers are also aware.

(d) Shareholders and investors

We believe that effective communication and accurate and timely information disclosure facilitate the flow of
constructive feedback and ideas that are beneficial to investor relations and future corporate development.

Results and dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the Group’s financial position as at 31 December
2022 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 197.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Summary of financial information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the years ended 30 June 2018,
30 June 2019 and 30 June 2020, the period ended 31 December 2021 and the year ended 31 December 2022,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out in the “Five Year Financial
Summary” contained in this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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Share capital and share options R 7S e g g 1
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 21 March 2023, the authorised share capital of the Company has BER - ZE_=ZF-A " +—HBBN—BETERER FRILREEIN

increased from HK$300,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to HK$1,000,000,000
divided into 10,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an additional 7,000,000,000 shares.

During the year, the Company issued 4,608,000 Shares in aggregate upon exercise of share options pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme (as set out in the section of “Share Option Schemes” in this report) adopted
by the Company on 12 November 2013 and the consideration received thereon amounted to approximately
HK$2,101,000.

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and share options during the year are set out in
notes 26 and 27, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

On 24 February 2023, the Company proposed to raise gross proceeds of up to approximately HK$465 million
before expenses by way of a rights issue of up to 1,257,784,545 rights ordinary shares (assuming no change in
the number of shares of the Company in issue on or before the record date) at a price of HK$0.37 per rights
share on the basis of one (1) rights share for every two (2) existing shares held by the qualifying shareholders. The
market price on the date which the terms of the subscription were fixed was HK$0.47. Details of the above were
set out in Company’s announcement dated 24 February 2023, circular dated 3 March 2023 and the prospectus
(date 3 April 2023).
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Equity-Linked Agreements

For the year ended 31 December 2022, save as set out in the sections of “Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme” in this report, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked

agreement, nor did any equity-linked agreement subsist at the end of the year.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$171,166,000 Under the laws of Bermuda,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of HK$243,704,000 may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

Major customers and suppliers
In the year under review, sales to the Group’s largest customer and 5 largest customers accounted for 4% and

8% of the total sales for the year, respectively.

Purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and 5 largest suppliers accounted for 11% and 37% of the total
purchases for the year, respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best

knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group's 5 largest suppliers.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. CHEUNG Chi

Mr. ZHAO lJianguo

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul (resigned with effect from 1 May 2022)

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Victor HERRERO
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming

Prof. SIN Yat Ming

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws and pursuant to Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Cheung Chi,
Mr. Zhao Jianguo, Mr. Law Ching Kit, Bosco and Mr. Lee Kwok Ming will retire as Directors by rotation and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming,
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong and considers them to be independent.
Directors’ biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on pages 36 to 40 of the annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

Directors’ remuneration

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group has been set up by the board of directors or executive
directors on the basis of their merits, qualifications and competences.

The emoluments payable to the directors of the Company will be decided by the board of directors on the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and the Chief Executive in the Shares and
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors and chief executive of the Company were deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code"”) are set out below:
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares EENRMDRIERMRN 2

Long positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the Company and its associated — FoKL\E] R EIGH# B2 IR 17 KGR (7 Z 4 &
corporations

(a) The Company — the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (the “Shares”) are a) ARB—ARAFEREERBE0 10Tz EERE (TARA)
listed on the Stock Exchange R ARFT £

Nature of interests

EmiE
Personal Approximate
Interests percentage of
Number of share shareholdings as at
Directors Capacity Corporate Interests options held® Total interests 31 December 2022
[EVN 3 1220225124318
BE 515 NEIEE BEEREHEY REEARER R4 RI L
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Beneficial owner - 14,145,440 14,145,440 0.57%
RERE EHEAA B
3
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo Beneficial owner - 6,054,540 6,054,540 0.25% %
HH 2 [ o BmEBA g
E.
Mr. Victor HERRERO Beneficial owner - 5,045,450 5,045,450 0.20% S
Victor HERREROSE 4 EmBEEA 4
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco Beneficial owner - 3,027,270
BIENSE BmEBA
Interest of Controlled Corporation 348,395,530@ - 351,422,800 14.23%
REGEERE G
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EENRM RARARG 2 Ex (&)
KRR RETFHEE 2 R0 RAGRIR DI E (8

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (continued)

(a) The Company — the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (the “Shares”) are a) ARBE—AAB)ISREEABB.10Tz BB (ThRA)
listed on the Stock Exchange (continued) FRE#3ZFT B ()

Nature of interests

EmitE

Personal Approximate
Interests percentage of
Number of share shareholdings as at

Directors Capacity Corporate Interests options held” Total interests 31 December 2022
EPA 5 5£2022%12A31H
£ 513 REETE HEEREHBY 4R %R ERRBAE DL
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming Beneficial owner - 807,272 807,272 0.03%
§ =ERA SR BEEAA
g
E Prof. SIN Yat Ming Beneficial owner - 403,636 403,636 0.02%
= PA=EiEreE: BEAA
=
08,- Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong Beneficial owner - 403,636 403,636 0.02%
= Wk BEEEA
Co-Chief Executive Officer
BhREITERAR S
Mr. CHANG Min Huei Beneficial owner - 15,000,000 15,000,000 0.61%
SREGHE S E BmEAA
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued) EENRDRERARGN 2 (8)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the Company and its associated FEAR L B R EIGH B 2 R 17 RAGRIR (7 2 47 & ()
corporations (continued)

(b) Associated Corporation — Viva China Holdings Limited (“Viva China"), the ordinary shares of (b) HBEHER —JENFEZEREBRAE (TFEAFE) - EERK

HK$0.05 each of Viva China (“Viva China Shares”) are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange HEABK0.05;c 2 ZEAR (TIERL A BN 1) FRERAIFR
(stock code: 8032) GEM _E7 (B 171855 :8032)
Number of
underlying
Viva China Approximate
Shares and percentage of
Number of share options Viva China’s
Viva China of Viva China issued share
Directors Capacity and nature of interest Shares held held Total Interests capital
FHE MR
FER AR E R 15 R GIERFE
BFHEIENFE FERHE BEITRAE £y
= ShkE=EE RHBEE EREHE R AR EE WABESE §
o
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Beneficial owner 30,000,000 60,000,000 90,000,000 0.93% g
RE&RE BmEREA 3
-+
5]
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo® Beneficial owner 289,666,667 3,333,333 -
R S Bm#EAA
Interest of controlled corporation 12,963,200 -
SR EEED
Interest of spouse - 700,000,000 1,005,963,200 10.39%
BB
Mr. Victor HERRERO Beneficial owner 23,168,000 40,000,000 63,168,000 0.65%
Victor HERRERO%t &= Bm#EBA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

Notes:

(1) These represented the share options granted by the Company to the respective Directors and co-chief
executive officer, the details of which are provided in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
report. As at 31 December 2022, the total issued Shares was 2,470,358,091.

(2) As at 31 December 2022, Keystar Limited (“Keystar”) was directly wholly-owned by Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco.
Therefore, Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco was deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by
Keystar Limited under Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Law is also a director of Keystar.

(3) The share options are exercisable at HK$0.67 per Viva China Share and comprised following: (i) 30,000,000
share options with exercisable period from 18 January 2023 to 17 January 2028; and (ii) 30,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 18 January 2024 to 17 January 2029.

(4) Mr. Zhao Jianguo has personal interest in 289,666,667 Viva China Shares and the share options which are
exercisable into 3,333,333 Viva China Shares. Such share options are exercisable at HK$0.67 per Viva China
Share and comprised following: (i) 1,666,667 share options with exercisable period from 18 January 2023 to
17 January 2028; and (i) 1,666,666 share options with exercisable period from 18 January 2024 to 17 January
2029. Ms. Li Ying, the spouse of Mr. Zhao, has personal interest in the convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$227,500,000 which are convertible into 700,000,000 Viva China Shares. Double Essence
Limited was interested in 12,963,200 Viva China Shares and is owned as to 50% by Mr. Zhao and 50% by Ms.
Li respectively.

(5) The share options are exercisable at HK$0.67 per Viva China Share and comprised following: (i) 20,000,000
share options with exercisable period from 18 January 2023 to 17 January 2028; and (ii) 20,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 18 January 2024 to 17 January 2029.

(6) As at 31 December 2022, the total issued Viva China Shares was 9,680,413,727.
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(1) HEEAREHABESKMETEREFEN 2 BRE  HEFEHN
RIS TRERGREST) —& © 122022128318 » EFITRMDIEE
#32,470,358,091 f% ©

(2) F2022412831H 2 Keystar Limited (Keystar) ) R ERNGEEE
B2ERA -RHIb BIBFSMEAERGIEXVE BIERFTERR
AitKeystar Limited A ZEERNBE THAERT - BEETS
Keystarz &% o

(3) BRETZRERIFENFERMNABE.67TITR > SFEUTEIE !
(VT1EHRA2023F 1B 18HE 2028418 17H2230,000,00015 fE A&
1 K(i){TEER%20245F1818HE202941517H 230,000,000
EBRRHE o

(4) HEERREESAER 289,666,667 IESLHEIG (D K Bl 1T187%3,333,333/8
JERFERMDBPIERETEREAER - BRABRETIZERIEN
FRENRG A B HE0.6771T » BENTRIE | ()THRA20235F18
18HZE2028FE1817H221,666,66710BEIRIE ; K(i)TEHEA2024
F1H188FE2029F1817H22.1,666,66610 BEASHE o #5E 4 AUFRIE
TN+ R AL TEAEN227,500,00070 B B ##:17700,000,000
RRIERL BRI B iR E SR A B A% ° Double Essence
Limited$*12,963,200RIEFLFEIR M F#HEE# = > MDouble
Essence Limited o4 e 2= =0 BB 50% K50 % 1 ©

(5) ZEBRETZESRIFNTERMD B0 67TITE  BEUTE
TH ()T EHAZA2023F1H18HE 2028518 17H2220,000,000
B ; R()ITHEHA2024F1818HE2029F1817HZ
20,000,00017 FE A1 ©
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, the following persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or the underlying shares of
the Company which would have to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions), or which were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

FERRNELQE RN RBRRN 2

A B TF+ZR=+—H BEFEMM TIAL (EFHAERET
BHBEPRIN RA R B RM SARR R PR RIEEZF R EFRAIEXV
BHE2RIDWEX AR A AR R AR EN DR A (BERER
BES RO 2 Z SRR BRRURRER < BmEURA) N H N AR
B SFA A E336F RAEF 2 B MANREIN A ZRERINT !

REREZ R RIERERDZIFE

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s

Capacity and Number of issued share

Name nature of interest shares held capital

HEATBET

[EEape Y B kiEHENE BERHEE AL T L
)
Viva China Holdings Limited™ Interest of controlled corporation 1,393,582,122 56.41% 8
JERREERARAT Stk E S g
Mr. LI Ning @ Interest of controlled corporation 1,393,582,122 56.41% %
FEELED SEREERED =
Mr. LI Chun @ Interest of controlled corporation 1,393,582,122 56.41% 3
FiERED SR EEED a3

Keystar Limited® Beneficial owner 348,395,530 14.10%

Keystar Limited® Bm#EBA

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 5 3



wv
s
[e]
o
o
(0]
=
©
()
I=
=
vl
(o]
4+
=
[}
o
()
o
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Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2022, Dragon Leap Consumables Limited (“Dragon Leap”) is wholly-owned by Viva China
Consumables Holdings Limited which is in turn wholly-owned by Viva China. Therefore, Viva China was deemed
to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Dragon Leap under Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Cheung Chi is a
director of Dragon Leap and Viva China Consumables Holdings Limited.

(2) As at 31 December 2022, Mr. LI Ning and Mr. LI Chun were deemed to be interested in the Viva China Shares
through their interests in Lead Ahead Limited, Victory Mind Assets Limited and Dragon City Management (PTC)
Limited, which held approximately 22.03%, 17.35% and 20.66% respectively and in aggregate approximately
60.04% of the total issued share capital of Viva China as at 31 December 2022. Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Li Chun have
personal interests of approximately 0.22% and 0.62% respectively in the Viva China Shares. Therefore, Mr. LI Ning
and Mr. LI Chun were deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Viva China under Part XV of
the SFO.

(3) As at 31 December 2022, Keystar Limited (“Keystar”) was directly wholly-owned by Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco.
Therefore, Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco was deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by Keystar
Limited under Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Law is also a director of Keystar.

Save as disclosed above and so far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2022, no person (other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would have to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions), or which were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section
“Share option scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Share option scheme fBRe RS2

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating and RABIR I EREST B (TSI E))) ST MIER Y A EE A
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. HERMZ B2 HE &t 2 BN R e M SRR 27 E
Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Detail of movements of the share options under the Share Option Scheme of the Company for the year ended 31 BES - F+A=+—HLEFE A EBREEETHNER
December 2022 is as follows: TR ENFIBUI T .

Number of Share Options

BRREHE
Granted Exercised
Balance as during during Lapsed during Balance as
Date of Grant at 1.1.2022 the year the year the year at 31.12.2022
720224 20225
A 1A1BZ &R FREH FERITE FRE% 12A31BZ &R
Directors
=2
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 05.01.2021 16,145,440 - (2,000,000) - 14,145,440 %
B L i
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo 05.01.2021 6,054,540 - - - 6,054,540 4t gh
HERESLE ® o
Mr. Victor HERRERO 05.01.2021 5,045,450 - - - 5,045,45000) ITI; &
Victor HERRERO G4 o 3
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco 05.01.2021 3,027,270 - - - 3,027,2701W) §
BIENSE a
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming 05.01.2021 807,272 - - - 807,27200
FEIFRESE
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 05.01.2021 403,636 - - - 403,636
it H BREUE
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong 05.01.2021 403,636 - - - 403,636
BEaRES
31,887,244 - (2,000,000) - 29,887,244
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REetEst Rl (48)

Number of Share Options

Share option scheme (continued)

BRREHE
Granted Exercised
Balance as during during Lapsed during Balance as
Date of Grant at 1.1.2022 the year the year the year at 31.12.2022
120224 20224
= b 1818 Z 48 FREH FRITE FERKY 12831824
Co-Chief Executive Officer
BrFEIT I 4B EL
Mr. CHANG Min Huei 16.11.2021 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
SRER B A
15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
Other employees
@ HitES
g In aggregate 05.01.2021 45,005,415 - (2,608,000) (23,090,522) 19,306,893
g At
E In aggregate 14.05.2021 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) i
i &t
= In aggregate 23.08.2021 10,000,000 - - (10,000,000) e
S N
& In aggregate 16.11.2021 5,000,000 - - (2,000,000) 3,000,000
it
In aggregate 23.03.2022 - 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000@
it
In aggregate 17.11.2022 - 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000@
it
62,005,415 29,000,000 (2,608,000) (37,090,522) 51,306,893
108,892,659 29,000,000® (4,608,000)® (37,090,522) 96,194,137
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Share option scheme (continued) fBRe RSt E (48)
Notes: M 5F
(1) (M
Number of Share Options
IBiiEEE
Exercise Price Balance as Balance as
Date of Grant per Share Exercisable Period at 1.1.2022 at 31.12.2022
- 1220224 720224
g =B SRERHITEE 1T1EH 1A1BZ &R 128318z &8
(HK$)
(B
(i) 05.01.2021 0.456 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026 5,380,000 3,380,000
01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026 5,380,000 5,380,000
01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026 5,385,440 5,385,440
(ii) 05.01.2021 0.456 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026 2,018,000 2,018,000
01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026 2,018,000 2,018,000
01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026 2,018,540 2,018,540
(iii) 05.01.2021 0.456 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026 1,680,000 1,680,000
01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026 1,682,000 1,682,000
01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026 1,683,450 1,683,450
(iv) 05.01.2021 0.456 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026 1,008,000 1,008,000
01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026 1,008,000 1,008,000
01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026 1,011,270 1,011,270
(v) 05.01.2021 0.456 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026 268,000 268,000
01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026 268,000 268,000
01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026 271,272 271,272
(vi) 05.01.2021 0.456 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026 134,000 134,000
01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026 134,000 134,000
01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026 135,636 135,636
(vii) 16.11.2021 1.060 16.11.2022 - 15.11.2027 5,000,000 5,000,000
16.11.2023 - 15.11.2027 5,000,000 5,000,000
16.11.2024 - 15.11.2027 5,000,000 5,000,000
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Share option scheme (continued) MRt (B)
Notes: (continued) Misx : (@
(2) (2)
Number of Share Options
BREHE
Exercise Price Balance as Balance as
Date of Grant per Share Exercisable Period at 1.1.2022 at 31.12.2022
~ ~ 720224 20224
el =P SREAITES 1TfEHR 118z &8 128318 Z &8k
(HKS$)
CE)
(i) 05.01.2021 0.456 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026 14,988,000 6,654,000
01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026 14,992,000 6,318,000
01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026 15,025,415 6,334,893
(i) 14.05.2021 0.510 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026 666,000 -
01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026 666,000 -
- 01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026 668,000 -
S
S
§ (iii) 23.08.2021 0.620 08.08.2022 - 07.08.2027 3,332,000 -
E 08.08.2023 - 07.08.2027 3,334,000 -
< 08.08.2024 - 07.08.2027 3,334,000 -
3
15)
g (iv) 16.11.2021 1.060 16.11.2022 - 15.11.2027 1,660,000 996,000
§' 16.11.2023 - 15.11.2027 1,670,000 1,002,000
16.11.2024 - 15.11.2027 1,670,000 1,002,000
(v) 23.03.2022 0.660 23.03.2023 - 22.03.2028 - 6,997,000
23.03.2024 - 22.03.2028 - 6,997,000
23.03.2025 - 22.03.2028 - 7,006,000
(vi) 17.11.2022 0.390 17.11.2023 - 16.11.2028 - 2,666,000
17.11.2024 - 16.11.2028 - 2,666,000
17.11.2025 - 16.11.2028 - 2,668,000
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Share option scheme (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(©)

The exercise price and number of share options granted on 5 January 2021 were adjusted after completion of rights
issue of the Company on 12 April 2021.

(i) On 23 March 2022, the Company granted share options entitling subscription of a total of 21,000,000 Shares
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and the closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on
which the such share options were granted was HK$0.690.

(i)  On 17 November 2022, the Company granted share options entitling subscription of a total of 8,000,000
Shares pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and the closing price of the Shares immediately before the date
on which such share options were granted was HK$0.395.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme were cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which the options were exercised
was HK$0.658.

The number of options available for grant under the Share Option Scheme was 50,685,280 as at 1 January 2022
and 58,775,802 as at 31 December 2022 respectively. As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 63,472,522, representing approximately 2.57% of the existing
number of issued shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, options to subscribe for a total of 29,000,000 shares were granted under
the Share Option Scheme, representing approximately 1.17% of the weighted average number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company.

The value of Share Options

Share option do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was HK$6,694,000 in aggregate, which was

estimated as at the respective date of grant or adjustment, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
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@ 0
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(5) EZFE2022FE128310ILEE B EEREST BT 2 BREW Y-

(6) BRIEZERMEETHEEHAZRMOMEFEWTESBE0.6587T
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Share option scheme (continued)
The value of Share Options (continued)

The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

FARRfEctEl (4)
BIEEE ()
TR FURAN G A 2 8 A B

23 March 2022 17 November 2022
Date of grant BHBH 202243H23H 20224118178
Dividend yield (%) S EE (%) 4.84 4.09
Expected volatility (%) TEHR R BN(%) 69.17 71.34
Risk-free interest rate (%) 12 B P K 2 (%) 2.03 3.67
Expected life of share options (year) FERRETEST R () 6.0 6.0
Share price (HK$ per share) 1B (BRe B TT) 0.660 0.390

The fair values are inherently subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the
model used.

The expected life of the share options is based on the historical data over the past 6 years and is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, the holding company of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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Controlling shareholder’s interests in contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the
controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or any contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Group were entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

Permitted indemnity provision

The Bye-laws provide that each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has
maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the
Directors.

Sufficiency of public float
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.

Continuing connected transactions

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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On 30 March 2021, Bossini Enterprises Limited (“Bossini Enterprises”) and Viva China Sports Holding Limited
("Viva China Sports”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Viva China Holdings Limited entered into a sub-tenancy
agreement (the “Sub-Tenancy Agreement”). Pursuant to the Sub-Tenancy Agreement, the annual caps
receivable by the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and for the financial year ended
31 December 2022 are HK$4.2 million and HK$6.0 million respectively. The Company’s principal place of
business is at Second floor of PopOffice, No. 9 Tong Yin Street, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories, Hong
Kong (the "Office Premises”). The Office Premises were rented for use as office premises of the Group and
the Company will continue to use portions of the Office Premises as its principal place of business after the
commencement of the Sub-Tenancy Agreement. The reason for granting the sub-tenancy of a portion of the
Office Premises to Viva China Sports under the Sub-Tenancy Agreement was to create synergy between the
Group and the Viva China Holdings Limited group and to facilitate the smooth operation of the business of
the Group after Viva China Holdings Limited acquired a controlling stake in the Company in July 2020.

On 18 March 2022, Bossini Enterprises and Viva China Sports entered into a supplemental agreement to
Sub-Tenancy Agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”). Set out below is a summary of the key terms
of the Sub-Tenancy Agreement which were amended or added pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement:
(i) Term: 33 months commencing from 1 April 2021 and expiring on 31 December 2023 (both days
inclusive); (i) Rent: HK$269,930 per calendar month (exclusive of service and management charges, rates
and other outgoings payable in respect of the Premises); and (iii) Other Charges: service and management
charges, rates, electricity charges, general cleaning charges, air-conditioning maintenance charges, water
dispenser, fire equipment service and door access control maintenance charges in the aggregate sum of:
HK$86,960 per calendar month for the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 December 2021 and HK$140,956
per calendar month for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2023. pursuant to the terms of the
Supplemental Agreement, the major changes were that the expiry date of the Sub-Tenancy Agreement was
extended from 31 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and the rental and other charges payable by Viva
China Sports to Bossini Enterprises were reduced, the details of which were disclosed in the announcements
dated 30 March 2021 and 18 March 2022. The revised annual cap receivable by the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2022 and the new annual cap for the financial year ending 31 December 2023 are
both HK$5.5 million.

On 28 April 2021, EMNHERMBEEXFRAF (“Guangzhou Bossini”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and JEZ AR (LEB)BRAF (“Viva Technology”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Viva China
Holdings Limited entered into an e-commerce cooperation agreement (the “E-Commerce Cooperation
Agreement”) for provision of e-commerce services to Guangzhou Bossini for a term from 1 May 2021 and
ending on 31 December 2023. Viva Technology shall be entitled to receive a monthly service fee of 8% of
the Gross merchandise volume. On 18 March 2022, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group and
Viva Technology entered into a live streaming cooperation agreement (the “Live Streaming Cooperation
Agreement”) for provision of live streaming services to certain subsidiaries of the Group a term commencing
from 18 March 2022 and ending on 31 December 2023.
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BEEERESE

A summary of the fees charged by Viva Technology is set out below:

Live
streaming

E#

Renovation and
provision of
equipment for live
streaming booth

EREzRBREMHERE

IFRERRHRFIWE . BRI E&HIIMT:

Short video
production

AR (E

Short video
promotion

TRk E

Category A e-commerce/social media platforms
(currently covers Taobao, JD.com. Kuaishou)

MNEBTHEE/ MIEETE
(BEREEEE RRRRT)

Category B e-commerce/social media platforms
(currently covers TMall)

BESFEY, /MIBETE (BEEXRHE)

A fixed service fee of RMB40,000 per month
per each live streaming booth (inclusive of
tax)

SEERHEAEERFEAARE
40,0007 (B7)

RMB400 per hour (inclusive of tax)

&)\ AR 4007 (BT

One-off fee of RMB60,000 per each live
streaming booth (inclusive of tax)

SEEERERNE AKE60,0007T (217)

For each campaign for initiating customer's
interests in a product/brand: RMB1,000 per
video (inclusive of tax)

SHEARRERRHER,/mBEEY
EE  BERAARE0007T (B17)

For each product: RMB800 per video
(inclusive of tax)

With a minimum number of 10 videos per
month for each production above.
SEEL  SERBARES0T (B1)

N EBEREGAED0ERA-

RMB2,000 per month (inclusive of tax)

SR AR2,0007T (B1)
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The execution of the E-commence Cooperation Agreement and Live Streaming Cooperation Agreement
would enable the Group to leverage on the expertise of Viva Technology to expand its online distribution
networks in the PRC and enhance online sales of the Group. As the Live Streaming Cooperation Agreement
and the E-Commerce Cooperation Agreement are entered into between the Group and Viva Technology
in respect of services relating to e-commerce, the transactions contemplated under the Live Streaming
Cooperation Agreement and the E-Commerce Cooperation Agreement were aggregated under the Listing
Rules, the details of which were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 28 April 2021
and 18 March 2022. For the E-Commerce Cooperation Agreement and the Live Streaming Cooperation
Agreement, the annual caps payable by the Group for the financial years ended 31 December 2021 and
2022 and for the financial year ending 31 December 2023 are RMB12 million, RMB26 million and RMB29.5
million respectively.

On 7 September 2021, E %= E Z(FIINERAE (“Shenzhen Bossini”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and JEN$BHEE S 2 EUIER)ARA S, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Viva China Holdings Limited
entered into a sportswear sponsorship cooperation agreement (the “Sportswear Sponsorship Cooperation
Agreement”), the details of which were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 7 September
2021. Pursuant to the Sportswear Sponsorship Cooperation Agreement, Shenzhen Bossini shall (i) pay an
annual cooperation fee of RMB4 million; (ii) supply sportswear to a sports team in PRC (the “Sports Team”)
with an aggregate amount of RMB3.2 million per year; (iii) supply sports gear to the Sports Team; (iv)
share 5% of the revenue for sale of franchised products of the Sports Team with a sport association in the
PRC; and (v) provide rewards of not more than RMB1 million if the Sports Team is awarded medals in an
international sporting event. The execution of the Sportswear Sponsorship Cooperation Agreement offered
the Group with an opportunity to provide sponsorship to the Sports Team which was beneficial to the Group
in promoting its new brand image. For the Sportswear Sponsorship Cooperation Agreement, the annual caps
payable by the Group are RMB20 million for each of the financial years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022
and for the financial year ending 31 December 2023.
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As at 31 December 2022, Viva China Holdings Limited indirectly holds approximately 56.41% shares in the
Company, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company and thus is a connected person of the Company.

The Company has complied with the relevant disclosure requirements in respect of the above continuing
connected transactions, and confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) in accordance with the Group's pricing policies for transactions involving the provision of services to the
Group;

(3) on normal commercial terms; and

(4) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders as a whole.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the continuing connected transactions arising from the
above agreements for the year ended 31 December 2022 and confirmed that the transactions were:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

() in accordance with the above Agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
Company’s shareholders as a whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, was engaged to report on the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and reported their conclusions to the Board that the transactions:

(1) have been approved by the Board;

(2) have been in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group (for transactions involving the provision of
services to the Group);

(3) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and
(4) have not exceeded the annual cap as set out by the Company.

Auditor

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 17 November 2020, Ernst & Young retired as auditor of
the Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers were appointed as auditor of the Company. PricewaterhouseCoopers
were re-appointed as auditor of the Company at the annual general meetings of the Company held on 10
November 2021 and 14 June 2022. Save as disclosed above, there has been no other changes of auditor in the
past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company's auditor.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Victor HERRERO
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B IZHENR S

.
pwc B R Rk

To the Shareholders of Bossini International Holdings Limited NENMEEREEERATRE
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREIMBLNERAE)
Opinion 2R

What we have audited HPIEHEFHIAZE

The consolidated financial statements of Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its ENEEBERERAR U THEBIEAR) REWB AT WA T#7TE

subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 77 to 197, comprise: EEE) JENFE7T7R197BN GG BRER 81
e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022; e MRIZTI-FF+-A=1+—HHRESHHERREK;
e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended; s HEZBIFENGSERREMEEWRER ;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended:; s HEZBILIFENGEHmEIHERE;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and s HEZALFENGRESREMRER, K

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
("the Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

e Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
e Inventory provision

IR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Key Audit Matters (continued)
Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Refer to notes 4(a), 15 and 17 to the consolidated

financial statements.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures relating to impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets included:

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying value of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted to -
HK$33.4 million (after impairment provision of HK$21.6
million), and right-of-use assets amounted to HK$89.2
million (after impairment provision of HK$56.8 million).

7 O ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3R

Understood and evaluated the internal controls
over the Group's process in the identification
of relevant retail stores having impairment
indicators and preparation of the cash flow
forecasts;

Assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

Tested the reasonableness of the data used
and challenged management’s key assumptions
adopted in the future cash flow forecasts,
mainly in relation to:

the budgeted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with historical financial
data of the stores and questioning business
plans with senior management;
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BIALZHETRS

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

The operation of the Group’s retail stores was adversely
affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and
certain of the Group's retail stores were loss making
during the year. Management regards each individual
retail store as a separate Group's cash generating units
(“CGU") and carried out impairment assessment by
determining the recoverable amounts of the retail
store assets which have impairment indicators. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less cost of disposal and its value-in-use. Management
considers that the recoverable amount of the assets
of the relevant retail stores is determined by value-
in-use (“VIU") calculations using discounted cash
flow projections based on sales forecast prepared
by management with major assumptions including
budgeted sales and gross margin, revenue growth rates
and discount rates.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets balances, and the significant
judgement and estimation involved in determining the
recoverable amounts of the relevant assets subject to
impairment assessment.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ii. the revenue growth rates, by comparing
them with the historical financial data
and considering the available industry and
market information; and

ii. the discount rates, by comparing them with
costs of capital of comparable companies;

— Tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the recoverable amounts of
those stores subject to impairment test; and

—  Evaluated the management’s sensitivity analysis
to ascertain the extent of the change in the
key assumptions that would result in the retail
store assets being impaired and discussed with
management the likelihood of such a change in
the key assumptions arising.

Based on the procedures described above, we found
that the impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets made by
management to be supported by available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
Inventory provision

Refer to notes 4(b) and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net inventories
of HK$171.9 million, carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value in the consolidated financial statements.

The apparel industry is highly correlated to seasonal
factors, economic environments, customers’ preferences
and competitor actions which affect the amount of
inventory provision to be provided. The Group has an
inventory provision policy and such provision is made
for inventory items whose costs may not be fully
recoverable. The inventory provision is estimated by
reference to data such as inventory ageing, historical
sales experience, expected subsequent period-end sales.

We focus on this area due to the magnitude of
inventories balances, and the judgment involved in
estimating the net realisable value in management'’s
assessment.

7 2 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures relating to inventory provision
included:

Understood and evaluated the internal controls
over the Group's process in (a) the estimation of
net realisable value and (b) periodic reviews of
inventory obsolescence, on a sample basis;

Assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

Tested the ageing of inventory items categorised
into different seasons by checking to relevant
supporting documents such as goods receipt
notes on a sample basis, and recalculated the
mathematical accuracy of the provision made
for the selected items; and
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter

Inventory provision (continued)

Other Information

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

— Assessed the reasonableness of the provisions
by challenging management’s projections on
current trends and demands for the remaining
inventories, with reference to historical sales
experience and comparing the carrying values of
inventories items, on a sample basis, to actual
prices for subsequent period-end sales.

Based on the procedures described above, we found
that management’s judgments in estimating the
inventory provision to be supported by available
evidence.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Xu Yi Jing, Vivian.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EnREMEERRR

Year ended 31 December 2022 E}Zfz_giiﬁyr:ﬁ =+—HLEFE

Year ended Period ended
Notes 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
FTE"C BHE_Z_—F
) +-A=+— +—B=+—H . -
HK$'000 s LHEE LEHARS BT T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS ?—:,.e.‘é%%%‘%
REVENUE 6 585,155 1,164,075
Cost of sales 8 (311,931) (567,816) %ﬁ%ﬁ}zﬁ
GROSS PROFIT 273,224 596,259 EF
Other income and gain 6 212,998 56,517 HMBA WS
Selling, distribution and other operating expenses (438,659) (702,486) HEDIHREMEERS
Administrative expenses (169,614) (272,689) TEFEZ
LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (122,051) (322,399) EEEBEIR
Finance costs 7 (9,832) (14,768) BhE AN
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 8 (131,883) (337,167) FRASE B 2 IR M A SR
Income tax expense 11 (371) (2,892) Fri8fix
LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD FROM CONTINUING REREEBZER RS
OPERATIONS (132,254) (340,059)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BARIEEFR
Loss for the year/period from a discontinued operation 12 - (378) BRIEERER/BBRER
LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO TATEE ARBILER,BREE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (132,254) (340,437)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME Hit2mE (§518) s
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to HEEGEMDHEEERZIER @
profit or loss:
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign operation FER/HBREBCHE MBI ERE 2 B IEAE
deregistered during the year/period - (625) . )
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (15,265) 15,299 HMEBINETE 2 THAERE
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME (15,265) 14,674 Hth2m3F (5518) W&
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD TATEEARIGER BREEGIREEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (147,519) (325,763)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY TATEBEEEHE ARESKRSE
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14
Basic HAR
— For loss for the year/period (HK5.36 cents )  (HK16.52 cents 7 1lli) EW/ HAnNEE
— For loss from continuing operations (HK5.36 cents #{ll) (HK16.50 cents A l) — R EERH 2 B1E
Diluted e

— For loss for the year/period
— For loss from continuing operations

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

(HK5.36 cents #{ll)
(HK5.36 cents #{ll)

(HK16.52 cents L)
(HK16.50 cents 1Ll

MR
—FREEEBZBE

e ELA 20 TE ATt 2 P ER BB P B = — BB o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e RE

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

Notes 2022 2021
HK$'000 (=2 —E-= —=——F ST 5T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment (15 33,382 27,206 Y E R R
Investment properties 16 4,101 4,687 KREY=
Right-of-use assets 17 89,221 112,261 EREEE
Deferred tax assets 25 300 311 IR IEE =
Deposits 20 28,567 33,811 &
Total non-current assets 155,571 178,276 ERBEELE
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories 18 171,866 186,592 F&
Debtors 19 24,559 25,393 FEWAR R
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 20 68,526 75,551 FE(ITRRIE ~ % K EAh FE UL AR TE
Pledged bank deposits 21 127 1,959 BIERIRITER
Cash and cash equivalents 21 93,142 266,655 BERIFEEEER

358,220 556,150

Assets classified as held for sale 22 = 9,437 DIEAREHEZBE
Total current assets 358,220 565,587 MEBEEEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Trade creditors, other payables and accruals 23 150,601 210,324 FETERR s B (I R IB A e ER 1B
Contract liabilities 24 3,739 3,464 SHE8E
Bills payable 14,812 11,693 FE(T R4
Tax payable 1,196 2,635 fE#IRIE
Due to fellow subsidiaries 33 1,527 5,377 BB RMBABRIE
Due to related companies 33 1,474 - FESRIE A R RIA
Lease liabilities 17 74,643 91,844 HESRE
Total current liabilities 247,992 325,337 REBEEEE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 110,228 240,250 mENEEFRE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 265,799 418,526 RmEhaERsESE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HREFBRRE

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

Notes 2022 2021
HK$'000 v - B BT T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBIEE
Deferred tax liabilities 25 410 1,254 FIERIBEEE
Lease liabilities 17 140,083 155,783 HEEE
Other payables 23 5,003 2,469 HMFEFRIE
Total non-current liabilities 145,496 159,506 IERENBERE
NET ASSETS 120,303 259,020 BEEEE
EQUITY R
Issued capital 26 247,036 246,575 BETRA
Reserves 29 (126,733) 12,445 &
TOTAL EQUITY 120,303 259,020 ERiEE

The financial statements on pages 77 to 197 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2023 and HNFE7T7TER 17BN BREREN S F=F _+—HEEE =L

were signed on its behalf.

CHEUNG Chi RS
Director E&

o WHNTEREARESB

ZHAO Jianguo HEEH
Director %

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying itths S BT R R FE B M M MY S — RS sE o

notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
rEEmEERE

Year ended 31 December 2022 #EZ"Z " "F+_"HA=+—HILFE

Share
Issued premium
HK$'000 Notes capital account

BT Wi BRfTRE RNDEER

Share
option
reserve

AR

Capital
reserve
(note a)
BRfkE
(Mfta)

Contributed
surplus
(note b)

BARER
(FizEb)

Asset
revaluation
reserve
BEEMR
fikfE

Exchange Reserve
fluctuation funds
reserve (note ¢)
SMNERE fEES
it (F5Ec)

Accumulated
losses

REtHR

At 1 January 2022

A_E_"&—HF—H 246,575 241,462
Loss for the year

FREE = =
Other comprehensive loss for the year:

FRHEMPESSE !

Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations

BEBIEBZ RHER - -

7,300

(3.292)

90,258

9,395

266 1,810

(15,265) -

(334,754)

(132,254)

259,020

(132,254)

(15,265)

Total comprehensive loss for the year
FRZABHREE - -
Exercise of share options
TiefERE 461 2,242
Equity-settled share option expenses
BaERBRESN 27 - -
Transfer of asset revaluation reserve upon disposal

of assets classified as held for sale = =
REENEAFIFHEZ BERBREESLHE
Transfer of share option reserve upon

the forfeiture of expired share options

REEMERERNFBRBERERRE 27 - -

(602)

6,701

(841)

(6,231)

(15,265) -

(132,254)

6,231

841

(147,519)

2,101

6,701

At 31 December 2022
A B TFE+"A=1—H 247,036 243,704*

12,558*

(3.292)*

90,258*

3,164*

(14,999)* 1,810%

(459,936)*

120,303
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e EnEERE

Year ended 31 December 2022 §E"Z " "F+_"A=+—HIFE

Share Share Capital  Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve
Issued premium option reserve surplus revaluation fluctuation funds  Accumulated Total
HK$'000 Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve (note ¢) losses equity
EENE N BHES PN E EEES
BT st BETRE  ROGEER BRERE (Mizta) (Rfz2b) it T (M¥zkc) REtEE RmiaE
At July 2020
ATETELA—H 164,134 29,020 29,547 (3,292) 90,258 9,395 (14,408) 1,810 (25,004) 281,460
Loss for the period
HREE - - - - - - - - (340,437) (340,437)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period:
BNHM2ERS (B8
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign operation
deregistered during the period
MREUHE MBI R 2 EMNERE - - - - - - (625) - - (625)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations
MEBMNEBZ DHER - - - - - - 15,299 - - 15,299
Total comprehensive loss for the period
HREEEEAE - - - - - - 14,674 - (340,437) (325,763)
Exercise of share options
TeERE 249 603 (164) - - - - - - 688
Equity-settled share option expenses
EaEERRES W 27 - - 8,604 - - - - - - 8,604
Cancellation of share options
SHIERE AR 27 = = (30,687) = = = = = 30,687 =
Shares issued under rights issue
REMARETZRM 82,192 213,698 - - - - - - - 295,890
Transaction costs incurred in respect of rights issue
REREEZ RFHA - (1,859) - - - - - - - (1,859) S
@ B,
At 31 December 2021 g 2
RZZ_—F+_F=+—H 246,575 241,462* 7,300* (3,292)* 90,258* 9,395* 266* 1,810* (334,754)* 259,020 i g..
3
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of negative HK$126,733,000 (2021: positive * ERERBEESINGEMBRARAZGEHBEER %.
HK$12,445,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 126,733,00070 (Z & ——4F : [EAE#12,445,0007T) © S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
M’I:l* Eﬁ@]%ﬁ%

Year ended 31 December 2022 #EZ"Z " "F+_"HA=+—HILFE

Notes:

(@) The capital reserve of the Group represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years.

(b) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the share capital issued
by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and the share premium account of the subsidiaries acquired

pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993.

() In accordance with the financial regulations applicable in mainland China, a portion of the profit of a subsidiary in
mainland China has been transferred to the reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HWWJI%EEUHEE%E

Year ended 31 December 2022 E"Z " "F+_"A=+—HIFE

Year ended Period ended
Notes 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
(EZE-C e
HK$'000 iz +ZA=t+—HLEE +ZA=+—HLHH BETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEEBIRERE
Loss before tax BRI AIES 8
From continuing operations (131,883) (337,167) REFHELSER
From a discontinued operation = (378) REBRIEH
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs 7 9,832 14,768 MEMAE
Interest income 6 (1,419) (2,966) FIEWA
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories 8 1,002 (11,548) FEEE/ BERRE)
Loss on disposaliwrite-off of property, plant and equipment, net 8 982 369 HE MHEYE BERREZFEER
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale 6.8 (173,685) = HERFHEZBEZ NG
Gain on early termination of leases 8 (2,801) (4,538) RELIHEEZ R
Write-back of rent payables 8 (16,745) - g e
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 8 21,563 21,548 ME-BERZERE
Impairment of right-of-use assets 8 56,777 94,472 FREEEZRE
Impairment of trademark 8 = 1,164 BIREE
Impairment of debtors 8 = 248 USRI 2 (B
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of deposits and other e REMBWEIREY (RERR) /HE
receivables 8 (10) 1,350
Write-off of debtors 8 = 335 FEWCER TR 2 i
Write-off of deposits and other receivables 8 547 132 e M E MR 2 i
Fair value losses, net on financial assets/liabilities at REGRBRATERZSHEE AEY
fair value through profit or loss ATEFEE
— transactions not qualifying as hedges 8 - 586 T REEAHREHNI S
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 8 79,467 157,872 FREEEZITE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and ME-BERZEARZENEZTE
investment properties 8 17,036 26,119
Equity-settled share option expense 8 6,701 8,604 ERGERRERS
(132,636) (29,030)
Decrease in inventories 42,980 39,123 EERD
Decrease in debtors 6,422 24113 FEMER TR
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables 24,494 16,334 BRIE e REMBEUERER D
(Decrease)/increase in trade creditors, other payables and accruals (109,632) 85,924 FEIBRA E R TIE R BT ERIE GRlsb) /8m
Increase/(decrease) in bills payable 3,119 (584) FEREREE/ L)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to related companies 1,474 (71) FENBREARZIEEM/ CRirb)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries (3,850) 5,377 )ﬁﬁﬂ% B ATRUE (Bl /18
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 216 (120) BHEEEm,/ (i)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (167,413) 41,066 HEER (i) /55
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘7r | Eﬁ:@/}”_i%

Year ended 31 December 2022 #EZ"Z " "F+_"HA=+—HILFE

Year ended Period ended
Notes 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
(EZE-C e
HK$'000 iz +ZA=t+—HLEE +ZA=+—HLLHH BETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZEEIHIHTRE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (167,413) 141,066 %@%i%z (F#E) /PSR E
Interest portion of lease payments (9,832) (12, 887) HEMTZH SR
Interest paid - (1,881) BANE
Hong Kong profits tax paid (2,092 (2.352) BUEERNE
Overseas taxes paid (551) (604) B /lﬁl\ﬁiﬁ
NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM OPERATING BEEHZ (i) /FIERERERE
ACTIVITIES (179,888) 123,342
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES kﬁ,@]ziﬁﬁ, e
Interest received 1,419 2,966 B S ‘
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (49,166) (43,804) BEN= BERRMHE
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 30(b) 631 1,397 HEWE BB R BT F A
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale 30(c) 183,122 - &%ﬁfﬁﬁ%zéﬁﬁme TIE .
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits with original maturity NEREEHARB=EA 2 ARERTESRL / (8m)
of more than three months when acquired 1,832 (1,903)
NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING REEBZAR/ (i) e Re8E
ACTIVITIES 137,838 (41,344)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEDZRERE
Repayment of bank loans - (59,721) BRRTER
Addition of loan from immediate holding company - 100,000 BEERARETIEM
Repayment of loan from immediate holding company - (100,000) Taﬁﬁ?ﬁ’“ﬁ%ﬁg EA
Principal portion of lease payments (127,850) (234,761) AENRZ AL TR
Proceeds from issue of shares upon rights issue - 295,890 R TR Z TS FIE
Transaction costs incurred in respect of rights issue - (1,859) REREL L %ﬁZZJX o
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of share options 2,101 688 TR R TR 2 PREFIE
NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM FINANCING MEEBZ (F) /FERERETRE
ACTIVITIES (125,749) 237
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (167,799) 82,235 RERREEEERZF (BL) /1M
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year/period 266,655 176,339 fﬂﬂ/ﬁﬁ%ﬂzfﬁé&iﬁéfﬁlﬁﬁ
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (5,714) 8,081 SMNERMEET 7 E
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR/PERIOD 93,142 266,655 F8R /R 7ASRAEEHEER
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERGEESERRGHA
Cash and bank balances 21 93,142 240,236 RERIRT] %Efr
Non-pledged bank deposits with original maturity of BENETIHHE DR =EA 2 BIEHETER
less than three months when acquired 21 - 26,419
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated statement GERERERMTZRE RS ZEER
of cash flows 21 93,142 266,655

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) was principally engaged in investment
holding and the retailing, distribution and wholesaling of garments.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), unless otherwise
stated and have been approved for issue by board of Directors on 21 March 2023.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 (“"HKCOQO"). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost convention.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

—RRE R

ENMEERERBERAR (TARF)) IR EREFMRIIZAER
NEeAAT) Z M EEE I Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda°ZNA BRI TEE BH &R ZFTAIR
NE) (TBRP)) Ee

ERBEIREWBAR ((AEE) RERETERSEREZRMBRKS
E DR E

BRIFR AR BRIZFHGRAMBRRHLBE (TB)) 29 KER
R Rt —HHEFEHEH MR-

FESHBERME

AR ERRZ SOV HIRRSA RN T2 E S BERBE fR
SHERAIN ZEBERIFIA 2RAEEH—BER M HBHRERT AAE
£E (AR EREMBABAEM) R

2.1 iREAE

(a) BFEEMBERENRFTEARFRM
FERGRAVHREACRBEE BN HERER ((EBHFHERE
A1) RREBREEG (556228) (BEATEA) NIRERER
B AR EMBRECIRBEE A A RS

R AE BN B ERENGEM B RAREERETERS
sHbst - EEEINAREAAER G S BERFH LA E S RS
REAEBIERT URRRAAHREMBREMSBERZ
IS MIEE AR ER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) Change of financial year end date

On 25 February 2021, the Board announced that the financial year end date of the Company has
been changed from 30 June to 31 December commencing from the financial period ended 31
December 2021 in order to align its financial year end date with the controlling shareholder of the
Company. The comparative figures presented for the audited consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, audited consolidated statement of changes in equity and audited
consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes cover the audited figures of the financial
period from 1 July 2020 to 31 December 2021 which may not be comparable with the amounts
shown for the current year.

(c) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for its annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2022:

HKAS 16 (Amendments) Amendments to HKAS 16 — Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use

HKAS 37 (Amendments) Amendments to HKAS 37 — Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised) Revised Accounting Guideline 5 - Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations

Annual Improvements Project Amendments to Annual Improvements Project — Annual

(Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.1 {REUEEE (B)
(d) RNz FhIEMAER B s2ie

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(d) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Effective for

have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable HERMHNIERRRZRZEEEATE.

future transactions.

accounting period KU BER
beginning R BB
on or after BB AR
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as 1 January 2024 HAGTZEL ERGHENFISEZB] — BEF, —TOF
Current or Non-current F15% (RMEST) 2B ATAFELIEETAE —B—H
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current liabilities with 1 January 2024 EAE gL SRGTENFISEZB] — HEZ —TOF
Covenants Bk (IEE])  ZZIEnEEaE —B—H
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice  Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 — 1 January 2023 bl SR EB IR RERMFER “EI=HF
Statement 2 (Amendments)  Disclosure of Accounting Policies BB AM ERBBRSF2HR BT — —RA—H
BERERE B EEIEE
IR S 8257
(&AE3T)
HKAS 8 (Amendments) Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting 1 January 2023 HAE gL SR G ELNFESHE BT — “EBI=F
Estimates F8sk (IEE])  EHAsr2/EH —B—H
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax related to Assets 1 January 2023 vl ARG ENFE1252EBE] — —EBT=HF
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction F125% HE—SEFEER —B—H
(GSER), BEERZ FEERE
HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10 Amendments to HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10 - Sale or To be determined EBgstER) SRt ERF28 K EBUFEE BT EE
(Amendments) Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its B8R EA  REAFEI0R BT — KEEZH
Associate or Joint Venture B S PERZAER BEHE B SE P22 E
105% EHES Y/fﬁ
(GSER)
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sale and 1 January 2024 EETEER SRMBERERNF 1658 2] — 2T
Leaseback %H¥§1 gﬁ%ﬁ ERMLNHAEE R —B—H
ST
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023 SEUBER mEEY —E2T=HF
RSB 75% —A—H
HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 — Comparative 1 January 2023 BERMBER BREREBMBERERSE175E BT =F
Information ZERIZE1758 géﬁﬂﬁ%@%&ﬁﬁ‘]%%ﬁ =[5 —B—H
=P
HKFRS 17 (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023 EEUBER BBMBERERF 17 ZEST — “EBC=H
%Q‘J2§17‘5’€ REEEAT —A—H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Revised Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial 1 January 2024 EEREEST BERESSHMBmRER —ETmE
(Revised) Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan (#&{&ET) 22 18:] — BANBBEEZE —BA—H m
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause KREEGFHZEHEAZ A 5
=
sm 2.
Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting standards and interpretations have GTMEmE s ER Gt ER 2B T RREEEM EREET % 8
been published that are not mandatory for the year ended 31 December 2022 and have not been T THF+ A=+ —HIEFEAERBHIEZ IIRERER ;& =
early adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments or interpretations are not expected to BN TEST R E A ME T R BN BRI AR SHANTE %3
=
)
=
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.2 SUBSIDIARIES 2.2 B AR
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group MWEBADANEEBREIEGFIEFTEER (BEEETEER) - BXE
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement BEARNZA2HEBRME SRR RSN BBENER
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the IETnBREE R EZE LIRS A $$@¥W%J§i§ﬁa°ﬁ1ﬂ:/&7
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They BEFIEETAER 2 HREZBGRE AR B ABEREIE Y
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. BEREEAR IHm & ABRe
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group. NEERBE W L EET S Mo
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are EERNEERZ R EHRRERRIERZNRERINES T U
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment HHoPRIFR Z AR IRENEENEER BB SRIRERBEN T U
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure tH oMY A BN ESTBER B R B EE LU (R4S B ER ARV EL
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. IR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred,

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

e equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement; and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

e consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity; and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are

less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

2.3 EBEH

FEFNBEHRBE ARG aHAR Tt BEEDZ TR
HHEHMEE -BE B AT RN EERE:

o FIEESEATE;

o HWBEBRAHEA ANEENER;

o AEMEZETHARE;

o  FAREBLHFMEENEAEENBBNATE &

o MBARPERLRRENATE

B AR E A N E EURPIEEN S ERSAEE T

TRIRENEE BN AT ESE (BIRGIERIN SRR

m%w NP ES R E DL PIEEWIR BEE I AR B A FE
MEMWEE BRI FER e

W FBABRAR A IS A R ST 8

BAENTEIEA:

o FREEEMUE;

o RIBBERNEMIFEREEEEE, &

o AR IBERNRENWIERRNATE

BT ISR #R B FERN AT ERNEBR AR IFr S 1hn2—£r%

EETREAFEM&ﬁﬁ%?&TD%‘Jﬁ%@fﬁﬁﬁ AN HE HERREEN D

SBAEEEE.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future
are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

2.4 SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee's net assets including
goodwill.

2.5 SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the management that
makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (HK$), which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at period end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred
in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis within “Selling, distribution and other operating
expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.

2.6 SMERE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (continued) 2.6 SMERE (48)
(c) Group companies (c) $ﬁ=.|

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a EWEB'JE“ BEHFABINETS (ZEEE BB EE

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency ﬁf*"ﬁ%i_ z«w*q HEHE) A M FEARR E U B

are translated into the presentation currency as follows: ?ﬁ%’%iﬂf?—’}%.

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the o  ZBHMBIRRARETINEEREE N IRZ i MBIRRRG
closing rate at the date of that consolidated statement of financial position; BB EERIAE ;

e income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive o FBEMAEAWGRNEZIHZTFHERRE (RIFZTH
income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of EXTIFTERRSZ BE B TEXRBTENSIRME!
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and R AEZIER S W2 EXZ BERHRE) ;&

expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income. o  FREREMEENRREZRENEMtMEEE R

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign AR RSN BRI FREURIEE A ZERENY
entities, and of borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, HNER R EMESR T EMELEN DIREREN MRS WG PRE
are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings o #ﬁ TBINEFS S BIEERUFIRE —EMA KRR & RS 18RE
forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to PHELRR BN EERD (Fa L E WG EE BN —EB 5

profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as R U B INETS T AE £ N E AT ERE DRI EREN
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate. BEREE TRIKHERHRE.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (continued)
(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of accumulated currency translation differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 2.7 ¥ -BER%E (48)
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

FENR A RIERFRERERE NI ERAREEEEE (0%
HRBHMEBE) stEIT:

Leasehold improvements 15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter THEYEEE 15%E33% S LHE S IBRIEE A%

Furniture, fixtures and office 15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter R T K 15% E33% a2 H SR MBS E /%
equipment NS g

Motor vehicles 15% to 33% A 15%%33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, it is group policy to transfer any amounts
included in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained earnings.

2.8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields and are not occupied by the Group. The Group
has adopted the cost model under HKAS 40 to account for its investment properties and such properties
are stated at cost less depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of the investment properties to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual depreciation rate used for this purpose is 3%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment properties are recognised in profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

94 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3R

RERSARIIRFEEZFFBERPIERAE LIFHEERR

WEERBESNHASTWEEE M EEERBENAER
AU El4E (F9sE2.10) ©

& Wt S S TR TR P S AR BRI B 2 Z BR T > W IR AT BRe
REBEAEERER HEKELBEER BABENEMEFEFTSHIBER
—REEBAREERN

2.8 IREME

SEYEL RS EMTR Bl FRAEREEA-AEEE
RIBEEB G ERFA0EHRA AR URIEE R EY R AR
ET IR AR EE R A PTRL ERTES IR

REYE IR EREME S A ER NS A L Gt BT EEEHAR
B IR FENERR3%

REMFERENNE EEZ W s RN HRER N & FEN R g

=]
55 °



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.9 TRADEMARK

The Group classified the acquired “bossini” trademark in Indonesia as an intangible with an indefinite life
in accordance with HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that the “bossini” trademark
has been a well-known and long-established fashion brand in 1987, its legal rights are capable of being
renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration, and based on the future
performance of the Group.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial period end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

2.10IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.11 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS LN DEAFFHEZEERBARILETR

c
.2
=
©
£
S
(<]
2
=
el
v
c
]
c
£

MBER

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and investment property that
are carried at fair value and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt
from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset,
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the asset is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other
expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be
recognised.

Assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held
for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part
of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.12INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

0}

(i)

(iii)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

(i)

(iii)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.12INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) LNEEREMESREE (B)
(iii) Measurement (continued) (iii) 5t= (@)
Debt instruments EFETH
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing B TAENHE ERTIAEEEEEENEREXREENR
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into SRR MM AR AR T ENEA =Bt 2587

which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in
“Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

e FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in
“Selling, distribution and other operating expenses”. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

e FVPL:
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.12INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
(iii) Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OC,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit
or loss as “Other income and gain” when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in “Selling, distribution and other
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For debtors, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see note 19 for
further details.

L2 REREMEREE (B)

(iii)

(iv)
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amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow
for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

2.14 DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as
hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedges).

At the inception of the hedging, The Group documents the economic, relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging instruments
are expected to offset changes in the cash flows of hedges items. The Group documents its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions.

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining
maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when
the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are classified as a
current asset or liability.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any
derivative instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in profit or
loss and are included in “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses”.
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2.15INVENTORIES

Inventories are garments held by the Group as at the reporting date. Inventories are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and includes all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.16 DEBTORS

Debtors are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement up to 60 days and therefore all classified as current.

Debtors are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the debtors
with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See note 19 for further information about the Group's
accounting for debtors and note 3.1 for a description of the Group's impairment policies.

2.17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.18 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or share options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.19 TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial period which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition. Trade creditors, other payables and accruals are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.20 CONTRACT LIABILITIES
A contract liability is recognised when an entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the entity has received consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

2.21 BORROWINGS

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as
finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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2.22 BORROWING COSTS

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.23 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.
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2.23 BNEARARIEFRTSIR (48)
(b) IRIEFFISTA

2.23 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2.24EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that are
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar
year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the reporting
period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An
accrual is made at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the period by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates two pension schemes in Hong Kong, namely the Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme"), for all of its employees in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ relevant income with a maximum monthly
contribution of HK$1,500 per employee are made by each of the employer and the employees. The
employer contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries are made by the employer
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the ORSO
Scheme. The rates of contributions made by the employees are either 0% or 5% of the salary of each
employee at the discretion of the employee. When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to his/
her interest in the Group's employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.
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224 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued) 224 EE=EF (48)
Pension schemes (continued) BAEEE ()
The assets of the MPF and ORSO Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in independently BET A MRS B EE HAERE EEDH WHEIIE
administered funds. BZEERFB-
The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in mainland China are required to participate AT PR AREEE 2 M@ A R R REEES N HM 5 AT
in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required ZHRIBRIRRIEST Bl ZEMB AR ERETEM Az ST E AR
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions ZHP SRR RPESTEIVE H MR o R IR R R IUR IR IR 5T EIRFRE » (AR
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension KRR T8 A 3BR
scheme.
The Company’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a Central Provident Fund Scheme, which is a NABEMNE Z B AT 28 ATEE 2 b —IEEM MK AT
contribution plan established by the Central Provident Fund Board in Singapore. SR EFRETE
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2.25 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the share options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s share price), if any;

e excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to
save or hold shares for a specific period of time).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
share options that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the share options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.
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2.26 PROVISIONS 2.26 345
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Provisions for legal claims and make good obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the garment products.

Some contracts for the sale of garment products provide customers with rights of return. The rights of
return give rise to variable consideration.

(ii) Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period,
the expected value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled. The
requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied in order
to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For
goods that are expected to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised. A right-
of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognised for the right to
recover products from a customer.
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2.27 REVENUE RECOGNITION 2.27 Wz FED
(i) Retailing and distribution of garments (i) HRKRESERDHE
Revenue from the retailing and distribution of garments is recognised at the point in time when E)ZZE%E DIz NN EEZ ERIEERER P 2 AR
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2.27 REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)
(iii) Retailing of garments — customer loyalty programme
The Group operates a loyalty programme where retail customers accumulate bossini points for
purchases made which entitle them to discount on future purchases. Revenue from the award bossini
points is recognised when the points are redeemed or when they are expired.

Contract liabilities are recognised until the points are redeemed or expired.

(iv) Royalty income
Royalty income is recognised on a time proportion basis in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements.

2.28 INTEREST INCOME
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

2.29 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other
than ordinary shares; and

e Dby the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial period,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the period and excluding treasury
shares.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.29 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

e the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

e the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.30 LEASES
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;
e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

1 1 OANNUAL REPORT 2022 R
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.30 LEASES (continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third-party financing; and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or
market data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities use that rate as a
starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use
asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.30 LEASES (continued) 230788 (88)
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Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received,;

e any initial direct costs; and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings
that are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use
buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase option.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised within “Other income
and gain” on a straight-line basis over the lease term (note 6). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on their nature.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

2.31DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTIONS

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end
of the reporting period.

2.32 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank balances, time deposits and bills
payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as debtors, deposits and trade creditors,
which arise directly from its operations.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency
risk, fair value and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(a) Market risk

()

(ir)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from the sales and
purchases in foreign operations in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar. Approximately 40% (for the period ended 31 December 2021: 41%) of the Group's
sales were denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar.
The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure to currency risk.
The Group will continue to monitor foreign currency risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency risk should need the rise.

Since Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United States dollar, management considers that there is no
significant foreign currency risk between these two currencies to the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, if Hong Kong dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
Renminbi and Singapore dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss for the
year would be HK$11,898,000 lower/higher (for the period ended 31 December 2021:
HK$51,376,000 higher/lower) and HK$6,069,000 lower/higher (for the period ended 31
December 2021: HK$6,609,000 lower/higher) respectively, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of Renminbi denominated and Singapore dollar denominated cash and
cash equivalents, debtors and other receivables, trade creditors and other payables.

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's bank balances during the year/period.

As at 31 December 2022, if the interest rates on bank balances had increased/decreased by 100
basis points with all other variables held constant, pre-tax loss for the year would be HK$911,000
higher/lower (for the period ended 31 December 2021: HK$2,388,000 higher/lower), mainly
results from the bank balances.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(b) Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable to balances with banks, debtors, other receivables
and rental deposits. The carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. The credit risk on deposits with banks is limited as
the Group mainly places the deposits in banks with high credit rating.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, through credit cards or through reputable and dispersed
department stores. The Group's credit sales are only made to wholesale and franchised customers,
with an appropriate credit history and on credit terms of 60 days. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Debtors

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all debtors. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade customers have been grouped based on share credit risk characteristics (i.e. by
geographical region and customer type). The expected loss rates are based on the historical credit loss
rate that are based on the historical loss experience of these customers. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

As at 31 December 2022, the expected credit losses of these collectively assessed debtors were
HK$240,000 (2021: HK$253,000) based on expected loss rates of 1.24% (2021: 1.28%) applied on
different geographical region of customers.

3.1 M EAREZR ()

(b)

&Rz

FEEZ FERBREEREIRTER FEHQEETA\ETHJFEWE@EEZ
HEREZ ZEEHRAEAR T ETENEREEFMAEANNR
EERR AR AERNTER—RERS EEEDH&ETJ%ETT’E&%TT
ERHNEERBAR-

TEHE—RBBHT ERFTHNAEERIMZBEEAR R
AEEEEAHRIFEETH BRI FEERRETEEH

& (EEHR60KR LS FEMARTEERE TR AP
EHRVEREARL A EKXe
FEWARFR

KNEBERE B ERERF oS EZ b A AR sHETER
EEBE A A BRI B EHE e R R A
STEEHREEFS B RR BRAREERREE (Bl
& MEEfET) DiE TR EE R BEZER P BE BB
R BEZ BEEEBERFHE BEEBEEEEFRE U R
22 S ENRBUIRIBE N2 RESER R Bl RATHEE &R o

A B T T E+ TR+ —H R SERTENERERR A
HE B84 815240,0007T (Z & - —F  #253,0007T) » #%
BRARARMEMEZZE 2 BIAEBEE1.24% (T —%:
1.28%) st&e

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E 5 EEEB AR AR 1 1 5

ThE 4

=l
5
]
S
Q,
aul
5
=4
o
o
3
]
=
(=]
=]




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued) 3.1 HBREEREZE (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =EEE (4&)
Debtors (continued) JEWER (48)
The closing loss allowance for debtors as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 reconcile to the opening AR TR CE T —FE+ A=+ —HZ BB ERE
loss allowance as follows: ERERFEY SRR G 2 HIROT:
2022 2021
HK$'000 —g—- = ST T
Opening loss allowance 253 - F4 VISR RS
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss FER RN IR R AR (:Es)
during the year/period (note 8) - 248
Exchange realignment (13) 5 IR
Closing loss allowance 240 253 FR R EIERE
Impairment losses on debtors are presented as net impairment losses with “Selling, distribution and FEWERR Z R BERIEE T A HE DI R HME BRI N2
other operating expenses”. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited BR8P ER BRI SRIiEE ~ FIast AB—IE

against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised costs R AR 5T E - A2 B E

The directors of the Group consider the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and NEBEENEENRERFE BENNA SN RHMEER,
whether there has been significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis during the year/period. R EEREESFEREE M -ETEEERRESEE LM
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares risk of a default B ANEMKFLE S AR EES BN R AR
occurring on the assets as at year/period end date with the risk of default as at the date of initial AR R ETIE R RIRES T UM ER:

recognition. Especially the following indicators are incorporated:
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Other financial assets at amortised costs (continued)
e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the debtors’ ability to meet its obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of debtors;
e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of debtors, including changes
in the payment status of the debtor in the Group and changes in the operating results of the
debtor.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more
than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment/repayable demand.

A default on a financial asset when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments/repayable
demanded within 90 to 180 days of when they fail due.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual receivable to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. Over the term of the financial
assets, the Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing for expected credit losses on a
timely basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category of debtors, and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic data. As at 31 December
2022, the expected credit losses of these collectively assessed deposits and other receivables was
HK$1,318,000 (2021: HK$1,351,000) based on expected loss rates approximately from 1.24% to
2.35% (2021: from 1.28% to 1.68%) applied on counterparties’ sectors.

3.1 M EEEER (8)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised costs (continued)
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
impact of impairment loss was immaterial.

The closing loss allowance for other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 reconcile to the opening loss allowance as follows:

3.1 M EEEER (&)
(b) EERE (&)

A B AT HMEE (B)
FERERIREFEEE T AR TEBYHFERERFIT LR
BERE BERIEZ EEEHo

= =S = = - G S= =t Sl = Py s o B L ) Ny =< P =
RN E = AR IR R A A E VB IERE BRI T

2022 2021
HK$'000 - =T BT
Opening loss allowance 1,351 - FEY)HAYIESREE
(Decrease)/increase in loss allowance recognised in profit FER AR IERERR 2 B8RS Cl) 18 (M)
or loss during the year/period (note 8) (10) 1,350
Exchange realignment (23) 1 DI
Closing loss allowance 1,318 1,351 F4R MR EIERE
(c) Liquidity risk () FEEZERE

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This
tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., debtors) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
by keeping adequate credit facilities from banks. The Group had credit facilities from banks of
HK$195,924,000 (2021: HK$205,890,000) for overdrafts, loans, letter of credit, trade financing
and guarantees and approximately HK$17,333,000 (2021: HK$12,752,000) was utilised as at 31
December 2022.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

3.1 M EEEER (8)
(o FEREERR (&

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on RRERR AEBENRETOERMEROR EMEBRIHE
the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

At 31 December 2022

IR

RIEZ=F+=HA=+—H

On
demand or
less than 1to 2to Over
12 months 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
BRERY
HK$'000 LR+ZEA —EMRE MERE BBRE st B+
Non-derivatives ETETAR
Financial liabilities included in Bt AR EthENTIER
trade creditors, other payables FESTERIBZ ERIBE
and accruals 127,918 - - - 127,918
Bills payable 14,812 - - - 14,812 FE(T R
Due to fellow subsidiaries 1,527 = = = 1,527 BRI E A B RIE
Due to related companies 1,474 - - - 1,474 & BE 3 A B 718
Lease liabilities 82,335 123,160 26,026 - 231,521 HEAaR
Total non-derivatives 228,066 123,160 26,026 - 377,252 ETET B4EEE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e AR MR

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)
At 31 December 2021

3.1 MEREER (&)
(o) FENEZER (#R)
RZFZ—F+"RA=+—H

On
demand or
less than 1to 2 to Over
12 months 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
HK$'000 DR+ZEA —EME MERLE BBRF st BTt
Non-derivatives EFTETR
Financial liabilities included in Bt AR EthEAIRIBER
trade creditors, other payables FESTERIBZ SREE
and accruals 185,785 - - - 185,785
Bills payable 11,693 = — = 11,693 N
Due to fellow subsidiaries 5,377 = = = 5,377 FENRE RN EABRIE
Lease liabilities 124,541 95,590 129,051 10,005 359,187 HEa®d
Total non-derivatives 327,396 95,590 129,051 10,005 562,042 JETTET RAER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

3.2 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 3.2 BEAXERE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue FEEEATENEZER ARRAERAEGREERENET B
as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise FRENEARLEE WS RFHEREND FRGEANRREE

shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic FAEERBSREINES RAREEN RS SBEERGE
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, T EH AR AR SRR E AR AEB D EEAERRRIKE 2
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new gR AR EEARSNE TR - BE_ T __F+_A=+—H1
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year FERBEZZ—F+A=+—HILHRE I EENEIEERN
ended 31 December 2022 and the period ended 31 December 2021. B BEREERF-

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio calculated on the basis of interest-bearing bank REERBERTERGEEGIEZEEAGBLERETELRRK
borrowings over total equity. Jte

The Group did not have any interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. N BT THERTEC—F+ A=+ —H AER T EE AT EIR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e AR MR

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

3.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33 &EMTASEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 T F BT BiEFT
Financial assets at amortised cost RIBHER AT IR EREE
Debtors 24,559 25,393 FE U AR R
Deposits and other receivables 85,125 90,309 s R EMBUARIE
Pledged bank deposits 127 1,959 BIEFIRITER
Cash and cash equivalents 93,142 266,655 HWEKRIREEBEER
Total 202,953 384,316 “aEt
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B AT IRz EREaE
Trade creditors, other payables and accruals 127,918 185,785 FE (T BRR ~ EL BRI & FE 5T AR TE
Bills payable 14,812 11,693 FET R4
Due to fellow subsidiaries 1,527 5,377 ENRAMNBARRIE
Due to related companies 1,474 - FET BB AR
Lease liabilities 214,726 247,627 HEAaE
Total 360,457 450,482 HEET
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4 EARGHEERFVE
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and FIBhERFENIFHET S WARRE LR R HME R (BEREE
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the &0 NIRRT R B IR TRHER) sTdo

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting estimates will, by FNEEEEBRRRIERE KR RBER MstER KRR
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant BHEENARBRER Mt RERENMN T —EAMBFEEANNEE
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next FEEREAEIFL EARERMBMIER R G e

financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (a) VE- - BERREREAEEEZRE

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets at the end of each reporting period in accordance with the accounting
policies stated in note 2.10. This requires an estimation of the value-in-use and fair value less cost of
disposal of the asset. Estimating the value-in-use for the impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the asset using key assumptions such as the estimated future store performance,
economic environment and the sales growth rate and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of the Group's
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2022 were HK$33,382,000
(2021: HK$27,206,000) and HK$89,221,000 (2021: HK$112,261,000), respectively for which
the impairment provision made during the year for the Group’s property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets amounting to HK$21,563,000 (for the period ended 31 December 2021:
HK$21,548,000) and HK$56,777,000 (for the period ended 31 December 2021: HK$94,472,000).

IEBMP R R EIKRIRIEM E2.10F7 1k 2 S 5t EERHEYEE R
EBREErRERAEEERSTEENRENR EEEERS

RWREBHEEZ FERBEMAFERHEHNAEH T osHE
ME-BERLERERAEESEZ AEZGHFERABEBLAER
HEREEEZ BIRAKRREESREN T BERNMGHARREHE
NOEIRIE R E I R ER A MEEESHEMR XSS
ZEReRECRBENR_S__F+_A=+—H0 &E£EY
BB MR B R EEZ REE D54 81533,382,000
7T (CE T —F781827,206,0007T) K AB1589,221,0007T (=
——F181112,261,0007T)  MEARSEBYE - BERRE
R EREEEZ REREAB21,563,000 HE_Z ——
FE+ "B =+—H1EHARS: #B#21,548,0007T) K #BH56,777,000
T EHEE - —F+ B =1+—H AR E594,472,0007T) °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PN
7 Ny |

B MY aE

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(o)

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the Group at the end of each reporting
period, and makes provision for inventory items whose costs may not be fully recoverable. The
assessment of the provision amount involves management judgements and estimates by considering
inventory ageing, historical sales patterns and expected subsequent sales based on internal budgets
and certain market factors. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will have an impact on the carrying value of the inventories and
provision charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate has been changed. In addition,
physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine whether
provision needs to be made in respect of any obsolete inventories identified. The Group reassesses
the estimation at the end of each reporting period and is satisfied that sufficient provision for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been made in the consolidated financial statements. The
carrying amount of the Group'’s inventories as at 31 December 2022 was HK$171,866,000 (2021:
HK$186,592,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
The amount of unrecognised tax losses as at 31 December 2022 was HK$1,208,217,000 (2021:
HK$968,144,000). Further details on tax losses are set out in note 25.

1 24ANNUAL REPORT 2022 R

4 ERGEHEERFIER ()
(b) FEEE

(o)

REBPRESREPAR G A EBZ FEEREB T THEREH
BEE AR RE FEBEBFHBE 2B EZTEINREEE
RIEASEERETHERES BFERK BEHERXKTE
BRI EMAET et oM BIRE RO R R 2 FERA SRR E(H
AR AlZE RNz B R E AN EZE S 2R
BEREBER, Lot FrEEENERETEY SRR LUR
RS BB NRE R FHTFEEHEF AEBR SR
SHIRE A R R AR S MR RO MRE R HIHE
EERERE N _ B _F+_A=+—H *~EBE5EZKE
BE47#E15171,866,0007T (& ——4 1 781#186,592,0007T) °

BERIREE

PRAERFBMIERE 10 A2 H Al A M IRFER A o] A (R EHa
FHR BRI RIEEIRNEE E-EE A B IBERRE ES R
B BIEfE AR BRRAERIE R 2 BT 855 R ek AR R ARAR
BIRBIRS L BALE N S _F+-B=+—H Kl
MRIBEI847E1£51,208,217,0007T (ZZ = —4 7815968, 144,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(d) Share-based payment

(e)

The Group is required to expense its employees’ share-based compensation awards in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based payment. The Group measures share-based compensation cost based on
the fair value on the grant date of each award. This cost is recognised over the period during which
an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award or the requisite service period,
usually the vesting period, and is adjusted for actual forfeitures that occur before vesting. In order to
assess the fair value of share-based compensation, the Group is required to use certain assumptions,
including the probability of reaching the market performance, if any, and financial results targets, the
forfeitures and the service period of each employee. The use of different assumptions and estimates
could produce materially different estimated fair values for the share-based compensation awards and
related expenses.

Lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). For leases of retail stores, management
assumes no renew or extension of leases.

4 ERGFHEERFIER ()
(d) WABRIAZ{7RIE

(e)

REEBRIBE BV ERER B 258D IR SIEHE
BRI AERNINE R AEERESREBHF L HHNA
TAE 5T AR S AT RRIERV B £ AL AN o LE Y 45774 M2 B 743 A ER A
TR AR HE P RARF IR (—AREFRREL) NER
IS B S 1) 2 A A BB 02 WA T 1F L1 S o 2% ST DU 7 SZ A RIR
MR ATE AERAERBETRR SEERHHRERE W
B) R BB EER R BB EERIIRF I RAT
[ERRER K (5T P AE 3 AR 19 S2 T RRIA B B <2 52 B MU AR RA R 2
EEEATERGEE AT E

THEHA

REEAENR EBE gL B | E T ELEREEERENTT
ER IR E R BT A B RIE N T E R S S
(F B EEERENER) EN5ES EHER STE (31
TR B ABER- T EEHNEEN S EERRRILE
EHEE RS-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units that offer products to customers
located in different geographical areas and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

RSN
MEEMS  AEEEBEMZENRER MR FRHER
TEDER HRIEHE LUT =48 p RS =i n4a:

(@) Hong Kong and Macau (a) BABEBIEPY
(b) Mainland China (b) FRBEEARE
(c) Singapore (© Fhoi

The Group has discontinued the business in Taiwan segment during the year ended 30 June 2020.
Accordingly, certain comparative segment information related to the Taiwan segment is classified as “loss
for the period from a discontinued operation” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (note 12).

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted loss before tax from
continuing operations. The adjusted loss before tax from continuing operations is measured consistently
with the Group’s loss before tax from continuing operations except that interest income and non-lease-
related finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities and tax payable as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Geographical segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/loss and certain asset, liability and expenditure information
of the Group's geographical segments for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the period ended 31
December 2021.

1 2 6ANNUAL REPORT 2022 R

BE T ZHEAA-THILEEE FAERERIESEDRZER R
It &N EZ E TR EENN R EE REMEE KT ERP D
BATERIEEFZHRNEER] (isE12)

EEEENEIERAERREENE T EE LUFHARE RS
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 RKEFEENGER
Geographical segments (continued) Mg 48 (48)
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
EBREM HEIA R Epi ZE
Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
BE-Z_-Z BE_Z & @®EIE_C BE"ZT_ & HEZE_C HE_Z_—& HEIE-Z HE_Z—_—&
HK$'000 +ZA=+-H +ZB=+—-H +ZR=+-H +ZA=+—H +ZR=+-B +ZA=t—-H +ZRA=t—-B +ZA=t-H
BT T LEE i 1751 LHEE LIEEAR LEE i 551 LHEE 1HHR
Segment revenue:
S
Sales to external customers from continuing operations
HECSER 2 HETIMNEES 350,302 630,919 165,745 362,863 69,108 120,293 585,155 1,164,075
Other income and gain from continuing operations
FHER S 25 2 H A R e 210,165 46,673 1,064 3,515 350 3,363 211,579 53,551
Total
AR5t 560,467 727,592 166,809 366,378 69,458 123,656 796,734 1,217,626
Segment results
NHEER 141,247 (168,881) (266,932) (179,884) (7,617) 10,513 (133,302) (338,252)
Interest income
FISWA 1,419 2,966
Loss from operating activities
HEEHBEE (131,883) (335,286)
Finance costs (other than interest on lease liabilities)
BEmA HESEFERN - (1,881)
Loss before tax from continuing operations -
FHRATE R 2 IRAIES (131,883) (337,167) 5
Income tax expense 3
Prgitfs (371) (2,892) gy
# =
)m‘ -
Loss for the year/period from continuing operations e =
FELEEB I EN/ PRER (132,254) (340,059) 3
o,
o
=]

The revenue information above is based on the locations in which the sales originated. it Es B R T IRIRIE E E A PRTE & o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 RKRESEEN @
Geographical segments (continued) g 48 (48)
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
EEREM EIARE Honsg e
At At At At At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 RIZZZ RZEZ—& RIEZZ RIZZ—F RZEZZ R_EZ—fF RIEZZ RZEZ—&
BETT +-A=+-H +=ZB=+-H +=ZBA=+-B +ZBA=+-H +=ZB=+-B +ZA=+-H +ZB=+-B +IZA=t+-H
Segment assets
NHEEE 238,237 377,038 202,591 278,917 72,663 87,597 513,491 743,552
Unallocated assets
KOEEE 300 311
Total assets
mEE 513,791 743,863
Segment liabilities
NHAR 193,952 252,248 161,098 182,322 36,832 46,384 391,882 480,954
Unallocated liabilities
F 0N = 1,606 3,889
Total liabilities
maR 393,488 484,843
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31 December 2022 _§::¢+_ﬁ =+—8

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 RENEEH )
Geographical segments (continued) Mg 48 (48)
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
EBREM EARE g 1b o)
Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
BE_S_Z BEZZT_—F HEIE_C HE-T— E BE-Z-Z BHEZZT_ & HEIE_C BEZZZ E
HK$'000 +ZB=+-B +ZB=+—-H +ZB=+-B +ZR=1+— +-A=+-B +ZA=+-HB +ZA=+-H +ZA=t+-—
BT ILEE LEHARS HEE IEHA F' \LEE LEHARS LLEE i
Other segment information:
HitvEEr
From continuing operations:
SRS
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
EN Y& P 1,147 7,845 20,416 13,703 - - 21,563 21,548
Impairment of right-of-use assets
FERREEZRE 3,971 42,105 51,737 52,367 1,069 - 56,777 94,472
Loss/(gain) on disposalAwrite-off of property,
plant and equipment, net
HE MHME R KRB FER/ (k) 3n (224) 610 584 - 9 982 369
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale
HEFEHEZEEZ G (173,685) - - - - - (173,685) -
Prowsmn/(wnte back of provision) for inventories
B/ EEEL) 2,108 (4,828) 821 (7,506) (1,927) 786 1,002 (11,548)
Impa|rment of debtors
FEWERT 2 RE - 90 - 158 - - - 248
Impairment of trademark
BEZAE - 1,164 - - - - - 1,164
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of deposits and other receivables
rEREMEWREZ (AERE) /RE (10) 878 - 321 - 151 (10) 1,350
Capital expenditure* -
BAR M 14,141 5,445 31,880 38,154 3,145 205 49,166 43,804 5
=
Depreciation of property, plant and g E_,
equipment and investment properties gﬁ 5
MEBERREUREENEZITE 7,028 17,624 8,576 6,716 1,432 1,779 17,036 26,119 g )
S

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E 5 EEEB AR AR I 2 9



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 RENEEH @)
Geographical segments (continued) g 48 (48)
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
EBRAM EARE Ei o]
Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
B2 HEZZ- -4 ®WEIS-Z BECZ - HE-S_C BER_ & HEIE_C BE"E_—F
HK$'000 +-A=+-B +ZB=+—-H +ZBR=+—-H +ZB=+—H +ZA=t+-H +ZB=+—H +ZA=t—-H +ZBR=1+—-A
BT ILEE LEHARS EEE IEHAR LLEE JIR:255 EEE RS
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
FRREEZINE
- from continuing operations
—FEKERR 46,375 117,372 18,892 22,410 14,200 18,090 79,467 157,872
— from a discontinued operation
—BRIFEE - 86
79,467 157,958
Non-current assets**
FERBEE 67,612 64,735 29,591 45,020 29,501 34,399 126,704 144,154
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment. * BAXRRZOEREWE BB K&
** The non-current assets information above is based on the locations of assets and excludes deferred tax assets and o _ig’ﬁﬁ%5#5"’%@%@2?*473*Eﬁiﬁéﬁﬂfiﬁﬁ*% A EIRIRIER TR
the non-current portion of deposits. BERZEZIFRBENR -
Information about major customers BREBEFZAN
No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common control accounted for 10% or more BE_ T __HF+ A=+ BHUEFERBE_ST_—F+_7
of the Group's revenue during the year ended 31 December 2022 and the period ended 31 December =+—BIEHE HE—E R RES TR —HEE A RHE RS
2021. REBWERI10%3 A Lo
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gain from continuing operations is as follows:

6 Uz Eftht A R st
AEEFBCERB W B AR 270

Revenue from contracts with customers EREHWE
Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
BE HE
== T —F
+=-—B=+—H +—B=+—H
HK$'000 IHEE IEHARE BT T
Retailing and distribution of garments transferred REEREER 2 RS E ki
at a point in time 585,155 1,164,075

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the current reporting period that
were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from

performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

TREGFT ARSIV SN ER BBERREER BN EFTFES
AERE R E TR

Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
HBE qHE
ZEICZHE T
+=A=+-A +=A=+-8
HK$'000 WEFEE IEFARE BT
Distribution of garments 3,233 2,973 R TX 72 8
Retailing of garments — customer loyalty programme 231 611 MR ETE —F P R EE T2
3,464 3,584

Performance obligations
Retailing and distribution of garments

The performance obligation is satisfied when the control of the product is transferred to the customers
upon delivery of goods. Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit period of

up to 60 days to its trade customers.

BHEE
BHBERZANEREEMTEGRER T2 S R SRRERER
RIHEIN FERE—RBER TR TFTHES SR RS0XEEH.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e AR MR

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN (continued)

6 Uz Efth AR Wzt ()

Other income and gain HAA Rz
Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
BE HE
—E-— —E-—f&
+-BA=+—H +-A=+—H
HK$'000 ILEE LEERE BT
Interest income 1,419 2,966 A EWA
Royalty income 6,200 17,348 EFBEIA
Gross rental income 6,155 15,037 HEWAEER
Government grants (note a) 6,015 14,543 BT #EEN (Bi5Ea)
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale (note b) 173,685 - HEFEHEZEEZ WG (sb)
Write-back of rent payables 16,745 - FE(T A [O]
Others 2,779 6,623 HAth
212,998 56,517
Notes: 5T

(@ The amounts for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the period ended 31 December 2021 mainly represented
the subsidy granted by The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic
Fund. This is a wage subsidy for eligible employers to retain their employees, subject to certain conditions. There
was no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to the receipts of those grants.

(b) Disposal of assets held for sale represented sales of investment properties. The net proceeds arising from the
disposal was approximately HK$183,122,000 (after deducting the expenses in relation to the disposal) and the
carrying amount of HK$9,437,000. A gain on disposal of approximately HK$173,685,000 was recognised in the
"Other income and gain” for the year ended 31 December 2022.

1 3 2 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3R
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

7 FINANCE COSTS 7 RMBERA
Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
BE BHE
=2 B4
+=A=+-~ +=A=+-8
HK$'000 IEEFEE IEHARS BT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 17(b)) 9,832 12,887 HEaEZME (5E17(0))
Interest on loan from immediate holding company EHEZERABERZFE
(note and note 33(a)) = 1,679 (M 5E R fT5E33(a))
Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowings = 202 FEIRTERZHAE
9,832 14,768

Note:

The amount for the period ended 31 December 2021 was incurred from the loan from immediate holding company of

HK$100,000,000 which was fully repaid as at 31 December 2021.

M5E

HE_Z - F+-A=t+—HILERZSBERERTIRARZEREE
100,000,0007cFiES  ZERNR _E-_—F+__B=+—HEZH#EE-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

8 LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The Group's loss before tax from continuing operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

8 FHEEEXRTZIFRAIEE

FEEFFISEEB RN ERENR  GtA) TFIEE:

Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
BE HE
—=-= -
+-BA=+—H +-A=+—H
HK$'000 ILEE LEERE BT T
Cost of sales: THE R !
Cost of inventories sold 310,929 579,364 ERESEZHAE
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories 1,002 (11,548) FERESE (BEEL)
311,931 567,816
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration — note 9): ETRAK (BfEEENE—MEE9) :
Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits 191,226 310,633 e ITE 2 AER
Equity-settled share option expense 6,701 8,604 EmiEEERERS
Pension scheme contributions (note a) 23,251 25,018 BRE ST BIMER (5Ea)
221,178 344,255
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 79,467 157,872 FREEEZINE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and ME-BEREBEURLEMEZITE
investment properties 17,036 26,119
Lease payments not included in the measurement of FEEREEEGSE2HEENR
_E lease liabilities:
‘g - Buildings 19,102 59,334 s
S Contingent rents of retail stores 34,086 77,432 ZEEHZINEE
£ w Plant and machinery 476 100 %1 R e 23
§ = Less: Rent concessions related to COVID-19 pandemic (6,102) (24,447) A B RE SR IEEEZ T TR
@©
£
[T
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

8 LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (continued)

8 FHEEEXETZIFRAIEE (B)

Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
HE qHE
ke TET
+=A=+—~ +=A=+-8
HK$'000 ILFE LEFARS BT T
Auditor's remuneration 2,080 2,835 TZ BN &
Impairment of right-of-use assets (note b) 56,777 94,472 EREEEZRE (Mi5tb)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note b) 21,563 21,548 YR E KRR E 2 RE (Mi5Eb)
Impairment of trademark (note b) - 1,164 B2z R E Fistb)
Impairment of debtors (note b) - 248 FEWER N 2 R E (Bd5Eb)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of deposits and Bk EMEWERIEZ (RERRE) BE (HsEb)
other receivables (note b) (10) 1,350
Write-off of debtors = 335 FEUS AR =R 2 35
Write-off of deposits and other receivables 547 132 & R H A FEWER B 2 i3
Foreign exchange differences, net (2,618) 2,442 INERIRZRE SR E
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HE MEYE - BE KRR EZIFER
plant and equipment, net 982 369
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale (173,685) - HERFIHE 2 EEZ WG
Gain on early termination of leases (2,801) (4,538) RERERIEEEZ W
Write-back of rent payables (16,745) - FE(T A (O]
Fair value losses, net on financial assets/liabilities at fair value RERREATFEIRZ SMEE
through profit or loss BBz AT EREE
— transactions not qualifying as hedges (note c) - 586 — TR EEARTFEHNRS (k)
Storage service charges 16,698 9,983 BERBE

Notes:

(@) As at 31 December 2022, there were no (2021: HK$nil) forfeited contributions available to the Group to reduce its

contributions to the ORSO Scheme in future years.

M5E :

(@) RIB_HF+_B=+—H A&EELE(CZT_—F 8 JAFR

RPRE R R NG BIHTR Z R YLK
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

8 LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (continued) 8 FHRICERTZIAMAIEE (8
Notes: (continued) M : (4@
(b) Reversal of impairment/impairment of right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment, trademark, debtors and (b) FERAREE -YZE KBEKRZE B2 BUERRUURZE K EMAEK
deposits and other receivables was included in “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” on the face of IRIBZ AERLDRECEEERCBERAMEENRERZ THE
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. DR EMEERS o
() The fair value losses, net on financial assets/liabilities — transactions not qualifying as hedges were included in (0 =RMEE ABBEZATERFEE-THAEAENITNRZESE
“Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and ELeiEakEMeERERZ THE - DR EMEERS ) -

other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9 EFM=E
Directors’ remuneration for the year/period disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong RIEEBATEFE383(1)ERAT WEEEMNmE R RAIFH250
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) WEZEE /HNEEMENT:

Regulation are as follows:

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) ===
Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
BE HE
ZEICZHE TET
+=-A=+—H +-A=+—H
HK$'000 ILEFEE LEHARE BT T
Executive directors: HMITES .
Fees 500 720 W
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,235 8,938 e R REYNEGE
Bonus = 519 TE4L
Equity-settled share option expense 926 2,418 i BB RS
Pension scheme contributions 24 65 BIREETEIERR
3,685 12,660
Non-executive directors: JEHITESE .
Fees 500 720 e
Equity-settled share option expense 300 645 EmiEEERERS
800 1,365
Independent non-executive directors: BUIEHMITES ! -
Fees 900 1,367 W 5
Equity-settled share option expense 60 128 EmiEEERERS - B,
¥y
960 1,495 s ;
g
%3
5,445 15,520 )
g
3
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 EHEME @
Directors’ remuneration for the year/period disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong RIEEBABTERFE383(1)ERA AT WEEENmE ) RAIFH250
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) WEZEE/HNEEMENT: (&

Regulation are as follows: (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) E=HBE @)
(i) Executive directors () BITEE
Salaries,
allowances Equity-
and settled Pension
benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonus expense contributions remuneration
&
AR HamiEE BiE
HK$'000 wE B fEAl  BERRAERI BE RN &40 %8 BT
Year ended 31 December BE_Z-__F#+-A=+—HILEE
2022
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 250 1,200 - 601 18 2,069 REG L
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo 250 - - 225 - 475 HEEEE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul PR ESTE (FT5HG)
(note(i)) - 1,035 - 100 6 1,141
500 2,235 - 926 24 3,685
Period ended 31 December BE_ZS-_—F+-A=+—HIHm
2021
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 360 1,726 = 1,290 24 3,400 RERE
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo 360 - - 483 - 843 HEE L
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul PR ITE (BEEG)
(note(i)) - 3,129 167 645 27 3,968 ) ‘
= Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess BREET L (EHi)
= (note(ii) = 222 = = = 222
2 Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund F@mE A (MEkGiI)
5 t_"ﬂl(% (note(iii)) - 3,861 352 - 14 4,227
"E i
= MR
I ;_,'#; 720 8,938 519 2,418 65 12,660
&
@©
£
[T
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 EEME @)
Directors’ remuneration for the year/period disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong RIEEBATEFE383(1)ERAT WEEEMNmE R RAIFH250
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) WEZEE/HNEEMENT: (@
Regulation are as follows: (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EFHE @
(i) Non-executive directors (i) FEHITER
Equity-settled
share option Total
Fees expense remuneration
HK$'000 HE HEoEEBRERX: Bl <& 48 %8 B+ T
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE_Z__S+_A=+—HILEE
Mr. Victor HERRERO (note(v)) 250 188 438 Victor HERREROZE & (Ffi5(v))
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco 250 112 362 BIERNTE
500 300 800
Period ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE-_—F+"HA=1+—HILEH
Mr. Victor HERRERO (note(v)) 360 403 763 Victor HERREROSE & (Ff5(v))
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco 360 242 602 BENGTE
720 645 1,365
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 EHEME @
Directors’ remuneration for the year/period disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong RIEEBABTERFE383(1)ERA AT WEEENmE ) RAIFH250
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) WEZEE/HNEEMENT: (&

Regulation are as follows: (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) E=HBE @)
(ifi) Independent non-executive directors (i) BUIFHITES

Equity-settled

share option Total
Fees expense remuneration
HK$'000 e  ERGEEREEX ) BT T
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_E-__F#+-_A=+—HLt=EE
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming 300 30 330 FEIRASLE
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 300 15 315 At B BREER
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong 300 15 315 BEREE
900 60 960
Period ended 31 December 2021 BEZ-—F+-H=1+—HIHME
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming 431 64 495 FEIASLE
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 450 32 482 A=k E S €
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong 450 32 482 BEREE
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han (note(iv)) 36 = 36 RERLZ T (HI5EGv)
1,367 128 1,495
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)
Directors’ remuneration for the year/period disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows: (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Notes:

(i)  Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul resigned from the Company’s executive director on 1 May 2022.

(i) Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess resigned from the Company’s executive director on 14 August 2020.

(i) Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund retired from the Company’s executive director on 17 November 2020.

(iv) Ms. LEUNG Mei Han resigned from the Company’s independent non-executive director on 14 August 2020.

(v)  Mr. Victor HERRERO resigned from the Company’s non-executive director on 4 April 2023.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits during the year ended 31
December 2022 (for the period ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination benefits during the year ended 31
December 2022 (for the period ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

9 EFE (R
IRIEEBABEGIFE3I83(NFRAT KBEESFHER) FROIE25
WEZFE HINESMEM T (@

(a) E=ME (&)
MiEE

@)

(ii)

(iii)

BRERTEENR —_Z__FHA—ARELLAARITESHF

BREBRITEN_2_TEN\B+HEREERATDRTESH
7o

EEEREENR T SF+ A+t ARELXRADNTESH

o

ERF-

Victor HERREROZGLAEBR ZE - =ZE MBI H B ERA S IJERIT
ERRS

(b) EFZRAEF]
BE_T - HF+ A=+ RUEFERESFREEGREUE
ERIEN BE—E - —F+ "B =+—H.LLHB: ) -

(0 EFZRILERAER
BE_E_ _HF+ A=t RULFEHESEREERIEE

(QES

IHEREN BE—F_—F+_RB=+—HLHHE & -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
07 =

TS SRR

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)
Directors’ remuneration for the year/period disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows: (continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services (for the period ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors (for the
period ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the
year (for the period ended 31 December 2021: Nil) other than those disclosed in note 33.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included 1 (for the period ended 31 December 2021: 3)
director, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining 4 (for the period ended 31 December 2021: 2) highest paid employees who are not directors of

10 AaREHES
ERNILRSHESEE % BE T —F+ A=+ —HILLH
A =%) B HMS BB IR LM -Heame HE—2
A+ ZB=+—HIB W) AAR RSP ESREE S

the Company are as follows: SHIBWT:
Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
BE EES
—E_C BT
+=B=+-8H +=A=+-8
HK$'000 IEEE LEHARS BT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8,502 4,423 e R REY G
Bonus 1,528 114 TE4T
Equity-settled share option expense 3,855 595 HmAEERERS
Pension scheme contributions 127 58 RIREFTEIETR
14,012 5,190
The emoluments fell within the following bands: &/ TS E
Number of employees
EE#E
Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
BE HE
—E_C BT
+=B=+—H +—-—B=+—H
IEFE LEHARS
Emolument bands: e E =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 3 - 781%1,500,001 70 2 A 12,000,0007T %
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1 781%2,000,00170 2 A 12,500,00070 g o
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 - 1 7&1%2,500,00175 2 A 13,000,0007T ;i §,
Over HK$3,000,000 1 = 7 1£3,000,00070 L £ 3% §
=
4 2 S
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FRiSIRAZ
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (for the period ended 31 December EEFSIRERFERN ZEHERDEFN UIRE16.5% BEZE"—
2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. The mainland China Corporate Income F+ZB=+—HILHF:16.5%) BB EH -RPBEAEERIEL 2
Tax provision in respect of the operation in mainland China is calculated based on the statutory tax rate FREI A FE R PRSI R AT AREAERI IR T AR R B B AR E G
of 25% (for the period ended 31 December 2021: 25%) on the estimated profits for the year based on shafU25% BEZZ - —F+"A=+—H1EHE:125%) ZEE
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof. Taxation on overseas profits has been MESTE o BINGERRIBTIREN BN 2 AT SRR A R R IR A5
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year/period at the rates of taxation prevailing in the B EBL SRR 2RI E

countries in which the Group operates.

Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
BE EES
—E-= —mo
+-BA=+—H +-A=+—H
HK$'000 IEEFEE 1EEARS BT T
Current income tax BIHARR 1SR
— Hong Kong profits tax 1,052 1,291 —E5ANER
— Overseas taxation 551 664 —BIMRIE
1,603 1,955
(Over) /under provision in prior years BEEE (BEER BERR
— Hong Kong profits tax (399) 381 —BBHER
1,204 2,336
Deferred income tax (note 25) (833) 556 IRIEFT1SHR (BPEE25)
371 2,892
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

11 FRiSIRAEY (&)

AEEFRFTS R AR AR ERRE A R S BER A AN 19
MERSE IR ENE 2RI T

Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
BE qHE
—EC-CF TR
+=A=+—~ +=A=+-8
HK$'000 IEEE LEFARS BT T
Loss before income tax from continuing operations (131,883) (337,167) RS X 2 RS MRAIER
Loss before income tax from a discontinued operation - (378) B IEERE 2 BRFTSRAIEE
(131,883) (337,545)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable BERRSBERZ aN 2z EMRESTE 2 RIE
to profits in the respective countries* (42,375) (65,960)
Tax effects of: MBLE !
— Income not subject to tax (38,720) (14,431) —BEMR Z A
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 18,582 14,843 —AAEREIR X
— Tax losses and temporary differences for which no — RERIRIERIEE E 2 IR B R BRI ERE
deferred tax asset was recognised 65,764 68,043
— Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (2,316) (483) —ENA SRR 2 M IER 1A
- Others - 664 —HAth
(Over)/under provision in prior years (399) 381 BEFEE (BEEH) BELRE
Tax concession (note) (165) (165) MBI (55
Income tax expense 371 2,892 PSR
Income tax expense from continuing operations 371 2,892 REREXEB MEMAEXS

Income tax expense from a discontinued operation

*  The weighted average applicable tax rate was 32.1% (for the period ended 31 December 2021: 19.6%).

BRIEEBZ PSR

* ERZMEFEREAI2A% EE_SE_—F+"_B=1+—HIH
R :19.6%) ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

1

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
Note:

Pursuant to the enactment of two-tiered profits tax rates by the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong (“IRD")
from the year of assessment 2020/21 onwards, the Group’s first HK$2 million of assessable profits under Hong Kong
profits tax is subject to tax rate of 8.25%. The Group's remaining assessable profits above HK$2 million will continue to
be subject to a tax rate of 16.5%.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 2 March 2020, the Group announced a plan to wind down the Group’s retail operation in Taiwan
(the "Taiwan segment”) considering that it was not optimistic about the near term prospect of the
Taiwan segment and the cessation of Taiwan segment operation could enable the Group to better
utilise its resources in its other segments. As at 31 December 2021, all retail shops in Taiwan had ceased
operation. The Taiwan segment was thus classified as discontinued operation and no longer included in
the note for operating segment information. Further details of the above were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 2 March 2020.
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RESERBR ((MHEF) B2 " —FREEEHIEZMRGIF
FRE AEEEBE2E B TERNETN 2R ER8.25% - AEMEBR B
2B BT FERE R R B 1%16 5% 2 FRE-IR

B IEERE

R _E_ZTE=-A_H AERELMRAATERNR S BNTEXR
(TeENHR)) 2518 ZRIAEEH GED BN RRRZATR
RREEER U IEEEQE N BRI A SRR Eth BB ERE RN
TR —H+ " RA=+—H AR ENTEERHERILES AL
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

12 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)
The results of the discontinued operation for the period are presented as below:

12 BARIEERE (B)
B S F A #E 25T

Period ended
31 December 2021

HE
-
+=A=+-8
HK$'000 LEFARS BT T
Revenue - &
Cost of sales - 4 & A A
Gross profit = EH)
Other income and gain 17 H AU A R e
Selling, distribution and other operating expenses - HE DR EMEERS
Administrative expenses (395) TERSZ
Loss from operating activities from a discontinued operation (378) ERIEEF 2 EEFEREE
Finance costs - 2%
Loss before tax from a discontinued operation (378) BERIEEFZ RINAIEIE
Income tax expense - PSR
Loss for the period from a discontinued operation (378) BERIEFEFZ BHRNEE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

12 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 12 BERLIEET (8)
The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation are as follows: BRIEEBRES 2FREREHINUT:

Period ended
31 December 2021

HE
T
+=B=+-8
HK$'000 LEERE BT
Operating activities - HIEER
Investing activities - KEEE
Financing activities - MEHE)
Net cash inflow - FIRESRA
Loss per share: SAEETIE
Basic, from a discontinued operation (HK0.02 cent 7&1l) BEX RBEARIEER
Diluted, from a discontinued operation (HK0.02 cent 1Ll BHE REERIEER
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from the discontinued operation are based on: REERIEEE 2 EREAN R SEIETRE NS B E

Period ended
31 December 2021

HE
T
+ZB=+—H”
HK$'000 LEEARS BT T
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of RAB)EBEREARBLIRBEEA IEEFE B
the Company from a discontinued operation (378)
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12

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from the discontinued operation are based on:
(continued)

Period ended
31 December 2021

12 BARIEERE (B)
REER L% SREARBEFEIRE T SESE: (@)

HE
T —F
+ZA=+—H
LEFARE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue AR EEREARBIE N
during the period used in the basic loss BETEBRMETOE (fH5t14)
per share calculation (note 14) 2,061,332,475
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue Bt EEREERIE R
during the period used in the diluted loss BT ERMETSE (sE14)
per share calculation (note 14) 2,061,332,475
13 DIVIDEND 13 KRR

14

No final dividend was proposed for the year ended 31 December 2022 and for the period ended 31
December 2021.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 is based on the loss for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$132,254,000, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 2,468,246,179 in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the period ended 31 December 2021 is based on the loss
for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company from continuing operations of
HK$340,059,000 and the loss from a discontinued operation of HK$378,000, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 2,061,332,475 in issue during the period.

BE T H+ A=+ HLEFERBE"ZT"—F+°8
=+ BB ERCREAR S

14 FAFRLEERNE AELSREE
BHE_ - F+ - RA=t+—HIEEERENEGEEDIRERAAT
TR A A ENEIEEE132,254,000 TR ENE BITZE
RINFEFE9$02,468,246,1798% 51 &

HE—ZT - —F+-" A=+ R SRESHENRBFELS
EEK 2 AAB S EERSE AR Y5340,059,0007T K
BARIE#55 2 E51EH15378,0007T ) K HIA B 847 Z @ RN F 198
2,061,332,47588 5150
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

14 LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14 XA EEE A ARGEREE (@)
(continued)
Weighted average number of the ordinary shares EiERMET9HE
2022 2021

ot -5 —F——F
Issued shares at 1 January/1 July 2,465,750,091 1,641,333,394 R—B—H/tBA—RBE%#17k{»
Effect of share options exercised 2,496,088 1,135,677 TEEREE
Effect of rights issue including bonus elements (note 26(c)) = 418,863,404 HAEBIEANE D 22 (I5E26(0)
Weighted average number of shares at 31 December 2,468,246,179 2,061,332,475 R+ZB=+—HZRHMEFEH
The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 and for the period ended 31 December EREREZ SR EsRES AtBE " T __F+_/A=+—
2021 equals to the basic loss per share as the impact of dilution of the share options is anti-dilutive. HIEFEREE_Z_—F+-_A=+—HI R SREE5GIEH

SREAFEER-C
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 ME--BRERHEE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
R HEEBR
HK$'000 AEMELE WAERE "E HE BT
At 1 July 2020 RZEZZHFtHB—H
Cost 256,629 214,575 2,397 473,601 %N =]
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  (244,536) (201,201) (2,344) (448,081) REHTERRIE
Net book amount 12,093 13,374 53 25,520 REDEE
Period ended 31 December 2021 BE-TE-_—F+"H=+—HLHME
Opening net book amount 12,093 13,374 53 25,520 HRFDARERE
Additions 35,091 8,713 = 43,804 =T
Disposals (1,766) - - (1,766) HE
Impairment (16,839) (4,709) = (21,548) BE
Depreciation (15,073) (8,394) = (23,467) e
Exchange realignment 3,256 1,406 1 4,663 A EE
Closing net book amount 16,762 10,390 54 27,206 HAARBRERE
At 31 December 2021 RZZ-_—H+"H=+—H
Cost 241,058 216,165 1,042 458,265 A&
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  (224,296) (205,775) (988) (431,059) REHTERRE
Net book amount 16,762 10,390 54 27,206 REFE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15 ME- KR KkHE (4E)
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
R EER
HK$'000 HEMELERE WAERME pat:] HE BT
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZE__S+_"_RA=+—HILEE
Opening net book amount 16,762 10,390 54 27,206 FAYIARE#E
Additions 38,660 10,231 275 49,166 E
Disposals (1,183) (423) ¥ (1,613) HE
Impairment (19,694) (1,869) - (21,563) EA ]
Depreciation (15,240) (1,201) (9) (16,450) e
Exchange realignment (2,799) (507) (58) (3,364) AR
Closing net book amount 16,506 16,621 255 33,382 HAARBRER1E
At 31 December 2022 RZE__HF+”"H=+—H
Cost 247,711 221,370 1,183 470,264 [D®N =]
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  (231,205) (204,749) (928) (436,882) RETITERBE
Net book amount 16,506 16,621 255 33,382 REVEE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15 5% BRE Rt (48)
The directors of the Group regard each retail store as an individual cash-generating unit for “bossini” KREEEFREBTEERZA bossini) Kz bossini. X Z B IR & EE
and “bossini.X” which mainly consist of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. As at 31 B TZ2EEME-BERREUARGRAEEE NS "+
December 2022, the carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of-use B=+—B REBYZE BERZEUREREEE ZREED T
assets are analysed as follows: T

“bossini” “bossini.X" Total

HK$'000 I'bossini | Ibossini.X | fmst BT T
Property, plant and equipment 16,765 16,617 33,382 =~ ﬁ?%&%ﬁ
Right-of-use assets (note 17a(i)) 76,350 12,871 89,221 fEAEEE (ist17a0))
Total 93,115 29,488 122,603 MBSt
In 2021, in addition to the original “bossini” product line operated in Hong Kong, Macau, mainland NZEZ—F BREA VR FREAERTMNESE ZRES
China and Singapore, the Group has launched a new product line namely “bossini. X" and opened retail Mbossinil R7IM ANEEEIEHFT R %43 Tbossini. X » 1 F EFLHE]
stores mainly in mainland China. “bossini.X" stores are at the early stage of development with historical RERRZEEFHC Tbossini X [EHHEN I BISE A BT E
operation data available for a relatively short period of time. ERE 2 SRR BT
In view of the continuous unfavourable operating environment experienced by the retail industry due to ERRBEET SRR EMERTE R EEE N ZE/mIRER U
the outbreak of COVID-19 and the uncertainty with respect to the timing of the recovery and possible T 78~ P FR R AP KRN B B A B R B E R A2 18 FERr
deterioration of the economic condition and retail sentiment in Hong Kong, Macau, mainland China and IR E B rl fEEE 2 » B84 Mbossini) Kz Tbossini X | IR EE B2
Singapore markets, the directors consider that certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use ETYERE RSB R EREEER SR IRRE

assets of “bossini” and “bossini.X" cash-generating units were subject to impairment.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15 Y% -RERRE (@
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The directors estimate the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit as follows:

Impairment assessment — “bossini” cash-generating units

As at 31 December 2022, management identified that certain stores had impairment indicators. The
recoverable amounts of HK$16,765,000 and HK$76,350,000 for property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets, respectively of the “bossini” cash-generating units have been determined based on
a value-in-use calculation which was prepared by the management using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets and forecasts covering the remaining useful lives of the property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets based on the conditions as at 31 December 2022. Key assumptions used for the
value-in-use calculation as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 were as follows:

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation for “bossini” cash-generating units:

EFASIREEE B2 AIREEERIN T

JA1E5FE — [bossini | B2 L B

A CHF+_RA=+—H BEEMIETEHREREAETN R
Mbossini) IREFELE B ZME - -BERRBEUREREEEZ TG
BRED R 5 B1E16,765,0007T K AB1£76,350,0007T A HEIEE 4R
BZRSREEARERN S 5+ "B =1+—HNBE Rz FEHE
B8 REREBAENKEDE - BERRBEUREREEERT
AfERAFERZ M EEEREAFE R B2 5+ "A=1+—HK
TR F+RB=1+—HiEEREEMRAZEERRUNT:

& Noossini  IREEL BN FREEFMRBEZETE/RRWT:

2022 2021
—E-— B
Sales growth rate (note) (Ht3E) 0% PeEmER
Gross margin rate 28% - 63% 44% - 70% EFE
Pre-tax discount rate 13% - 14% 13% — 14% MATARIR =
Note: MEEE

Forecast sales of “bossini” cash-generating units was based on the budget approved by senior management for the
year ending 31 December 2023, 0% sales growth was assumed for the remaining period of the lease terms.

The directors determined the above sales growth rate and gross margin rate based on historical operation
data, and budgeted sales based on the business plan after taking into consideration of the negative
impact of COVID-19 in the current year and the positive outlook for the near future.

Based on the results of the assessment, impairment provisions of HK$10,805,000 (for the period ended
31 December 2021: HK$67,600,000) for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were
recognised in loss for continuing operations during the year ended 31 December 2022 for “bossini” cash-
generating units.

1 54ANNUAL REPORT 2022 R

Mbossini | RE AL BEMNERBHENERNESREEERERE—_S "=
FHZA=+-HLEFEZRE  RRFFERAZHELRES 0%

EFREELEEMEETE LMHERRERENZ URNEEE
AEEHAEENRENEET BN R RBIRIRES 8
EFREIHE-

BEHMEER BE_F " —F+_A=+—HILFE Exi bossini
REEE B FHRICEEXTF ZERES %% V%& RFELURAER
WEE 2 RE##HE110,805,0007t (BZE —F+ZRA=+—
H L8R - 7B#867,600,0007T) ©



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Impairment assessment — “bossini” cash-generating units (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December 2023 applied to the cash
flow projection for “bossini” cash-generating units had been higher/lower by 10%, an impairment charge
of approximate HK$2,789,000 lower or HK$5,035,000 higher, respectively would be resulted.

As at 31 December 2022, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December 2023 applied to the cash
flow projection for “bossini” cash-generating units had been higher/lower by 20%, an impairment charge
of approximate HK$3,435,000 lower or HK$10,811,000 higher, respectively would be resulted.

As at 31 December 2022, if the discount rate applied to the cash flow projection for “bossini” cash-
generating units had been higher/lower by 1%, an impairment charge of approximate HK$163,000 higher
or HK$166,000 lower, respectively would be resulted.

Impairment assessment — “bossini. X" cash-generating units

As at 31 December 2022, management identified that certain stores had impairment indicators. The
recoverable amounts of HK$16,617,000 and HK$12,871,000 for property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets, respectively of the “bossini.X" cash-generating units have been determined based on
a value-in-use calculation which was prepared by the management using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets and forecasts covering the remaining useful lives of the property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets based on the conditions as at 31 December 2022. Key assumptions used for the
value-in-use calculation as at 31 December 2022 were as follows:

15 Y5 ME Reaafi (48)

JB1EETE — Thossini) H=E £ BT (#8)

AR+ A=t —H WERBREE_=F+"_RA=1+—
HIEFERLbossini) fﬁ@éiﬁuzfﬁﬁméﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁZ%Efﬁﬂﬁ’%i
N/ EAN0% 2 B E R 2 BlR A 49785 2,789,000 70 SIS B S
5,035,0007T°

N B —FE+-A=t+—H ' WEREE— S =F+ A =+—
HiEEE Rt Tbossini | IS EE BN 2RSS RETEAERZ BRI EE
0/ B 20% BB E B 2 BR D A9 3,435,000 0 G N B #s
10,811,0007T°

N_E - —F+_H=+—H W& bossini ) IR EE BN RS
TRETERMER Z ARIREIEI, R % BEE B D B N4 ST
163,000703:8/ 71 166,0007T°

T 1EFE L — [bossini X IB= L BT
R - —H+_A=+—H EEBEE#VETFESHLRREN R

Moossini. X1 IREELBMUZME--BRERRBEARGAEEEZ AT

[B]£ 88D B A 7B1616,617,00070 5 81€12,871,00070 B HEIEE
RUZIBERSEAREN S —_F+ "B =+—HWERZER

BENE RERERAENREYE - BEARBEUREARBEER

TR MHERERBASGE N B2 _F+ "8 =+—H
stEERBEMFRAZE2RERUT:
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15 Y% -RERRE (@

c
.2
=
©
£
S
(<]
2
=
el
v
c
]
c
£

MBER

Impairment assessment — “bossini. X" cash-generating units (continued)
Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation for “bossini.X" cash-generating units:

JB1EETHE — [bossini X HREEE B (B)
stE Tbossini. X IREEL B FRABEFRABZ T E2/HRERNT:

2022 2021
ZECCHE %
Sales growth rate (note(a)) (Kf{zE(a)) (note(b)) (FftzE(b)) fyEmE R
Gross margin rate 18% - 65% 31% — 59% EF=E
Pre-tax discount rate 14% 14% R ATRRIR =
Notes: MIEE

(@) Forecast sales of “bossini. X" cash-generating units was based on the budget approved by senior management for
the year ending 31 December 2023, 33% sales growth for the year ending 31 December 2024 and the growth
rate was assumed to be stable for the remaining period of the lease terms.

(b) Sales growth rate for “bossini.X” cash-generating units was based on the budgeted sales approved by senior
management for the year ending 31 December 2022, 100% sales growth for the year ending 31 December 2023,
further 50% sales for the year ending 31 December 2024 and remain stable thereafter.

The directors determined the above sales growth rate and gross margin rate based on historical operation
data, and budgeted sales based on the business plan after taking into consideration of the negative
impact of COVID-19 in the current year and the positive outlook for the near future.

Based on the results of the assessment, impairment provisions of HK$67,535,000 for property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were recognised in loss for continuing operations during the year
ended 31 December 2022 for “bossini.X" cash-generating units.

As at 31 December 2022, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December 2023 applied to the cash
flow projection for “bossini.X” cash-generating units had been higher/lower by 10%, an impairment
charge of approximate HK$11,967,000 lower or HK$6,781,000 higher, respectively would be resulted.

As at 31 December 2022, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December 2023 applied to the cash
flow projection for “bossini.X” cash-generating units had been higher/lower by 20%, an impairment
charge of approximate HK$24,168,000 lower or HK$12,503,000 higher, respectively would be resulted.

1 5 6ANNUAL REPORT 2022 R

(@ TbossiniX IREELBUNEHHEENENESRAEEBILERE
=+ A=+ HBHIEFEZRE-BREBEEZZNF+A
=+ —HIEEEZHEBRERIZ% TR RIGHHEPARE EERFET

(b) TbossiniX BEEEBEMHERERNARNESHKEEBHARSE
TR CHE+ A=+ HIEEEZEEHE BHE_S =1+
B=+—HIEFEZHEBEREI100% THREE_S_NE+_H
= t+—HIEEEE—PIEE 50%  HEBRIFEE-

EXREELEEHBEE LMHERRIREN R LR
ZRAEEMEENRENEER ERAANEERNRBIRE
A EEREHE -

BIBEIGER BE_ S - _F+_A=+—HLEE EM
Tbossini X | IREEE BN FELEER 2 BIEEIYE K
EREEUREREERE 2 R ER#H B 167,535,0007T

RIB__F+_RA=+—H WERBE_E_=F+_A8
=t+t—HLEEEF Tbossini X 1 IREELEEUN RS RETER
ERZFERIHER I, R 10%  REE B D BB
11,967,0007 3% 1 10 & #6,781,0007T ©

R -+ A=+—H ' MERBE_S_=F+_H4
=t+t—BLEEF TbossiniX | REEEEN RS HRETER
R FERISHE RN, B20% @ BEE D B4 HEE
24,168,0007T 8% 18 107 #%12,503,0007T ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Impairment assessment — “bossini. X" cash-generating units (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, if the discount rate applied to the cash flow projection for “bossini.X" cash-
generating units had been higher/lower by 1%, an impairment charge of approximate HK$140,000 higher
or HK$141,000 lower, respectively would be resulted.

15

MM R tf (48)
JRL1EETHE — [bossini X B& E £ B ()

N_E - —F+_H=+—H W& Tbossini X | IREELE
NUZIRERSTBAFERZBRIREE I, B % BEEBRD
A A0AT A 1E140,0007T 38 D B #141,0007T ©

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 REWE
2022 2021
HK$'000 —B_—fF “ET BETT
Carrying amount at beginning of year/period 4,687 16,776 REH,/ BRI AR EE
Depreciation provided during the year/period (586) (2,652) FEAHRIFTERE
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (note 22) - (9,437) BREESEABFHEZEE (Y5E22)
Carrying amount at end of year/period 4,101 4,687 REK R EREE

The directors of the Company have determined that the investment properties are industrial, based on the
nature, characteristics and risk of the properties. The Group's investment properties were valued as at the
end of the reporting period by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$104,400,000 (2021: HK$93,800,000). Each year, the Group’s management decide to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuation of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group's management have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
result once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial reporting. The investment
properties are leased to third parties under operating leases.

RENEZHE - FHREAR ARARESCETRENERTE
ﬁ’f%¥ AEEZREMERBIISEESERGEMEFHRTEE

RARBEHAR Z HEHE104,400,00070 (ZEEZ—F 8K
93,800,00075) FEEZ EBENSERAELEINEHE &aFH
NEBYFEETINMEE-SERECETISHH BB B UM RE
AR 2K %o ZK%@Z%@@EBAEFﬁﬁ“ﬁiLﬁTE{EH%?t
HERE A GEEERE G EME T R REYEDRBLEHE
FEHE=R°
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e AR MR

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

At 31 December 2022

Fair value measurement using

16 KREWE (B
DFERE
TR EEZREYME AT EFERE!

RIEZZF+=H=+—H

MBER

RE2AFENE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BAATHZ BARAHE
ERTIRRE HAYE HBAYE ot
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HK$'000 (B—FB) (BE=R) (B=R) BT
Recurring fair value measurement for: KEMATERHE:
Industrial properties - - 104,400 104,400 TIEM=
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+_HA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
KEZATESE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
E-pNGIEE BEATAHE
JERTISRE BAYE BAYE st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HK$'000 (E—/E) &E=ZB &E=B BT
Recurring fair value measurement for: MEERTFESE
Industrial properties - - 93,800 93,800 TEM=E
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e wR MG

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (for the period ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

As the investment properties are measured initially at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for
any impairment in value, there is no movement of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value is estimated using a direct comparison approach. Under the direct comparison approach, fair
value is estimated by using the direct comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the property
interest with the benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales transactions as
available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment properties, which include the
location, size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit
market price. The fair value measurement is based on the above properties highest and best use, which
does not differ from the actual use.

The key input is the unit market price. A significant increase/decrease in the market price will result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.

16 REWE (@)

ATEZRE (B
FRNE-EBES_EZETEATEHEZEE TMESANENE
—EZBEREEZ_—F+"A=+—HLtHH:® -

MR AR AA AR T E R BERE RSB
ATEREE= BRIBNZ AT B3 B RED-

AN HETYEREZILBOA G RIBEELLEVE ATETUERELER
B RRMERT IR EHEN KB ERRMTH S 2 A LB ER ST
{Ef&5te

ETHEREEEREVEZ S B UE - KIWTER KRB BE
SEREN REMRZR UG R B A5 ERE A T EFERRER LY
RUBERARERNRSRRERRSH-

e

TERABBEREUTISER BEHSEEAELA TERE 285
REYENTEKNELF Tk
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

17 LEASES 17 5
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (a) NiZEBFERRER ZFIE
(i) Right-of-use assets () REESE
2022 2021
HK$'000 S 2 TR BT
Buildings 89,221 112,261 ’F
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were HK$139,877,000 (for the period ended ERZEREEEREETE139,877,000Tt BE_ZT_—4
31 December 2021: HK$215,880,000). + -8B =+—HIEH5M  /B1215,880,0007T)
Impairment assessment A
As at 31 December 2022, management carried out a review of the recoverable amounts of its N BT HF+_A=+—H EEBHEYE -RERRE
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. Details of the impairment assessment on MU ERAEEEZ O BETER -AEER —2 "
the Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2022 are F+ZA=+—BzME- - BERZEUREREEE R
disclosed in note 15. EHheFIBEE M 15 E e
(i) Lease liabilities () HEEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 - T BT
Non-current 140,083 155,783 JEENHAZR
Current 74,643 91,844 BNEAER 7
214,726 247,627
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

17 LEASES (continued) 17 HHE @)
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (continued) (a) MizEMIFIRRARER 2 TIE (48)
(ii) Lease liabilities (continued) () HEEE#)
During the year ended 31 December 2022 and the period ended 31 December 2021, the HEZ_ _HF+-A=+—HIFEKRBEZZ_—%F
Group received COVID-19-related rent concessions from landlords for certain lease properties +ZA=+—HLHR ~EERE THEMERSEESA
which have been accounted for as negative variable lease payments and recognised in “Selling, T ERmEEREEER B7RAS8EHEE NI
distribution and other operating expenses” (note 8) under the amendments to HKFRS 16. RIRE B FIEIREER] 551658 2 (BT MM & ~ D i R H At

BRI RERD (5ES)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other (b) RiFEEmREMEEINERES ZIE
comprehensive income

Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
e #z
—ECHF —ET—F
+-B=+—H +—-A=+—H
HK$'000 IEFE IEFARE BT T
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) 9,832 12,887 HEatZME H:E7)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 8) FREEEITE (5E8)
— Buildings 79,467 157,870 —&F
— Office equipment - 2 ) YNES L
Expenses relating to short-term leases (note 8) 19,102 59,434 CHRTR EAERIRE X (M95E8)
Impairment of right-of-use assets (note 8) 56,777 94,472 FREEEZRE (I:E8)
Gain on early termination of leases (note 8) (2,801) (4,538) RBELKRIEEE 2 G (iEE8)
Rent concessions related to COVID-19 pandemic (note 8) (6,102) (24,447) BHAERAR SR IEEE 2 EE =R (i5E8)
Variable lease payments not included in the TEEREEaGE2TEHEENR (EE8)
measurement of lease liabilities (note 8) 34,086 77,432 g
The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31 December 2022 was HK$127,850,000 (for HE_ S " F+_A=+—HIEFEZHERESRHEREAS s ;_’
the period ended 31 December 2021: HK$234,761,000) (note 30). #127,850,0007 BE-S-—E+"A=+—HLMEE B jicy
234,761,0007%) (HHEE30) © "3
o
=]
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

17 LEASES (continued)

(o)

(d)

(e)

1624

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for

As a lessee

The Group leases various buildings and office equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 1 to 15 years, but may have extension and termination options as described in (d) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases across the Group.
These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority
of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective
lessor.

Variable lease payments

The Group leased a number of the retail stores which contain variable lease payment terms that
are based on the Group’s turnover generated from the retail stores. There are also minimum
annual base rental arrangements for these leases. The amounts of the short-term and low-value
leases and variable lease payments recognised in profit or loss for the current year for these leases
are HK$19,578,000 and HK$34,086,000, respectively (for the period ended 31 December 2021:
HK$59,434,000 and HK$77,432,000, respectively) (note 8).

NNUAL REPORT 2022 %R

17 FHE (@)

(0

(d)

(e)

TEEZHEEHRE G SRR

TEAATN
FEERSZBEEFRMAERB - HEGHN—REB1E155E
TEHAMR MR SEMAE R IEF RGBSR (R TX() °

HEEFRFEILFE B38BT RRRRUR R

IER TR AR L
FEBETYFEBEEILERLRIDERER - ZEHRANERE
MNERESNEENRERIERR -PIFNASDIER R LE
EERED AAERTE MA S BEENHBE AT E.

AIETEE (IR

AERBASHTEESH EEAENRERIREAERERT
EERELEVEXEMEE ZSHETEREFEEAHEER
oM AEERZERENERRR R EEERE R
FAE T EZE D Bl A 31£19,578,0007T K & 1€34,086,00070 (B E
—E T+ H=+—HIHBE: 2R %&E159,434,0007T K
Hi&77,432,0007T) (FiEES) o
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

18 INVENTORIES 18 &
2022 2021
HK$'000 oSt = B —F BiEFT
Raw materials 694 602 [Fk
Finished goods 203,377 217,193 S ¥ oh
204,071 217,795
Less: Provision for write-down of inventories B WO EE R EIRRE B
to net realisable value (32,205) (31,203)
171,866 186,592

(a)

(b)

Assigning costs to inventories

The costs of individual inventory are determined using first-in, first-out basis.

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Cost of inventories sold recognised as an expense during the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to HK$310,929,000 (for the period ended 31 December 2021: HK$579,364,000) (note 8).

Provision for inventories to net realisable value amounted to HK$1,002,000 for the year ended 31
December 2022 (for the period ended 31 December 2021: write-back of provision for inventories of
HK$11,548,000). These were included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income during the year (note 8).

(a) RETDEEFE
ERIFERARBAASHEREEE-

(b) MIEEMERZFIE
HE T CE+ A=t —HIFERIARZZEHEES
A7 1310,929,000 0 (HBE_E-_—FE+_-_F=+—HIH
RS 18579,364,0007T) (F{EE8) o

BE_ TS+ A=-t+—HIEEE $EEREEYHIEE
EABEE1,002,000 EE_S_—F+_"_B=+—HILHR:
FE R EO]781511,548,00070) - ARIFIEE st AER TS I8 5
REMEERGR SR (f5E8)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

19 DEBTORS

Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit periods of up to 60 days to its
trade customers. Each trade customer has a maximum credit limit, except for new trade customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade customers relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade debtor balances. Debtors are non-interest-bearing and stated at
net of loss allowance.

19 FEURARTR

BIRERERFFEIN AEBE—RBER TR TFEESERRS60
REEHFMBEZER —RARNRIEIN REZETRIRARSE
EPRER - A MR RN O]~ PR AR AR AE R BREE 1 A R R =
REEETERFLER BN U LMt RAERZ E5E R EGSH
B2 HENRRRM WAERTREsEER 2 EERR -AEET
ROLH E 5 BRI A AR R Rl S BRA E MBI
RIS WHIFREIR R HT AR

2022 2021
HK$'000 T F BT BT
Debtors 24,799 25,646 FEWER =X
Less: Loss allowance (note 3.1(b)) (240) (253) B EsIEEME (MEE3.1(b))
24,559 25,393
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

19 DEBTORS (continued)
An ageing analysis of debtors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

loss allowance, is as follows:

19 FEURARTR (4%)
WUF 7552 B TR B R FE WOIRAR I SR S HASR 2 BRIV AT

2022 2021
HK$'000 —E-F —E BT
Within 1 month 15,861 21,205 R—EB RN
1 to 2 months 6,110 2,980 —ZEmEA
2 to 3 months 537 147 mME=1E8
Over 3 months 2,051 1,061 BE=1EA
24,559 25,393

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a

lifetime expected loss allowance for all debtors.

Note 3.1(b) provides for details of the loss allowance. The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables has been included in “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the loss allowance

account are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The carrying amounts of debtors approximated their fair values. The Group does not hold any collateral as

security for its receivables.

FEBRAEBUBEREREISRAF ZBESE FARAEIGR
T TR E BEies R TEHE B 1R

BRABR R B EIIIEES. 1 (b) EIRE RN 2 57 3L Ko 8 (Bl

Bt AGraEmREMEERGER Y THE Dk HMEERS o2
TRAIE AR [OBRI MR 5 PO R B R AR PR RUR— AR T LUHEN -

FEWBRMR < BREN(E A1 5 2 A THEMRS A E B I ERA AR m
TR EFEW IR HElRo
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

20 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 FRIRIE-HERHEMBEUIRE
2022 2021

HK$'000 B HE =T BB
Prepayments 11,968 19,053 FEfTFRIE
Deposits 66,632 66,272 &
Other receivables 19,811 25,388 HthFEUARIE
Less: Loss allowance (note 3.1(b)) (1,318) (1,351) B B ERE (HEE3.1(b))

97,093 109,362
Less: Non-current deposits (28,567) (33,811) B IEENERE S
Current portion 68,526 75,551 BOERERD
Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits and deposits with suppliers. e hHEMEWERIE T BT RES MR 2 ZE-
Deposits and other receivables are measured at amortised costs. During the year, apart from certain B EMEWRERIBT IR AT 2 F N BRI EEBAZY
deposits and other receivables that written off amounting to HK$547,000 (for the period ended 31 FREMERD AR ENE 2 ETHE & EMEUWIRTEME B
December 2021: HK$132,000), which were considered by the directors as irrecoverable due to the 547,000t BE-Z _—F+_HB=-+—HIEEAR : B#132,0007T)
financial difficulties experienced by these debtors, the Group assessed the loss allowance and the SOREBR B _FR-ET—F+_RA=1+—HERBEENS
expected credit loss rate under the application of HKFRS 9 as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The detail FEIRZER F oSt TMh B E ARG BB A RS R E MR
information about the credit risk and impairment analysis of deposits and other receivables can be found B EERERBED T2 SRR 25153, 1(b)e

in note 3.1(b).

The carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and other receivables approximate to their fair value. AN ZE A A MEWERIE 2 BRE BRI E 2 A EEE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 21 RERFEFEHERFIBFRITER
2022 2021
HK$'000 kS TEC BT T
Cash and bank balances 93,142 240,236 IRE R ERTTAEER
Non-pledged bank deposit with original maturity of less than REFREIHE DR =EA 2 BIERRITFEMR
three months when acquired - 26,419
93,142 266,655
Pledged bank deposits with original maturity of more than RENFREIHEBA=E8 2B RRRITER
three months when acquired 127 1,959
Total and maximum exposure to credit risk 93,269 268,614 st e AEERRE
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi RHREPR AEBUARBEEZREAASESEEEAR B
amounted to HK$25,698,000 (2021: HK$125,343,000). Renminbi is not freely convertible into other 25,698,0007T (— & — —4 : ##5125,343,0007T) - AREFRFEERR
currencies. However, under mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration BEMEE EARBETREAEINEE A RO MG E EE RN EEIE
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RE AEREERBERELEINEER Z IRITHARE RIR I
Renminbi for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. o
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term bank deposits IRITERE HIZIBTERNEETE 2 T e et B FaHRRITE U
are made for varying periods of between 2 weeks and 2 months depending on the immediate cash BNT22HE2E A TR FAER 2 AIFEREREME RIZHEAZ
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term bank deposit rates. FRHRIRI T A Z T B
The pledged bank deposits of HK$127,000 (2021: HK$1,959,000) were pledged to banks as security for RIEBE-ZH+-A=+—08 BiRRRITERER127,000T (C=
bank guarantees for overseas subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2022. ——F 1 4¥51,959,0007T) EIRIRFIRITIER A ERIBINE A B HL T
BRI TR Z IR 3
25
The cash and bank balances, non-pledged bank deposit and pledged bank deposits are deposited with & RIRITHEER BRIERIRITER R B IRIRRITEMR EF R BT i’z =)
creditworthy financial institutions with no recent history of default. FIENTRMEAEE 2 SRR * §
Q
S
=]
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

22 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 22 DERFFHEZEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 —T_—fF =T BB
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFIEHEZEE
— Investment properties - 9,437 —RKEBEYE

On 30 December 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Vendor”) and purchaser entered A F+ A=+ ARBEERBAR ((E51) BEHGE]
into the provisional agreements for the sale and purchase of the properties at the aggregate consideration TR R U B E SR BN EREE184,729,500 T B B
of HK$184,729,500. The disposal of the properties (the “Disposal”) was completed on 15 March 2022. ZHE(HREFBE) R B2 F=B+hH%M HEFEEL >
The net proceeds arising from the Disposal was HK$183,122,000 (after deducting the expected expenses FSRIE /25823 7815183,122,0005T (K I0PR H & EIEMER 2 TEHIRS
in relation to the Disposal). Based on the net proceeds of the Disposal amounting to HK$183,122,000 and ) IRIEH EEIEZ PRSIEFREE15183,122,0007 T EZ EM L
the carrying amount of the properties of HK$9,437,000 as at 31 December 2021, a gain on disposal of 2T+ A=+—HZIRAEER9,437,000 0 BEZZ "
HK$173,685,000 was recognised in “Other income and gain” (note 6) for the year ended 31 December F+ZA=+—BLFE HEWEE173,685,0007 B 1 MEAMIUL
2022. AR Mz ) (fizEe) PamEse
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

23 TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23 FE(IERTR HfthFE(TRIE R FESTERIA
2022 2021
HK$'000 k=S =& BETT
Trade creditors 43,861 83,144 FEATERTR
Other payables 42,058 53,753 H A FE (T FRIE
Accruals 69,685 75,896 FESTERIA
155,604 212,793
Less: Non-current portion (5,003) (2,469) B - IFBIERER (D
Current portion 150,601 210,324 BPEAZR1A
An ageing analysis of trade creditors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as MU A3 E HERS AR IR S HAR 2 BRE D AT -
follows:
2022 2021
HK$'000 —z—— T BT T
Within 1 month 23,169 33,874 R—EA A
1 to 2 months 16,057 29,847 —EmEA
2 to 3 months 3,992 18,875 ME =188
Over 3 months 643 548 BE=EA
43,861 83,144
The trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days. FEMTBRFRZS 2 B e — MR 30K E60KASZ fife -
T
()
The carrying amounts of trade creditors, other payables and accruals approximate to their fair values. FEMTBRFR HAFE TR IE R FESTRRIE 2 BREE SR E 2 AT EE G ] é
=
The other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of 1 month, except for other HitENRIEARE RN 2 - _F+"A=+—HB—F8HEMNF E )
payables of HK$5,003,000 (2021: HK$2,469,000) as at 31 December 2022, which are not payable within RERE 2 B RUEAYES,003,0007T (ZZ ——4 412,469,000 =3
N ~+
1 year. 70 9 HiRz FHERR A 18 A o S
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

24 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24 EHE[R
2022 2021

HK$'000 B HE =T BB

Distribution of garments — advances received from customers 3,607 3,233 MK i — TR R AR

Retailing of garments — customer loyalty programme 132 231 MR ETE K P B REN T2

Total contract liabilities 3,739 3,464 mENEaR

Notes: MI5E

(@) Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver garment products and the customer loyalty (@ BHAEGREREARMNRKERWRZEHBERFIERE S BHIZEET
programme. &0

(b) The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and omit disclosure of remaining performance obligations as b)) HAEBREMBEEMENZERA—FIUT $EERARTHE
all related contracts have a duration of one year or less. MBS ERBR T 2 BAOFE-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 25 IRIEFRISHR
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows: IRIERRIRE E RORIEAR BB EZ DTl R
2022 2021
HK$'000 ZEICZHE BT —F BT T
Deferred tax assets: FIETRIBEE ©
— To be recovered after more than 12 months 300 311 —BREBBE12E B BUE
Deferred tax liabilities: REMRIBAE !
— To be settled after more than 12 months (410) (1,254) —BRiBRE12E B BEN
Deferred tax liabilities, net (110) (943) REMRIBEE 228
The gross movement on the deferred income tax is as follows: IRIEPRSIR 2 BERR N T -
HK$'000 BT T
At 1 July 2020 (387) RIZ2ZZEHFtHA—H
Charged to profit or loss (note 11) (556) Rk GEsE11)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 (943) WIEZ—F+ZHA=+—HRZZEZZH£—H—H
Credited to profit or loss (note 11) 833 Rimst A (EsE1)
At 31 December 2022 (110) RZE_—_F+-RA=+—H
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bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 25 JRIEFRISH (48)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year/period, without taking into FERN/HRIBEREEEREE WET AR —REAEEHFZ
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: HR8H) 2 BT
Deferred tax assets IRIETRIBE &
Decelerated tax
depreciation Others Total
HK$'000 BRI IETEE HAth “ast BT T
At 1 July 2020 82 304 386 ﬁA: T_ETHFLtH—H
Charged to profit or loss (58) (17) (75) Ri8m 0k
At 31 December 2021 and RZE_—H+"A=+—HKRZE-_”"F—H—H
1 January 2022 24 287 311
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 77 (88) (11) BRI A (R
At 31 December 2022 101 199 300 KRB _HF+”"B=+—H
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE

Revaluation of

property
HK$'000 MEEML BT
At 1 July 2020 773 RZZEZEHFtHA—H
Charged to profit or loss 481 =l 0] 55
[=
2 At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 1,254 R_E_—H+"HA=+—HRZ-E-”"_%—H—H
£ o Credited to profit or loss (844) RIERETA
:
e !
£ 1
S At 31 December 2022 410 RZE2EZZH&+ZH=+—H
g
=
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated tax losses of HK$664,087,000 (2021:
HK$590,206,000) arising in Hong Kong that were available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group had estimated tax losses arising in
Macau of HK$33,447,000 (2021: HK$36,739,000) and in mainland China of HK$436,510,000 (2021:
HK$258,721,000) that can be used to offset against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose for a maximum of 3 years and 5 years, respectively. The Group had estimated tax losses
arising in Singapore of HK$69,060,000 (2021: HK$77,078,000) and in Malaysia of HK$5,113,000 (2021:
HK$5,400,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also had deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$5,074,000 (2021: HK$5,038,000) and HK$7,081,000 (2021: HK$7,478,000) in Singapore and
Malaysia, respectively, at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as in the opinion of the directors, it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable
profits will be generated against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the mainland China Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2022, no deferred income tax has been
recognised for withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that is subject to
withholding tax of a subsidiary of the Group established in mainland China. In the opinion of the directors,
it is not probable that the subsidiaries in mainland China will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. No temporary differences (2021: Nil) were associated with an investment in the subsidiary in
mainland China for which a deferred tax liability has not been recognised at 31 December 2022.

25 JEFEFRTSTR ()

RIRER AEEREBEE 2 E5tRIEREA B 664,087,000
Tt (CE - —F:%8#590,206,0007T) ol ERHE B FIRHE L EE
HAB] B2 FERRET o AR E BRI R PR AREEE 2 (511018
5189 Bl A&7 133,447,0007T (T — —4 1 781636,739,0007T) K8
#436,510,00070 (Z = ——4: ##6258,721,0007T) > P EE £ RIS 15
ARERE AR HBZEERN GRS DI =ZF R AF - AEER
03 Be B Ak A oe A 2 i s AR 18518 9 5l & 78 #569,060,0007T (&=
T4 8%.77,078,0007T) K ABHE5,113,0005T (22 Z—F B
5,400,0007T) » AJEEFRAA A (EIRIHE L E B AR H B Z FERRims o it
REHTR AREBP I & BRI N R R = 2R BUAY
7B1%5,074,0007T (& = —4 : 8185,038,00070) K AE17,081,0007T
(CZEZ—F:817,478,00070) - EEBA AN KEREHERRES
AEIE1S B ANFERM RN LURIE A BRI IS IRIERIE S E T E5
LR IRETHER

R B ARE R EATSIRE IR AR LN R E R MmN
REETRREBEMO%ENR AR EN ST NE—F—H
X WHEAR ST tE+ "B =+—HENRF (HE P ARE
YN EE R AR LR 5249 B Bl SEAA B AV TEIN R o Tt
NEEMS  BRMRKA10% EIib AEE BN PEARERILAZ
EHBATH BT \E—A— B EBEN R AR S i inTE
MR B2+ B =+—B A& EZNFEAEZ B AR
FESRIR AR B BF] 2 FEITBINIRM = > WA R IR FTSiR I8
EE0A PEAEWBABNR A REHIKES R Z A sl R
KR ZEZZF+-A=+—H AEEUE (CE—F.8) i*H
BAFEM B AR E M IR R RRE RIS & & 2 AR LRt =58
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e AR MR

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

26 ISSUED CAPITAL

26 BT

Shares &A%
2022 2021
HK$'000 B HE =T BETT
Authorised: EERA
3,000,000,000 (2021: 3,000,000,000) ordinary 3,000,000,0008% (& ——4 : 3,000,000,0004%)
shares of HK$0.10 each (note a) 300,000 300,000 SREEHBE10T 2 EER (f5ta)
Issued and fully paid: BETREERA :
2,470,358,091 (2021: 2,465,750,091) ordinary 2,470,358,091% (Z&=—%F : 2,465,750,0915%)
shares of HK$0.10 each 247,036 246,575 SREEBBI10TZEBR
During the year/period, the movements in issued capital were as follows: TR/ R BETRASEHTIM T
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
BETRHEE BEITRA P& 19 it 18 AR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 July 2020 1,641,333,394 164,134 29,020 193,154 RIEZZEF+HA—H
Exercise of share options (note b) 2,500,000 249 603 852 TR (Fystb)
Shares issued under rights issue (note ) 821,916,697 82,192 213,698 295,890 IRIE IR EETT 2 1D (i 5Ec)
Transaction costs incurred in respect of MPREEZZZRAE
rights issue - - (1,859) (1,859)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January W_Z2_—F+_A=+—HBKkZ"_"_F—H—H
2022 2,465,750,091 246,575 241,462 488,037
Exercise of share options (note d) 4,608,000 461 2,242 2,703 TR (Fystd)
At 31 December 2022 2,470,358,091 247,036 243,704 490,740 RE_—_&#+"HA=+—H
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

26 ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)
Shares (continued)
Notes:

(a)

On 4 March 2021, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to approve the authorised share capital of
the Company be increased from HK$200,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to
HK$300,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an additional 1,000,000,000 shares.

For the period ended 31 December 2021, the subscription rights attaching to 2,500,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.275 per share (note 27), resulting in the issue of 2,500,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$688,000, and the related share option
reserve of HK$164,000 was transferred to the share premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

After the completion of the rights issue on 12 April 2021, the Company raised gross proceeds of HK$295,890,000
before expenses by issuing 821,916,697 rights shares at a price of HK$0.360 per rights share on the basis of one
(1) rights share for every two (2) then existing shares to the qualifying shareholders. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue for the purpose of calculation of basic and diluted loss per share has been adjusted for
the bonus element of the rights issue.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the subscription rights attaching to 4,608,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.456 per share (note 27), resulting in the issue of 4,608,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$2,101,000, and the related share option
reserve of HK$602,000 was transferred to the share premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

On 21 March 2023, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to approve the authorised share capital of
the Company be increased from HK$300,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an additional 7,000,000,000 shares.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options issued under the scheme are
included in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

26 BE1TRZ (B)
B&1% (48)
MiaE

(a

(d)

RIZBEZ—F=ANE> AAFRBEEB—BERRERE  LHEREE
5% £8911,000,000,0008% B 14 < 245 A B 2 /A & B 4s H 745 15200,000,000
T3 #%2,000,000,0008 & & EE A H0. 1070 2 R DIG N E B I
300,000,0007T %3 %3,000,000,0008% B& 1% ©

BHEZZ - —F+"HF=+—H AR 2,500,000 FE I REBEHT > 58
FE R DB EERAB0.275 B T (fi5E27) » BEE£172,500,0008%
SR EEETE0.107T 2 15 > AIRE B % H15688,0007T CRETRS)
7R 52 % T I R AT 50 > AERE R R R R 5 516 164,000 T E B E IR
EIERRA ©

RIZEZ—FOEB+ZHEMREBKE A ARG ERRESHAM
QIRERRARMDEL—()IRERRGOZEE  RERERIRMDBIE
0.36070 2 B158517821,916,697 IR (AR AR 1% » WL 1£295,890,0007T
ZFISRIB4E%E CGRETRY) -t EEREARBERBZEHTE
BRI E R 2 A AR EHRE

BHEZZ-_F+"HA=+—HLLFE" 4,608,000 k& EHEH > 52
B EEESRB0.456 T TE (I5E27) » B (E388174,608,000
REREEEE0.10T 2 iRM » BIREREAE2,101,0007T (R5HH
%) R ERERERITER > R EB15602,000c BEHEE
AP T EER A ©

RIZEZ=F=ZFZ+—HB AL EE B BB RZER Uit
BB I EEEESM7,000,000,000% B 15 M < A A B Z /A E AR BIE
300,000,0007% 43 %3,000,000,0008% & A& BB B #50.107T 2 IRADIE N E
781%1,000,000,0007T43 %5 10,000,000,0008% f& 17 ©

FERRRE
NIRRT B MR IR st BI S TR IR 2 SE B &Y N R & I I IR 3E
MizE27°
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27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27 BERGtESTE
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The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating and
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations, and to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include executive directors, non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), and other full-time or part-time employees of the Company, and
its subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 12 November 2013 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date to 11 November 2023.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other future share option schemes of the Company (excluding share options
forfeited in accordance with the terms of the Scheme or any other future share option schemes of the
Company) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 12 November 2013, the date of
the annual general meeting that the Company sought the approval of the shareholders of the Company
for the adoption of the Scheme. The number of shares issuable under the Scheme was 162,077,939,
which represented 10% of the Company’s shares in issue at 12 November 2013. As of the date of this
report, the total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme is 63,472,522, representing
2.57% of the existing number of issued shares. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting with such participant and his associates
abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their respective associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding any independent non-executive director who is a grantee of the share options). In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company's shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27 FERetEstal ()
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon FH 2 BN R H BHRE S 28 R AT AR A (M E HBE1 TR
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share HARERREAN EREBREZTERRESSE D R G TR
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends [BHAR BB R AR R ) B BRRE ST+ R @ m o 1A sZ ST R IHAR %
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options. Share options H RN Bz st 8- AR E A E R TT 2 B RE % EIE
granted during the term of the Scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to the end of the 10- A (AT AR R LA B R 15 L B A TR HR R AR A T AT T fio

year period of the Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant within
the exercise period for which such options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of the Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the BRI ZITEEHESE D EAEERUT ZESE [ ()RBRRER
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the share t B EAAC R BB AR B SR P 2 WL M8 5 (i) X424t B BRATSER 5 B A
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the 5 trading days REIRAD TR PR 2 W TR(E ; K (i) A A Bl D EEe

immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. R R TRE AR SN RERAE LR #EFo
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27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27 FERetEstal (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year/period: FR BNt EI T AR TR BRI T
Year ended 31 December 2022 Period ended 31 December 2021
BE—ZT”C BHE_Z”"—&F
+-A=+—HLEE +ZA=+—HLH~H
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of share average of share
exercise price options exercise price options
MEFHITER BREHE METHTEE BREHE
HKS$ per share ‘000 HK$ per share ‘000
SRAEKT T15 BB T T1n
At beginning of year/period 0.583 108,893 0.573 81,840 A B
Granted during the year/period 0.586 29,000 0.568 124,818 FR/HARRH
Forfeited during the year/period 0.536 (37,091) 0.455 (23,685) FRHRERK
Cancelled during the year/period - - 0.598 (71,580) £, HIPEE
Exercised during the year/period 0.456 (4,608) 0.275 (2,500) £/ AR
At end of year/period 0.608 96,194 0.583 108,893 RER R
The share price at the date of exercise of share options exercised during the year ended 31 December BE_ZE_ A+ A=+—HIFE BITEERERITEBHR
2022 ranged from HK$0.510 to HK$0.810 per share (for the period ended 31 December 2021: HK$0.390 ZREERNTEK0.S10nEEK0810T BEZE_—F+_4
per share). =+—HLHE  SE50.3907T) ©
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

At 31 December 2022

27 FERRTESHE ()
FREIRR MR TR A TEERATER T

WZE-—F+-"H=+—H

Adjusted
Number of share options Exercise price* exercise price Exercise period
HRERE T E EERTIEE T4
HK$ per share HK$ per share
ST SR
(note)
(GE)
15,276,000 0.460 0.456 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 TR THF—RB—REZE_AFE+A=1+—H
16,942,000 0.460 0.456 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 —2— =FE—A—HBEZZARE+A=+—H
16,976,137 0.460 0.456 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 TETNE—B—HE_ZE_E+-B=1+—H
5,996,000 1.060 N/A A 16 November 2022 to 15 November 2027 BT HF+—B+NHEE_tHE+—HB+AH
6,002,000 1.060 N/A 38R 16 November 2023 to 15 November 2027 —E I+ —B+RHEZZEZtLtHF+—B+HAH
6,002,000 1.060 N/A 3R 16 November 2024 to 15 November 2027 :‘g_ﬂfﬁ‘f— B+ ANHEZE-_t&+—H+AHH
6,997,000 0.660 N/A 158 23 March 2023 to 22 March 2028 TE TR+ =HEE-_N\F=HBAZ+H
6,997,000 0.660 N/A 48 23 March 2024 to 22 March 2028 TECNE=R_+=HE_ZE-_N\F=ZB”-+_H
7,006,000 0.660 N/A 58 B 23 March 2025 to 22 March 2028 T ECRF=-B+=-HEZE-_NE=RB=+=H
2,666,000 0.390 N/A R#MAH 17 November 2023 to 16 November 2028 —EC=F+—BA+tHEE-_N\E+—HB+NH
2,666,000 0.390 N/A 3R 17 November 2024 to 16 November 2028 “EINFt+—B+tHEZZENF+—B+<H
2,668,000 0.390 N/A 3R 17 November 2025 to 16 November 2028 “ECHRF+—B+tHEZENAFE+—B+/NH

96,194,137

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E 5 EEEB AR AR 1 7 9
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continued)

At 31 December 2021

27 FEietEstEl (@)

RIREARERITERBRIEZTERERITERNT: (8

W& —F+-"H=+—H

Adjusted
Number of share options Exercise price* exercise price Exercise period
HRERE T EE EERTIEE 171EL
HK$ per share HK$ per share
SR SRBIET
(note)
GE)
25,610,000 0.460 0.456 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 —ECHF—RB—RE_ZE_FE+"A=1+—H
25,616,000 0.460 0.456 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 —2— —F—B—HEZIZZARF+ZHE=1+—H
25,666,659 0.460 0.456 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 TETNME-RB—HRE_ZE_FE+-B=+—H
666,000 0.510 N/AZ 78 A 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 TEI T —RB—HBEIZTRE+ZA=1+—H
666,000 0.510 N/AT 78 A3 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 TR —HB—REZZETRE+ZA=1+—H
668,000 0.510 N/AT 58 F 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 —EINF—RB—HEIZZARF+ZA=1+—H
3,332,000 0.620 N/AT 78 A3 8 August 2022 to 7 August 2027 TECCENRANEEZE_tENRLH
3,334,000 0.620 N/AZ 78 A 8 August 2023 to 7 August 2027 TEC=_FNBANHEZE-_tENRLtH
3,334,000 0.620 N/A 38 8 August 2024 to 7 August 2027 “EIMFENBNBEZZETEENBTH
6,660,000 1.060 N/ATZEFH 16 November 2022 to 15 November 2027 —EC T HF+—B+NEEE_tHE+—HB+AH
6,670,000 1.060 N/AT 7@ 16 November 2023 to 15 November 2027 —E I+ —B+REEZELtHF+—B+HAH
6,670,000 1.060 N/ARZEAE 16 November 2024 to 15 November 2027 _ENFE+—HA+ANBEE_t&+—HA+HH

108,892,659

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.
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The exercise price was adjusted after completion of rights issue of the Company on 12 April 2021.
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31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27 FERetEstal ()
On 23 March 2022, the Company granted share options of 21,000,000, to its employees. The fair value N2 ZF=-RAZ+=H AR FAEEEEETH21,000,00017 K
of the share options granted during the year was HK$5,399,000 (HK$0.257 each), of which the Group - FANBRBEREY A TERBES5,399,0007T (ERER0.257
recognised a share option expense of HK$2,467,000 in the current year. 7T) B AEE R AFE B R B  B152,467,0007T
On 17 November 2022, the Company granted share options of 8,000,000, to its employees. The fair value N2 ZF+—A+tHB Fx2amHEESREES,000,0001#EK
of the share options granted during the year was HK$1,295,000 (HK$0.162 each), of which the Group - FNBREEREY A TERE1,295,0007T (ERER0.162
recognised a share option expense of HK$91,000 in the current year. 7T) » B AEE R AEE BN E RSB 191,0007Te
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was estimated as at the date of FRMFEEZ S EEBRE L ATETSREEBRGEE TR AT
grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were BV E BRI A8 F BT H B 2 (R R R B MEt 8o TR
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used: SOIPTRARE 2 st ATEE
Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
HE HE
ZEICZHE TET
+=-A=+—H +=-HB=+—H
WHEE IFFARE
Weighted average dividend yield (%) 4.63 6.25 INREF AL B (%)
Weighted average expected volatility (%) 69.77 61.90 N9 TEERR B0(%)
Weighted average historical volatility (%) 69.77 61.90 N0 35 FE 2R (%)
Weighted average risk-free interest rate (%) 2.48 0.63 INHE T i AR (%)
Expected life of share options (year) 6 6 BRETESTER ()
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 0.586 0.496 NEFEHRE (BREE T
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27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27 FERgiEsta (48)
The expected life of the share options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is R TSt R IR IR B+ 2 B P EIRE T RN BE R PR AT 5E
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the IR BT TR o TRER R BT D ARG IE SE R BN R HE B R 2R 5 i
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the RINBERE B o

actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value. Rt B AT ER L 5 R PR RERE 2 R E M o

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 96,194,137 (2021: 108,892,659) share options REREREA A ARIEZE T2 96,194,137/ (C“Z ”—4:108,892,659
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately 3.89% (2021: 4.42%) of the 1) MR T BB IR ENZ B A AR B T1493.89% (CTZ2"—
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under T 14.42%) FEA N EIIRA RAGIEEBITER R TEZ BB 8
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 96,194,137 (2021: 108,892,659) IATIEETT6,194,137/% (Z T - —4F:108,892,65908) ZEIMZL BASAR(A »
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of approximately HK$9,619,400 MRS NN4971E9,619,4007T (&~ —4F  7i10,889,3007T) ©

(2021: HK$10,889,300).
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28 SUBSIDIARIES 28 MIBAR
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at year end: LRARERTENBATIZZE:
Place of Particulars of Interest held Interest held
incorporation and Principal activities and issued/registered at 31 December at 31 December
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital 2022 2021
it . RITZ—f
BT M +=A=+—H +=A=+—H
Euy BRI EE Rk N RE AR TEEBREEME B AssE 15 PRt Frisigss
IERERMBEREN B RAF" (note a) Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
(Mf5Ea) liability company in mainland China A #1,000,0007T
FEAREE BREEAE PR K RER N EE K 77 i
Bossini Apparel Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
5H BRAE in Hong Kong B2
NEBRKREE RDIH
Bossini Clothing Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
E58& BRERF in Hong Kong BEE27T
REBRREE RDHH
Bossini Distribution Limited# Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$1 100% 100%
BEFESHERAT 58 BRRXE in Hong Kong BT
REBRKZEE RDH
Bossini Enterprises Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
ERELERRAT 58 BREAT in Hong Kong B2
REBANTE R S
@ B,
Bossini Garment Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100% g 2
E58& BRRAF in Hong Kong BEE27T m 3
REBRKD %3
§.
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28 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 28 MIBAT (48)
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Place of
incorporation and

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued/registered

Interest held
at 31 December

Interest held
at 31 December

Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital 2022 2021
MBI RIZTZ—%
B®iT #f  +-A=+—-8 +=B=+—~
218 FR IR e ik AN B RS HE B FTEEFREEMR fEAsz¥1E PR PR =
Bossini Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands, Investment holding US$11,928 100% 100%
limited company in British Virgin Islands 11,9283 7T
HEERRAEE ARAT REBHEERESKREER
Bossini Onmay International Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
ERBE =B ER AT 5B BRAE in Hong Kong BHE25T
REBRNREE RDIH
Bossini Retail Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
58 BRRAA in Hong Kong BT
REBRNREERDH
Bright Star Fashion Limited* Macau, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments MOP$25,000 100% 100%
122 REF R A B BT BRAF in Macau 25,0002 75
PORPIR N EE K 7
Burling Limited* British Virgin Islands, limited Licensing of trademarks Us$100 100% 100%
AMERA S company in British Virgin Islands 1003=7T
HEETERES BRAF NREBER R SEIRNET
BN EMmEE XA RAE" Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments RMB1,010,000 100% 100%
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28 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation and

28 BT (&)

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued/registered

Interest held
at 31 December

Interest held
at 31 December

Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital 2022 2021
RIZZZH R_B-—F
BT s +=BA=+—H +=A=+—H
18 BRIt B Rk A BB 4 A TEXBREEME B A2 1E FR¥stE s FRfstE s
BENEREEZERAT Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments ~ RMB 148,000,000 100% 100%
liability company in mainland China AR
hE A FREERE INERETPN S RS =Y Pk i 148,000,0007T
EesEMmEmEARAT (note b) Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments RMB1,000,000 100% N/AR7E BB
(MF5EDb) liability company in mainland China AR
REIAKEE BIREE AT TEARB AR NREE K7 1,000,0007C
J & R Bossini Fashion Pte. Ltd.# Singapore, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments SG$2,000,000 100% 100%
g BRAE in Singapore 2,000,000 N 75
TN AR B & K 70 8H
J & R Bossini Holdings Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Investment holding HK$2 100% 100%
BfFEEEERAT! 58 BRRXE in Hong Kong BT
REBREER
J&R Bossini International Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$26,000,002 100% 100%
58 BRRXE in Hong Kong ~ 71&26,000,0027C
NEBRKREE RDIH
Kacono Trading Limited* British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding HK$2,000 100% 100%
company in British Virgin Islands 7B #2,0007T
RBERRES BRAF REBHEERESKREER
Key Value Trading Limited* British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding US$100 100% 100%
company in British Virgin Islands 1007

REHERREE ARAT

RAEBEBRRESREZER
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28 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation and

28 BT ()

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued/registered

Interest held
at 31 December

Interest held
at 31 December

Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital 2022 2021
MBI RIZTZ—%
BT s +=B=+—H +=A=+—H
E2y FR IR e ik AN B RS HE B FTEEFREEMR fEAsz¥1E PR PR =
Lead Commence Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
IREERRAF! 5% BRAE in Hong Kong B2t
REBRREE RDIH
Rapid City Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Property holding and letting HK$2 100% 100%
BRI B R AR 58 BRRXE in Hong Kong BT
NEBMEFEREE
ER=ES FY) BRAF! Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments RMB251,000,000 100% 100%
liability company in mainland China A #251,000,0007%
FEKE BREEAT RARBIARERREE R iH
FhEMEE ZBRAT! Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments RMB500,000 100% 100%

in mainland China A E#5500,0007%
1 AR B A B Bl T & R 0 8

liability company

PEARE BREEAR

* KRBEEFARE-
AR RIEERAERE

*  Equity interest directly held by the Company.
#  Equity interest indirectly held by the Company.

Notes: FIEE

(@) IEREMBERMBERABDBINPEARERIZAREEAE LER
TECEE+ Bt HRSHEEERR-

() ERERFEREBIRAE is a limited liability enterprise established in mainland China, which obtained its
business registration certificate on 24 November 2020.

MBER

(b)y LEEMEMEZEARAE is a limited liability enterprise established in mainland China, which obtained its b)) LEEMEREERATANTEAERIZAREEAT  THZ

business registration certificate on 26 July 2022. T FEtAZHABEEEEEENR

c
.2
=
©
£
S
(<]
2
=
el
v
c
]
c
£

1 86ANNUAL REPORT 2022 R



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

29 RESERVES 29 f#fE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current year and prior periods REERBAREASEEFEREPES 2 HRE2INM BRI 2T
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements. The amounts BEDEHRRAN N 22— FRMNE ST EBREERIF 3058 R1 R E
of goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of Statement of Standard MBARFEEMN SR _E_—F+"A=+—HMNER
Accounting Practice 30 in 2001, remaining in the consolidated capital reserve and consolidated retained REBARERGERE RN EESEED A EE3,292,0007T
profits amounted to HK$3,292,000 and HK$20,982,000, respectively, at 31 December 2022 and 2021. 2 7&1%20,982,0007T°

The share option reserve of the Group comprises the fair value of share options granted which are yet to AEEZERERMEORBEERHEHRTEREREZ ATE FI15H
be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in note AR E M FEERRMIET2. 25B UM ZRIBZ X5 2 5HBER R

2.25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 30 GFEREMEBRMEE
(a) Cash flows from liabilities arising from financing activities (a) MEEBIFFEEEBZIRENE
In the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash flows from liabilities arising from financing activities RizaRena® MEIFmELaE RS RENTUT:

are analysed as follows:

Loan from
Interest- immediate
Lease bearing bank holding
liabilities borrowings company Total
HiEER
HK$'000 AEAaE  HERTER ATER 4wt BT T
At 1 July 2020 287,084 59,721 - 346,805 RZZEZFFtHA—H
Cash inflows - - 100,000 100,000 BERA
Cash outflows (234,761) (59,721) (100,000) (394,482) RERH
Other non-cash movement 195,304 - — 195,304 HihIEIR e &g
At 31 December 2021 and RZE-_—F+-A=+—HRZZE-”"F—H—H
1 January 2022 247,627 - - 247,627
Cash outflows (127,850) — — (127,850) Hem
Other non-cash movement 94,949 = — 94,949 HtIEIRE &
At 31 December 2022 214,726 - - 214,726 RZE-_"_F+”"RB=+—H

MBER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued) 30 SRERTRERMEE (@)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment (b) HEME- BRERRERSIIE
In the consolidated statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of property, plant and RiEEIRERER HEVZE -BEKRREMSHIESTNT:

equipment are analysed as follows:

Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
HE HE
—B_C ZEIF
+=B=+—H +=—BA=+—H
HK$'000 WHEE LEEARG BT T
Net book amount (note 15) 1,613 1,766 IREFE (FF5E15)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net HEYZE B K& E 2 FEE (EE8)
(note 8) (982) (369)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 631 1,397 HEYHE BB RREMERIE
(c) Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale (o) HESEHEZEEFRSRIE
In the consolidated statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale are RiFaRERER HERFHEZBEEMIRIED MU
analysed as follows: s S
Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
HE g=
—s-— —s-—F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-A
HK$'000 WEFE LFEARG BT T
Net book amount 9,437 - REFE =
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale (note 8) 173,685 - HERIFHE 2 EE I (MIEE8) - 3
(S arry
%
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale 183,122 - HERFIEHE 2 EEMESRIE E )
_‘_7
3
)
=]
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

31 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting period:

31

B
FEEPIRERZEAEENT:

2022 2021
HK$'000 == BRI BT
Contracted, but not provided for: HESYEESE: 1=
Leasehold improvements 8,523 5,205 MHEYZ=EE
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 62 - R BRI AERE
8,585 5,205

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control, jointly control or exert significant influence
over the other party in holding power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of
the investor's returns. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
joint control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

MBER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33 FEALRS (@)
(a) Material transactions with related parties (a) BEIRFEALTZEKRRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the following transactions were PrEZ S M TBIRRPTIRE SIS TR ZTH EHEIEA TR TAES
carried out with related parties at terms mutually agreed by both parties: B E 2 FFETT:
Year ended Period ended
Notes 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
HE HE
- TR
+=B=+—H +=B=+—H
HK$'000 i ILEE LEHARS BT T
Continuing connected transactions HERERXS
Rental and other income from a fellow mEZ M E AR U E 2 & R E MK A
subsidiary (i) 3,904 3,968
Service fee to a fellow subsidiary (ii) 5,861 2,886 HEZWBARSZNZREE
Sponsor fee to a fellow subsidiary (iii) 4,734 4,627 mERMNBARSZ 2 EHE
Related party transactions MEALTRS
Purchases of garments from a related company  (iv) - 934 mRAE A B IRAE ALK
Purchases of garments from a fellow subsidiary — (v) 730 756 BRI RN B A REMK
Interest on loan from immediate holding BRERATERZHME (ME7)
company (note 7) (vi) - 1,679
Service fee to fellow subsidiaries (vii) 1,405 - BRRENEBARSZ N ZRHEE
Rental expenses to related companies (viii) 4,437 - HEEABZ M ZzHEE
Notes: MEEE
(i) Rental and other income from subletting portion of the Group's office premises to a fellow subsidiary was () TEESHEIDMAEMETERWEB AR ZHEREMBATS
charged in accordance with the terms of a sub-tenancy agreement entered into between the Group and a RIBEAEREERWB AR Lz DB R IR E
fellow subsidiary. '5"'
3
(i) The service fee in relation of managing online shops at various e-commerce platforms in the mainland China iy BEYPEAEZEETFAHFAMALIEEZREELDREAER il
was charged in accordance with the terms of an agreement entered into between the Group and a fellow R RMI B ABFTE] I & Rt E o by ;
subsidiary. )lﬂlfz S
%3
-
S
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) Material transactions with related parties (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

=

(viii

(ix)

The sponsor fee in relation of sponsoring a sport team was charged in accordance with the terms of an
agreement entered into between the Group and a fellow subsidiary.

Purchases of garments from certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of Laws International Group Limited (“Laws
International”) were determined by reference to the prevailing market prices. Laws International is wholly
owned by the trustee of a discretionary trust set up by a relative of Mr. LAW Ka Sing (“Mr. Law") and Mr.
LAW Ching Kit Bosco (“Mr. Bosco Law”), the latter of whom is an eligible discretionary object. Ms. TSIN Man
Kuen Bess, the spouse of Mr. Law, was an executive director and the chairman of the Company and Mr.
Bosco Law is a non-executive Director of the Company.

Purchases of garments from a fellow subsidiary were charged in accordance with the terms of an agreement
entered into between the Group and a fellow subsidiary.

Interest was incurred from the loan from Dragon Leap Development Limited, the immediate holding company
which was fully repaid as at 31 December 2021. The interest was charged in accordance with the terms of a
shareholder loan agreement entered into between the Group and the immediate holding company.

The service fee in relation of supply chain management in the mainland China was charged in accordance
with the terms of the respective agreements entered into between the Group and the fellow subsidiaries.

Rental expenses to related companies were charged in accordance with the terms of the respective tenancy
agreements entered into between the Group and the related companies.

All related party transactions set out in notes (iv) to (vii) constituted “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and they are fully exempt from
shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transaction set out in note (viii) above did not fall within the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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33 BIEALRG (@
(a) BRAEALTZEARRS @)

Myt : ()

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

BREDEAEREMEREAEEERRNB AR ML
2R AFREE

mETRRERERSRAR ((ERER) 2EM B A B REMR
KRB2REF 2 HERE - BRERTRERERE (TBEE)
RABENSGE (MRIENSGE) ZRBIRIZ2BEFTZEFEA
LEBER REACERRDZA BEBRUIRBLEZRB
BERBZHTEERER MEENEERERABDZIFNTE
=Ho

AERNBRADRBRKRLBREFAEERARNRNBRARFRIILZ
e fRRETE o

HEHERZERARERERARARNZEMMES N _F
T+ ZA=1+—HEZ2BEEBE -FMENREAEREEEE
RABFREII 2 RERE IR ZARRETE

BRTEAEMREEESE RBENRELAEALERRWEAR
BHFIILZ BB AT H

FEADNEEMX N RESEREREARSEIUZHER
EARRETE

M EMEVZEVIDFTEZ FRBEREA LR Z 1B LT RRFE14A%
BTAEEN ERS R FERERS) BRSETE2HR
BT EHRABI4AZSR TRRAE - FEERMARERE

DU EMEE(vilPr & 2 I A TR Z LA EI EHRRISE14AZIRT
PREZEMRIERZ 5 [ FHERERR S ©



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33 FEALRS (@)
(b) Year/period end balances (b) 48 HRAREEER
Notes 2022 2021
HK$'000 Bt —E=-= = SEHET T
Due to fellow subsidiaries FARIEEN =S ERE]
Service fees payable to fellow subsidiaries 0) 1,527 469 ERRANBARZREE
Sponsor fee payable to a fellow subsidiary (ii) - 4,908 ENERNBAR ZEHE
1,527 5,377
Due to related companies FEREARRIEA
Rental expenses payable to related companies  (iii) 1,474 - FENRREABZHEMX
Notes: MEEE
(i) Service fees payable to fellow subsidiaries were unsecured, interest-free and repayable according to the trade (i) ENRARMBARZRBERBEIRT  EERIBEEZHRREE-
terms.
(i) Sponsor fee payable to a fellow subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and repayable according to the trade iy ENRRMEBARZENEAEIEF RERREEZGRER-
terms.
(iiiy  Rental expenses payable to related companies were unsecured, interest-free and repayable according to the (i) FENEEABRZHESMAZARIKE RERRBREZERER

trade terms.

(c) Loan facility (c) EXFE
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total loan facility of HK$200,000,000 (2021: Nil) granted by an R _F+__A=+—H AEEEETHEZERATEFTHLE
intermediate holding company. No facility was utilised as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). 200,000,000 (CE - —F 1\ BEFMHE- R _ S __F+_-_BA=1+—

R #EsREemE CE2—F 8
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(d) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors and senior management. The compensation paid or payable to

key management for employee services is shown below:

33 BIEALRG (@
(d) FTEBEASIREN
TEEEASUEESRSREEAB MBS RS TIER
EEWAS BT

Year ended Period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
HBE HE
g B —F
+=B=+-8 +=B=+-8
HK$'000 IEFE LEHARS BT T
Fees 1,900 2,806 wE
Short term employee benefits 13,347 20,762 e S 3
Equity-settled share option expense 3,826 6,409 HmAEERERS
Pension scheme contributions 166 242 BIREET B
19,239 30,219
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

34 EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 34 REHEREE

On 24 February 2023, the Company proposed to implement a rights issue on the basis of one (1) rights N2 =F A+ XA B R R UGB ESR RN B
share for every two (2) existing shares held on the record date at the subscription price of HK$0.370 per 03707t ik B ISR AMQMRIRA RN EE —() RO Z
rights share, to raise up to (i) approximately HK$465 million before expenses by way of issuing up to FEEITHAR LU)EB TR 21,257,784, 545 IRIARAR (5 (RR &2
1,257,784,545 rights shares (assuming no change in the number of shares in issue on or before the record EfTEE R BRI PR eC i H BT 2 A 2 21T IS0 81 B I #E & &)
date other than the full exercise of the vested share options); or (i) approximately HK$457 million before FEABIE4. 65270 FNFRFASZAD ; S()EBE1TRZ1,235,179,045
expenses by way of issuing up to 1,235,179,045 rights shares (assuming no change in the number of BRAERARAR (D (R s H R 2 RIE TN B W EEE) EEQ
shares in issue on or before the record date). 74,5727t (NFRRESZAD) ©

Details of the above were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 24 February 2023. B PREEZFEEENARE A "2 =" "+MB>2

YN

ThE 4

=l
5
]
S
Q,
aul
5
=4
o
o
3
]
=
(=]
=]

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E 5 EEEB AR AR 1 9 5



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR e M BRI

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 35 FATZIAFERRR
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting period is R|REAR BEARNABM B R BRI T
as follows:

Note 2022 2021
HK$'000 gz B F T4 BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries 143,162 143,162 MEARIRE
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Due from subsidiaries 529,907 533,345 FEW M B AR FIE
Prepayments 302 696 SEINE
Cash and cash equivalents 1,258 1,234 RERREFEEE
Total current assets 531,467 535,275 BB EAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBE
Other payables and accruals 165 142 HAERIE R ETERIE
Tax payable = 99 FEBTRIE
Total current liabilities 165 241 mEaEAE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 531,302 535,034 mEEERE
NET ASSETS 674,464 678,196 BEFE
EQUITY G g
Issued capital 247,036 246,575 BEITERAR
Reserves @) 427,428 431,621 s
TOTAL EQUITY 674,464 678,196 B E
c
= The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March RRBZHBERRARENR S =F=F - +—HEESSHE I
E o 2023 and were signed on its behalf. HAUTESAREE-
£3
m
£
SR CHEUNG Chi 3R% ZHAO Jianguo 2 E
E Director 2% Director %
iT
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M B IRAR MY

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Note:

(@ A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

35 BAABZMBRRRE (&)
MiEE

() FABMEBZMEIT :

Share
premium Contributed Share option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total

HK$'000 Bein mER BARE MBI IER R REEF mE BT T
At 1 July 2020 29,020 157,616 29,547 2,707 218,890 RZZZZ2FtA—H
Total comprehensive loss for the period = = = (8,151) (8,151) HREEEREE
Exercise of share options 603 = (164) = 439 TR E
Equity-settled share option expenses - = 8,604 - 8,604 EmAEERES
Cancellation of share options - - (30,687) 30,687 - SHIHERRRE
Shares issued under rights issue 213,698 - - - 213,698 R ETRGD
Transaction costs incurred in respect of MEREE 2R Z A

rights issue (1,859) - - - (1,859)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January A B —F+-A=+—HKZZEZ"F—F—H

2022 241,462 157,616 7,300 25,243 431,621
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - (12,534) (12,534) FREEBBEE
Exercise of share options 2,242 - (602) = 1,640 TR AR E
Equity-settled share option expenses = = 6,701 = 6,701 RREEERES S
Transfer of share option reserve upon the REEmERER 2 IR R ERE

forfeiture of expired share options - - (841) 841 -
At 31 December 2022 243,704 157,616 12,558 13,550 427,428 A_E"F+"F=+—H

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Ei5E BB EEE R AR 1 97

=l
5
]
S
Q,
aul
5
=4
o
o
3
]
=
(=]
=]




PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
YESE

31 December 2022 ZZE - "F+"A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REYME

Attributable

interest
Location Use Tenure of the Group
24 B& FH EEELER
Unit 1 on 9th Floor Industrial Medium 100%
Car Park No. L12 on 1st Floor term
Cheung Fung Industrial Building lease
No. 23-39 Pak Tin Par Street
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
A EBREH23-395% I FEATE &

RET%AE
9IE1ZE R 1MEL125% A EE (i
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COMPANY INFORMATION

REER

Executive directors HITES Principal share registrar and transfer office TERKBRERE

Mr. ZHAO Jianguo (appointed as Chairman HERLE (BT =FMAMNH MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
with effect from 4 April 2023) EEEZEARERE) 4th floor North 4th floor North

Mr. CHEUNG Chi RERE

Ms. YU Xin (appointed with effect from 4 April 2023)

Non-executive directors

SR+ (B2 _=F/MANAE
ERT)

FHITES

Mr. Victor HERRERO (Chairman)
(resigned with effect from 4 April 2023)
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco

Victor HERREROZE4E (£ E)
(B2 _=FMAHERT)
BIEARSLE

Independent non-executive directors BIIEHITES
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming FEIAASELE
Prof. SIN Yat Ming SR BRHE

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong BEaasitdE
Company secretary REVME

Ms. CHEUNG Wai Ling REWX L
Principal bankers FEFERET

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Auditor

BITIRIT (BB BRAE
BELBEERTARAT

R4

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Principal solicitor

RS E=E iR o

TEEE

Deacons

RO AT

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

ERRMBRERDE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-6, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Registered office

ERARRBHELEBREAE
EHEFEEAER83
BMF01718

1712-6F

EERiiEE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda Bermuda
Principal office MR

2/F, PopOffice SERNERER
9 Tong Yin Street EBEA

Tseung Kwan O
Kowloon
Hong Kong

Website

PopOffice 212

LR

www.bossini.com

www.bossini.com
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